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PART |
Forward-L ooking Statements

This report (including, but not limited to, the information contained in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations’) contains forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical
facts contained in this report, including statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, business
strategy and plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements. When used, statements
which arenot historical in nature, including those containing words such as“ anticipate,” “estimate,” “ should,” “expect,” “believe,”
“intend,” and similar expressions, areintended to identify forward-1ooking statements. Wehave based forward-looking statements
largely on our current expectationsand projections about future eventsand financial trendsthat we believe may affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. This report also contains estimates and other statistical data made by independent
parties and by us relating to market size and growth and other industry data. This data involves a number of assumptions and
limitations, and you are cautioned not to give undue weight to such estimates. We have not independently verified the statistical
and other industry data generated by independent parties and contained in this report. In addition, projections, assumptions and
estimates of our future performance and the future performance of the industries in which we operate are necessarily subject to a
high degree of uncertainty and risk dueto avariety of factors, including those described under the headings“ Risk Factors’ in ltem
1A of thisreport.

These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties, including those relating to:

« defaults on the mortgage |oans securing our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds;

» risksassociated with investing in multifamily apartments, including changesin business conditions and the general economy;
e changesin short-term interest rates;

e our ability to use borrowings to finance our assets;

e current negative economic and credit market conditions; and

» changesin government regulations affecting our business.

Other risks, uncertaintiesand factors could cause our actua resultsto differ materially from those projected in any forward-looking
statements we make. Weare not obligated to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as aresult of new
information, future events or otherwise, except as required by securities law.

Item 1. Business.

America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. was formed for the primary purpose of acquiring a portfolio of federally tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds that are issued to provide construction and/or permanent financing of multifamily residential
properties. Interest paid on these bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. As aresult, most of
the income earned by the Partnership is exempt from federal income taxes.

The Partnership has been in operation since 1998 and owned 21 federally tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds with an aggregate
outstanding principal amount of $189.3 million as of December 31, 2010. These bonds were issued by various state and local
housing authoritiesin order to provide construction and/or permanent financing of 21 multifamily residential apartmentscontaining
atotal of 4,042 rental units located in the states of Florida, lowa, South Carolina, Texas, Kansas, Kentucky, Minnesota, Illinois,
and Ohio, one multifamily residential apartment complex under construction in Texasthat will contain atotal of 76 rental units,
and a 142-bed student housing facility in Nebraska. 1n each case the Partnership owns, either directly or indirectly, 100% of the
bonds issued for these properties. Each bond is secured by afirst mortgage or deed of trust on the financed apartment property.
Of the 21 bonds owned, eight are owned directly by the Partnership and 13 are owned by ATAX TEBSI, LLC, aspecial purpose
entity owned and controlled by the Partnership, created to facilitate the Tax Exempt Bond Securitization (“TEBS") Financing
with FreddieMac (seeNotes 2, 9and 10). Six of the entitiesthat own the apartment properties financed by six of the Partnership's
tax exempt bonds were deemed to be Consolidated variable interest entities ("VIES") of the Partnership at December 31, 2010
and, as a result, these bonds are eliminated in consolidation on the Company's consolidated financia statements. Two bonds
secured by thethree properties, Crescent Village, Post Woods, and Willow Bend apartmentsin Ohio (the* Ohio Properties”) subject
to a sales agreement (see Note 6) are eliminated in consolidation on the Company's financial statements. Additionally, six of the
bonds also provide for the payment of contingent interest determined by the net cash flow and net capital appreciation of the
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underlyingreal estate properties. Asaresult, thesemortgage revenue bonds providethe Partnership with the potential to participate
in future increases in the cash flow generated by the financed properties, either through operations or from their ultimate sale.

The ability of the properties collateralizing our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds to make payments of base and contingent
interest isafunction of thenet operating income generated by theseproperties. Net operatingincomefromamultifamily residential
property depends on the rental and occupancy rates of the property and thelevel of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents
aredirectly affected by the supply of, and demand for, apartmentsin the market areasin which aproperty islocated. This, inturn,
isaffected by several factorssuch aslocal or national economic conditions, the amount of new apartment construction and interest
rates on single-family mortgage loans. In addition, factors such as government regulation, inflation, real estate and other taxes,
labor problems and natural disasters can affect the economic operations of aproperty. Becausethe return to the Partnership from
its investments in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds depends upon the economic performance of the multifamily residential
properties which collateralize these bonds, the Partnership may be considered to be in competition with other multifamily rental
properties located in the same geographic areas as the properties financed with its tax-exempt bonds.

The Partnership may also invest in other types of tax-exempt securities that may or may not be secured by real estate. These tax-
exempt securities must be rated in one of the four highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized securities rating
agency and may not represent more than 25% of the Partnership's assets at the time of acquisition. To date, the Partnership has
not made any investments of thistype.

The Partnership may also make taxable mortgage loans secured by multifamily properties which are financed by tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds held by the Partnership. The Partnership doesthisin order to provide financing for capital improvements
at these properties or to otherwise support property operations when we determine it is in the best long-term interest of the
Partnership.

The Partnership generally does not seek to acquire direct interests in rea property aslong term or permanent investments. The
Partnership may, however, acquire real estate securing its tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds or taxable mortgage | oans through
foreclosurein the event of adefault. In addition, the Partnership may acquire interestsin multifamily apartment properties (“MF
Properties’) inorder to positionitself for futureinvestmentsin tax-exempt bondsissued tofinancethese properties. ThePartnership
currently holds interests in eight MF Properties containing 964 rental units, of which three are located in Ohio and are currently
subject to a sales agreement, two are located in Kentucky, oneis located in Virginia, oneislocated in North Carolinaand oneis
located in Georgia. The Partnership expects each of these MF Properties to eventually be sold to a not-for-profit entity or in
connection with a syndication of Low Income Housing Tax Credits (“LIHTCS") under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code”). The Partnership expects to acquire tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
issued to provide debt financing for these properties at the time the property ownership is restructured. Such restructurings will
generally be expected to occur within 36 months of the Partnership'sinitial investment in an MF Property and will often coincide
withtheexpiration of thecompliance period relatingto LIHT Cspreviously issued with respect tothe MF Property. ThePartnership
will not acquire LIHTCs in connection with these transactions. Current credit markets and general economic conditions have
resulted in very few LIHTC syndication and tax-exempt bond financing transactions being completed in recent years. These
types of transactions represent along-term market opportunity for the Partnership and should provide us with a pipeline of future
bond investment opportunities when the market for LIHTC syndications strengthens. Until the market for LIHTC syndication
transactions strengthens, the Partnership will explore other transactions for the sale of the MF Properties.

Business Objectives and Strategy

Our business objectives areto (i) preserve and protect our capital and (ii) provide regular and increasing cash distributionsto our
unitholderswhich aresubstantially exempt fromfederal incometax. Wehave sought to meet these objectivesby primarily investing
inaportfolio of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bondsthat wereissued to finance, and are secured by first mortgages on, multifamily
apartment properties, including student housing. Certain of these bonds may be structured to provide a potentia for an enhanced
federally tax-exempt yield through the payment of contingent interest which is payable out of net cash flow from operations and
net capital appreciation of the financed apartment properties.

We are pursuing a business strategy of acquiring additional tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds on aleveraged basisin order to
(i) increase the amount of tax-exempt interest available for distribution to our unitholders; (ii) reduce risk through asset
diversification and interest rate hedging; and (iii) achieve economies of scale. We are pursuing this growth strategy by investing
in additional tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and related investments, taking advantage of attractive financing structures
available in the tax-exempt securities market and entering into interest rate risk management instruments. We may finance the
acquisition of additional tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds through the reinvestment of cash flow, the issuance of additional
units, or securitization financing using our existing portfolio of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds. Our operating policy isto
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use securitizations or other forms of leverage to maintain alevel of debt financing between 40% and 60% of the total par value
of our mortgage bond portfolio.

In connection with our business strategy, we continually assess opportunities to reposition our existing portfolio of tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds. The principa objective of this assessment is to improve the quality and performance of our revenue
bond portfolio and, ultimately, increase the amount of cash available for distribution to our unitholders. In some cases, we may
elect to redeem selected tax-exempt bonds that are secured by multifamily properties that have experienced significant
appreciation. Through the selective redemption of the bonds, a sale or refinancing of the underlying property will be required
which, if sufficient sale or refinancing proceeds exist, may entitle the Partnership to receive payment of contingent interest on its
bond investment. In other cases, we may elect to sell bonds on propertiesthat are in stagnant or declining markets. The proceeds
received from these transactions would be redeployed into other tax-exempt investments consistent with our investment
objectives. We may also be able to use a higher-quality investment portfolio to obtain higher leverage to be used to acquire
additional investments.

In executing our growth strategy, we expect to invest primarily in bondsissued to provide affordable rental housing, but may also
consider bonds issued to finance student housing projects and housing for senior citizens. The four basic types of multifamily
housing revenue bonds which we may acquire as investments are as follows:

1. Private activity bondsissued under Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Codeg;

2. Bondsissued under Section 145 of the Internal Revenue Code by not-for-profit entities qualified under Section 501(c)
(3) of the Internal Revenue Code;

3. Essential function bonds issued by a public instrumentality to finance an apartment property owned by such
instrumentality; and

4. Existing “80/20 bonds’ that were issued under Section 103(b)(4)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.

Each of these bond structures permitstheissuance of tax-exempt bondsto finance the construction or acquisition and rehabilitation
of affordablerental housing. Under applicable Treasury Regulations, any affordable apartment project financed with tax-exempt
bonds must set aside a percentage of itstotal rental unitsfor occupancy by tenantswhoseincomesdo not exceed stated percentages
of the median income in the local area. In each case, the balance of the rental units in the apartment project may be rented at
market rates. With respect to private activity bonds issued under Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, the owner of the
apartment project may elect, at the time the bonds are issued, whether to set aside a minimum of 20% of the units for tenants
making less than 50% of area median income (as adjusted for household size) or 40% of the units for tenants making less than
60% of the area median income (as adjusted for household size). Multifamily housing bonds that were issued prior to the Tax
Reform Act of 1986 (so called “80/20” bonds) require that 20% of the rental units be set aside for tenants whose income does not
exceed 80% of the area median income, without adjustment for household size.

We expect that many of the private activity housing bonds that we evaluate for acquisition will be issued in conjunction with the
syndication of LIHTCs by the owner of the financed apartment project. Additionally, to facilitate our investment strategy of
acquiring additional tax-exempt mortgage bonds secured by MF Properties, we may acquire ownership positions in the MF
Properties. We expect to acquire tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds on these MF Properties in many cases at the time of a
restructuring of the MF Property ownership. Such restructuring may involve the syndication of LIHTCs in conjunction with
property rehabilitation.

Investment Types

Tax-Exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds. The Partnership investsin tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds that are secured by afirst
mortgage or deed of trust on multifamily apartment projects. Each of these bonds bears interest at afixed annual baserate. Six
of the 21 bonds currently owned by the Partnership aso provide for the payment of contingent interest, which is payable out of
the net cash flow and net capital appreciation of the underlying apartment properties. Asaresult, the amount of interest earned
by the Partnership from itsinvestment in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds is afunction of the net operating income generated
by the properties collateralizing the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds. Net operating income from a multifamily residential
property depends on the rental and occupancy rates of the property and the level of operating expenses.



Other Tax-Exempt Securities. The Partnership may invest in other types of tax-exempt securities that may or may not be secured
by real estate. These tax-exempt securities must be rated in one of the four highest rating categories by at least one nationally
recognized securities rating agency and may not represent more than 25% of the Partnership's assets at the time of acquisition.

Taxable Mortgage Loans. The Partnership may also make taxable mortgage loans secured by multifamily properties which are
financed by tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds that are held by the Partnership.

Other Investments. While the Partnership generally does not seek to acquire equity interests in real property as long-term or
permanent investments, it may acquire real estate securing its revenue bonds or taxable mortgage loans through foreclosure in the
event of adefault. Inaddition, aspart of itsgrowth strategy, the Partnership may acquiredirect or indirect interestsin MF Properties
on atemporary basisin order to position itself for a future investment in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds issued to finance
the acquisition or substantial rehabilitation of such apartment complexes by anew owner. A new owner would typically seek to
obtain LIHTCs in connection with the issuance of the new tax-exempt bonds, but if LIHTCs had previously been issued for the
property, such a restructuring could not occur until the expiration of a 15-year compliance period for the initial LIHTCs. The
Partnership may acquireaninterestin MF Propertiesprior totheend of theLIHTC complianceperiod. AftertheLIHTC compliance
period, the Partnership would expect to sell itsinterest in such MF Property to a new owner which could syndicate new LIHTCs
and seek tax-exempt bond financing on the MF Property which the Partnership could acquire. Such restructurings will generally
be expected to occur within 36 months of the acquisition by the Partnership of an interest in an MF Property. The Partnership
will not acquire LIHTCs in connection with these transactions.

I nvestment Opportunities

There continues to be a significant unmet demand for affordable multifamily housing in the United States. The United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) reports that there are approximately 7.1 million American households
in need of quality affordable housing. The types of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds in which we invest offer devel opers of
affordablehousing al ow-cost source of construction and permanent debt financing for thesetypesof properties. Investorspurchase
these bonds because the income paid on these bonds is exempt from federal income taxation. The National Council of State
Housing Agencies Fact Sheet and HUD have captured some key scale metrics and opportunities of this market:

e HUD has provided over 1.0 million lower-income Americans with affordable rental housing opportunities;

e Housing Finance Agencies (HFAS) use multifamily tax-exempt housing bondsto finance more than 100,000 apartments
each year; and

* The availability of tax-exempt bond financing for affordable multifamily housing to be owned by private, for-profit
developersineach statein each calendar year islimited by the statewidevol ume cap distributed asdescribed in Section 146
of the Internal Revenue Code; this private activity bond financing is based on state population and indexed to inflation.

*  Thesupply of rental unitsis expected to fall short of demand with apartment vacancies continuing to decline.

In addition to tax-exempt revenue bonds, the federal government promotes affordable housing through the use of LIHTCs for
affordable multifamily rental housing. The syndication and sale of LIHTCs along with tax-exempt bond financing is attractive
to devel opers of affordable housing because it helps them raise equity and debt financing for their projects. Under this program,
developers that receive an allocation of private activity bonds will aso receive an allocation of federal LIHTCs as a method to
encourage the devel opment of affordable multifamily housing. The Partnership doesnot investin LIHTCs, but is attracted to tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds that are issued in association with federal LIHTC syndications becausein order to be eligible for
federal LIHTCs a property must either be newly constructed or substantially rehabilitated and; therefore, may be less likely to
become functionally obsolete in the near term than an older property. There are various requirements in order to be eligible for
federal LIHTCs, including rent and tenant income restrictions. In general, the property owner must elect to set aside either 40%
or more of the property's residential units for occupancy by individuals whose income is 60% or less of the area median gross
income or 20% or more of the property's residential units for occupancy by individuals whose income is 50% or less of the area
median grossincome. These units remain subject to these set aside requirements for aminimum of 30 years.

The 2008 Housing Act simplified and expanded the use of LIHTCs and tax-exempt bond financing for low-income multifamily
housing industry. Additionaly, it exempted newly issued tax-exempt private activity bonds from Alternative Minimum
Tax. Previoudly, these tax-exempt private activity bonds were Alternative Minimum Tax preference items for individual
taxpayers. We believe these changes should enhance the Partnership's opportunities for making investmentsin accordance with
itsinvestment criteria.



Current credit markets and general economic issues have had a significant negative impact on these types of transactions. At this
time very few LIHTC syndication and tax-exempt bond financing transactions are being completed. While these types of
transactions represent along-term market opportunity for the Partnership, they are not the current investment focus.

Effects of Recent Credit M arkets and Economic Conditions

The disruptionsin domestic and international financial markets, and the resulting restrictions on the availability of debt financing
that had prevailed since 2008 began to subside in 2010. While economic trends show signs of a stabilization of the economy and
debt availability has increased significantly from two years ago, overall availability remains limited and the cost of credit may
continue to be adversely impacted. These conditions, in our view, will continue to create potentia investment opportunities for
the Partnership. Many participantsin the multifamily housing debt sector either reduced their participation in the market or were
forcedtoliquidate someor all of their existing portfolioinvestmentsin order to meet their liquidity needs. Webelievethiscontinues
to create opportunitiesto acquire existing tax-exempt bondsfrom distressed holders at attractiveyields. The Partnership continues
to evaluate potential investments in bonds which are available on the secondary market. We believe many of these bonds will
meet our investment criteria and that we have a unique ability to analyze and close on these opportunities while maintaining our
ability and willingness to also participate in primary market transactions.

Current credit and real estate market conditions al so create opportunitiesto acquire quality MF Properties from distressed owners
andlenders. Our ability to restructure existing debt, together with the ability to improve the operations of the apartment properties
through our affiliated property management company, can position these MF Propertiesfor an eventua financing with tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds meeting our investment criteria and that will be supported by a valuable and well-run apartment
property. We believe we can selectively acquire MF Properties, restructure debt and improve operationsin order to create value
to our unitholders in the form of a strong tax-exempt bond investment.

On the other hand, continued economic weakness in some markets may limit our ability to access additional debt financing that
the Partnership uses to partialy finance its investment portfolio or otherwise meet its liquidity requirements. The inability to
access debt financing may result in adverse effects on our financial condition and results of operations. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to finance additional acquisitions of tax-exempt bonds through either additional equity or debt
financing. Although the consequences of market and economic conditions and their impact on our ability to pursue our plan to
grow through investments in additional tax-exempt housing bonds are not fully known, we do not anticipate that our existing
assetswill be adversely affected inthelong-term.  Inaddition, the economic conditionsincluding higher level s of unempl oyment,
lack of job growth and low home mortgage interest rates have had a negative effect on some of the apartment properties which
collateralize our tax-exempt bond investments and our MF Properties in the form of lower occupancy during the past two
years. Overall economic occupancy (which is adjusted to reflect rental concessions, delinquent rents and non-revenue units such
asmodel unitsand employeeunits) of the apartment propertiesthat the Partnership hasfinanced with tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds was approximately 81% during both 2010 as compared to 84% during 2009. Overall economic occupancy of the MF
Properties has remained at approximately 83% during both years 2010 and 2009. These issues may continue to negatively affect
property operations and profitability in the shortterm. Weexpect that property operationswill improve in 2011 and 2012 and that
rental rate and occupancy trends will be positive.

Financing Arrangements

The Partnership may finance the acquisition of additional tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds through the reinvestment of cash
flow, theissuance of additional unitsor with debt financing collateralized by our existing portfolio of tax-exempt mortgagerevenue
bonds, including the securitization of these bonds.

Debt Financing. At December 31, 2010, the Partnership has outstanding debt financing of $95.6 million secured by 13 tax-exempt
mortgagerevenuebondswith atotal par valueof $125.6 million plusapproximately $15.2 millioninrestricted cash. Our operating
policy isto maintain alevel of debt financing between 40% and 60% of the total par value of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond portfolio. Asof December 31, 2010, the debt outstanding rel ated to thetotal par value of the Partnerships' total bond portfolio
of approximately $189.3 million results in a leverage ratio of 51%. The outstanding debt financing is a Tax-Exempt Bond
Securitization facility (“TEBS") with Freddie Mac (see Note 9). Additionally, the MF Properties are encumbered by mortgage
loans with an aggregate principal balance of approximately $10.6 million. These mortgage |oans mature at various times from
November 2011 through November 2013 (see Note 10). The total debt financing plus mortgage loans of $106.2 million results
in aleverageratio to Total Assets of 44%.



Equity Financing. Beginningin 2007, the Partnership hasissued BUCsfrom timeto timeto raise additional equity capital to fund
investment opportunities. Through December 31, 2010, the Partnership had issued atotal of 20,285,000 additional BUCs raising
net proceeds of approximately $108.2 million after payment of an underwriter’ sdiscount and other offering costs of approximately
$7.8 million. In April 2010, a Registration Statement on Form S-3 was declared effective by SEC under which the Partnership
may offer up to $200.0 million of additional BUCs from time to time. The most recent issuance, included above, was completed
in April 2010. The Partnership issued an additional 8,280,000 BUCs through an underwritten public offering at a public offering
price of $5.37 per BUC pursuant to this new Registration Statement. Net proceeds realized by the Partnership from the issuance
of these BUCs were approximately $41.6 million after payment of an underwriter's discount and other offering costs of
approximately $2.8 million (see Note 11).

Recent Developments

Bond Acquisitions. In February 2011, the Partnership acquired the Briarwood Manor Apartments tax-exempt private activity
mortgage revenue bond for approximately $4.5 million which represented 100% of the bond issuance. The bond's approximate
outstanding par value is $5.5 million and earns interest at an annual rate of 5.3% with a monthly interest and principal payment
and stated maturity date of June 1, 2038. Based on the purchase price discount, the bond will yield approximately 7.0% to the
Partnership. The bond was issued for the construction of the Briarwood Manor Apartments, a 100 unit multifamily apartment
complex located in Montclair, California, in conjunctionwith the syndication of LIHTCs. Thebond doesnot providefor contingent
interest.

In November 2010, the Partnership acquired the Autumn Pines A partments tax-exempt private activity mortgage revenue bond
for approximately $12.3 million which represented 100% of the bond issuance. The bond's approximate outstanding par valueis
$13.4 million and earns interest at an annual rate of 5.8% with a monthly interest and principal payment and stated maturity date
of October 1, 2046. Based on the purchase price discount, the bond will yield approximately 7.0% to the Partnership. The bond
was issued for the construction of the Autumn Pines Apartments, a 250 unit multifamily apartment complex located in Humble,
Texas, in conjunction with the syndication of LIHTCs. The bond does not provide for contingent interest.

MF Property Sale. In June 2010, the Company completed a salestransaction whereby four of the MF Properties, Crescent Village,
Post Woods (I and 11) and Willow Bend apartments in Ohio (the “Ohio Properties’), were sold to three new ownership entities
controlled by an unaffiliated not-for-profit entity. The Company acquired 100% of the $18.3 million tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds issued by the Ohio Housing Finance Agency as part of aplan of financing for the acquisition and rehabilitation of the Ohio
Properties. The tax-exempt mortgage bonds secured by the Ohio Properties were acquired by the Company at par and consisted
of two series. The Series A bond has a par value of $14.7 million and bears interest at an annual rate of 7.0%. The Series B bond
has a par value of $3.6 million and bears interest at an annual interest rate of 10.0%. Both series of bonds mature in June 2050.
The Company had previously acquired a99% interest in the Ohio Propertiesaspart of itsstrategy of acquiring existing multifamily
apartment properties that it expects will be partially financed with new tax-exempt mortgage bonds at the time the properties
become eligible for the issuance of additional LIHTCs. In addition to the new tax-exempt bonds acquired by the Company, the
plan of financing for the acquisition included other subordinated debt issued by the Company. The new owners ultimately plan
to sell limited partnership interestsin the properties and syndicate LIHT Cs as part of the overall plan of finance. The new owners
have not contributed any capital to the transaction and the Company has effectively provided 100% of the capital structure to the
new owners as part of the sale transaction. Pursuant to accounting guidance for property, plant, and equipment - real estate sales,
the sale and restructure does not meet the criteriafor derecognition of the properties or full accrual accounting for thegain. The
guidance requires sufficient equity capital as part of a sales transaction to indicate a commitment from the buyer (typicaly a
minimum of 3 to 5% investment by the new owners). As the buyer has no equity capital in this transaction and the property
operations are the current support for the debt service, the Company, in substance, remains the owner for accounting purposes.
Assuch, the Company will continueto consolidate the Ohio Propertiesasif the salewasnot completed. Under the salesagreement,
the Ohio propertieswere sold for atotal purchase price of $16.2 million. Cash received by the selling limited partnerships as part
of the sale transaction represents a gain on the sale transaction of approximately $1.8 million. The properties will continue to be
presented as MF Properties and no gain will be recognized until such time as the transaction meets the criteria for derecognition
of the properties and gain recognition (see Note 5 and 6).

Evaluation of Specific Bond Holdings. The Partnership continues to monitor the three tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds for
which certain actions may be necessary to protect the Partnership's position as a secured bondholder and lender. These bonds are
Woodland Park, Residences at DeCordova ("DeCordova') (formerly known as ("f/k/a") The Gardens of DeCordova) and
Residences at Weatherford ("Weatherford") (f/k/aThe Gardens of Weatherford). Asof December 31, 2010, Woodland Park owes
the Partnership approximately $15.7 million under tax-exempt bonds and approximately $914,000 under taxableloans; DeCordova
owes the Partnership approximately $4.9 million under tax-exempt bonds and $648,000 under taxable loans; and Weatherford
owes the Partnership approximately $4.7 million under tax-exempt bonds and $1.1 million under taxable loans. The following
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is adiscussion of the circumstances related to each of these bonds.

Woodland Park. The construction of Woodland Park was completed in November 2008 and lease-up continues, however,
the property has not yet reached stabilization which is defined in the bond documents as the generation of a 1.15:1 debt
service coverage ratio for six straight months. Additionally, there was insufficient funds on deposit with the bond trustee
to make the debt service payment of approximately $452,000 on the bonds which was due on May 3, 2010 and the property
owner did not provide additional capital to fund the shortfall. Asaresult, a payment default on the bonds occurred. In
order to protect its investment, the Partnership issued a formal notice of default through the bond trustee and started the
foreclosure process. The foreclosure process is expected to be complete in the first half of 2011. Thisaction will allow a
new property owner to re-syndicate the LIHTCs associated with this property. If the LIHTCs can be successfully re-
syndicated, it will provide additional capital to the project which can be used to support debt service payments on the tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds until property operations improve to the point that sufficient cash is generated to pay any
past due amounts on the bonds aswell as ongoing debt service. If the re-syndication is not successful, the Partnership may
pursue other options including making additional taxable loans to the property or completing the foreclosure process and
taking direct ownership of the property. The Partnership believesthat the most significant issue in the slow lease-up of the
property and its failure to achieve stabilization has been the 100% set aside of the rental units for tenants that make less
than 60% of the area median income. At the request of the Partnership, in April 2010, the property owner reduced the
number of units set aside for affordable tenantsto 75% and began leasing 59 unitsto market rate tenants. Additionaly, the
property owner has agreed that, if needed to stabilize the property, it would further reduce the units set aside for affordable
tenants to 60% thereby making an additional 35 units available to market rate tenants. As of December 31, 2009, the
property had 116 units leased out of total available units of 236, or 49% physical occupancy. Asof December 31, 2010,
the property had 190 units leased out of total available units of 236, or 81% physical occupancy. Based on the level of
leasing activity resulting from the change in the mix of affordable and market rate tenants, the Partnership continues to
believe that Woodland is capable of reaching stabilization.

Residences at DeCordova. This property is a senior (55+) affordable housing project located in Granbury, Texas in the
Dallas-Fort Worth area. Construction was completed in April 2009 and lease-up continues, however, the property has not
yet reached stabilization which is defined in the bond documents as the generation of a 1.15:1 debt service coverage ratio
for six straight months. In January 2010, the Partnership issued a Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin
foreclosure proceduresin order to remove the limited partner. Such notice wasissued in February 2010 and the foreclosure
was completed in March 2010. At that time the general partner was allowed to continuein that capacity and anew limited
partner was admitted. Theforeclosurewasareconsideration event under the variableinterest entity guidance and asaresult
of the reevaluation, the bond was eliminated and the entity which owns the property was consolidated as a VI E effective
March 2010. At the request of the Partnership, in April 2010, the property owners reduced the number of units set aside
for affordabl e tenants to 60% and began leasing 30 unitsto market rate tenants. The property continued to experience slow
lease-up and in December 2010, the Partnership issued a second Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin
foreclosureproceduresin order to remove both thegeneral partner and thelimited partner and take ownership of the property.
This second foreclosure was completed in February 2011 at which time the ownership of the property was taken by the
Partnership. Asof December 31, 2009, the property had 31 units leased out of total available units of 76, or 41% physical
occupancy. Asof December 31, 2010, the property had 65 units leased out of total available units of 76, or approximately
86% physical occupancy and an additional eight leases are pending. At this time the Partnership expects to operate the
property as a market rate apartment property. Once the property is leased up and stabilized the Partnership will evauate
its optionsin order to recoup its investment in DeCordova.

Residences at Weatherford. Residences at Weatherford are currently under construction and will contain 76 units upon
completion. This property is a senior (55+) affordable housing project located in Weatherford, Texas in the Dallas-Fort
Worth area. At this time infrastructure construction activities have been substantially completed but no construction has
begun on the actual apartment buildings. In January 2010, the Partnership issued a Notice of Default through the bond
trustee and began foreclosure procedures to remove the limited partner. Such notice was issued in February 2010 and the
foreclosure was completed in March 2010. At that time the general partner was allowed to continue in that capacity and a
new limited partner was admitted. The foreclosure was a reconsideration event under the variable interest entity guidance
and asaresult of the reevaluation, the bond was eliminated and the entity that ownsthe property was consolidated asaVIE
effectivein March 2010. Through this process the Partnership anticipated that the new property owner would recapitalize
the property by pursuing an alternative plan of financing. Specifically, the Partnership worked with the general partner of
the owner to identify available Tax Credit Assistance Program (“TCAP”) funding through application to the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA”). In March 2010, a TCAP Written Agreement with TDHCA
was approved and entered into which committed TCAPfunds to the project pending the completion of formal agreements.
Formal agreements and funding were originally expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2010, however, the
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process was delayed dueto the large number of transactions to be closed by TDHCA. During the delay, TDHCA identified
certain issuesin funding and compliance with other projectsin which the General Partner of Residences at Weatherfordis
involved. Asaresult of these issues, in October 2010, TDHCA issued a Notice of Termination of TCAP Funding to the
General Partner. Together with the General Partner, the Company unsuccessfully appealed the termination. Based on the
termination notice, the Company has determined that the property fixed assets of Residences at Weatherford and the
associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is eliminated in consolidation was impaired. As of December 31,
2010 the property fixed assets, consisting of land and land improvements, and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond owned by the Partnership have been written down. The resulting impairment charge and provision for loan losses of
approximately $3.3 million is attributable to the unitholders. Asaresult of the failure of the property owner to secure an
alternative plan of financing, the Partnership issued asecond Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin foreclosure
procedures in order to remove both the General Partner and the limited partner and take ownership of the property. This
second foreclosurewas completedin February 2011 at whichtimethe ownership of the property wastaken by the Partnership.
The Partnership has taken over the project and intends to fund the construction and stabilization of the project. Upon the
completion of construction, the Partnership expects to operate the property as a market rate apartment property. Once the
property isleased up and stabilized the Partnership will evaluateitsoptionsin order to recoup itsinvestment in Weatherford.

The Partnership evaluated all its bond holdings, including the three discussed above, for an other-than-temporary declinein value
and any related taxable loans for potential impairment as of December 31, 2010 (see Note 2 for discussion of our impairment
testing method). Based on this evaluation, the Partnership has concluded that no other-than-temporary impairment of its tax-
exempt bond holdings existed at December 31, 2010 for Woodland Park and DeCordova, but an impairment of approximately
$2.7 millionwasrecorded for Weatherfordduring 2010. The Partnership also concluded that thetaxableloansmadeto DeCordova
were not impaired, however, an allowance for loan loss of approximately $900,000 was recorded to reserve for the entire taxable
loan balance due from Woodland Park. The Partnership will continue to monitor these investments for changesin circumstances
that might warrant an impairment charge.

Management and Employees

The Partnership is managed by its general partner, AmericaFirst Capital AssociatesLimited Partnership Two (“AFCA 2") which
is an affiliate of The Burlington Capital Group LLC ("Burlington™). The Partnership has no employees, executive officers or
directors. Certain services are provided to the Partnership by employees of Burlington, which is the general partner of AFCA 2,
and the Partnership reimburses Burlington for its allocated share of these salaries and benefits. The Partnership is not charged,
and does not reimburse Burlington, for the services performed by executive officers of Burlington.

Competition

The Partnership competes with private investors, lending institutions, trust funds, investment partnerships and other entities with
objectives similar to the Partnership for the acquisition of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and other investments. This
competition could reduce the availability of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds for acquisition and reduce the interest rate that
issuers pay on these bonds.

Because the Partnership holds tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds secured entirely by multifamily residential properties and
holds an interest in the MF Properties, the Partnership may be considered to be in competition with other residential real estatein
the same geographic areas. 1n each city in which the properties financed by the Partnership's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
owned by the Partnership or MF Properties are located, such properties compete with a substantial number of other multifamily
properties. Multifamily propertiesalso compete with single-family housing that is either owned or leased by potential tenants. To
compete effectively, the apartment properties financed or owned by the Partnership must offer quality apartments at competitive
rental rates. In order to maintain occupancy rates and attract quality tenants, the Partnership's apartment properties may also offer
rental concessions, such asfreerent to new tenantsfor astated period. These apartment properties al so compete by offering quality
apartments in attractive locations and that provide tenants with amenities such as recreationa facilities, garages and pleasant
landscaping.



Environmental Matters

The Partnership believesthat each of the MF Properties and the properties collateralizing its tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
are in compliance, in al material respects, with federal, state and loca regulations regarding hazardous waste and other
environmental matters and is not aware of any environmental contamination at any of such properties that would require any
material capital expenditure by the underlying properties, and therefore the Partnership, for the remediation thereof.

Tax Status

The Partnership is classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and accordingly, it makes no provision for income
taxes. Thedistributive share of the Partnership'sincome, deductions and creditsisincluded in each unitholder'sincometax return.

The Partnership's subsidiaries are “C” corporations for income tax purposes and file separate income tax returns. Therefore, the
Partnership is only subject to income taxes on this investment to the extent it receives dividends from the subsidiaries.

The VIEswhich are reported on a consolidated basis with the Partnership for GAAP reporting purposes as described bel ow under
“Effect of Implementation of Guidance Changes on Consolidationson Financial Reporting” are separate legal entitieswho record
and report income taxes based upon their individual legal structure which may include corporations, limited partnerships and
limited liability companies. The Partnership does not presently believe that the consolidation of VIEsfor reporting under GAAP
will impact the Partnership's tax status, amounts reported to unitholders on IRS Form K-1, the Partnership's ability to distribute
tax-exempt income to unitholders, the current level of quarterly distributions or the tax-exempt status of the underlying mortgage
revenue bonds.

Effect of Implementation of the Guidance Changes on Consolidations on Financial Reporting

The Partnership is required to consolidate the assets, liabilities, results of operations and cash flows of certain entities that meet
the definition of a VIE into the Partnership's financial statements under the consolidation guidance for variable interest entities.
Management has determined that six of the entities which own multifamily apartment properties financed by the Partnership's
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are VIES. Because management determined that the Partnership is the primary beneficiary
of each of these VIES pursuant to the terms of each tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond and the criteria within the consolidation
guidance, the Partnership consolidated the assets, liabilities and results of operations of these VIES multifamily properties into
the Partnership's financial statements. Transactions and accounts between the Partnership and the consolidated VIEs, including
the indebtedness underlying the tax-exempt mortgage bonds and taxabl e |oans secured by the properties owned by the VIEs, have
been eliminated in consolidation.

All financial information in this Form 10-K presented on the basis of Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the
United States of America, isthat of the Partner ship and the VIEson a consolidated basis. Werefer to the Partnership, its
wholly owned subsidiaries (each a “Holding Company”), and the consolidated VIEs throughout this Form 10-K as the
“Company”. Werefer tothe Partnership and Holding Company, without consolidation of the VI Es, asthe Partner ship.”

General Information

We are a Delaware limited partnership. Our general partner is AFCA 2, whose general partner is Burlington. Since 1984,
Burlington has specialized in the management of investment funds, many of which were formed to acquirereal estate investments
such as tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, mortgage securities and multifamily real estate properties. Burlington maintainsits
principal executiveofficesat 1004 Farnam Street, Suite 400, Omaha, Nebraska68102, and itstel ephone number is(402) 444-1630.

Wedo not have any employees of our own. Employees of Burlington, acting through our general partner, are responsible for our
operations and we reimburse Burlington for the all ocated sal aries and benefits of these employees and for other expensesincurred
in running our business operations. In connection with the operation of the Partnership, our general partner is entitled to an
administrative fee in an amount equal to 0.45% per annum of the principal amount of the revenue bonds, other tax-exempt
investments and taxable mortgage loans held by the Partnership. Ten of the tax-exempt revenue bonds held by the Partnership
provide for the payment of this administrative fee to the general partner by the owner of the financed property. When the
administrative fee is payable by a property owner, it is subordinated to the payment of all base interest to the Partnership on the
tax-exempt revenue bond on that property. Our Agreement of Limited Partnership provides that the administrative fee will be
paid directly by the Partnership with respect to any investments for which the administrative fee is not payable by the property
owner or athird party. Inaddition, our Agreement of Limited Partnership providesthat the Partnership will pay the administrative
fee to the general partner with respect to any foreclosed mortgage bonds.
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Our genera partner or its affiliates may also earn mortgage placement fees in connection with the identification and evaluation
of additional investmentsthat we acquire. Any mortgage placement feeswill be paid by the owners of the properties financed by
the acquired mortgage revenue bonds out of bond proceeds. The amount of mortgage placement fees, if any, will be subject to
negotiation between the general partner or its affiliates and such property owners.

Properties Management is an affiliate of Burlington that is engaged in the management of apartment complexes. Properties
Management currently manages the eight MF Properties and nine of the properties whose tax-exempt bonds are held by the
Partnership and earns a fee paid out of property revenues. Properties Management may also seek to become the manager of
apartment complexes financed by additional mortgage bonds acquired by the Partnership, subject to negotiation with the owners
of such properties. If the Partnership acquires ownership of any property through foreclosure of a revenue bond, Properties
Management may provide property management services for such property and, in such case, earn afee payable out of property
revenues.

Our solelimited partner isAmericaFirst Fiduciary Corporation Number Five, aNebraskacorporation. BUCsrepresent assignments
by the sole limited partner of its rights and obligations as a limited partner.

Information Available on Website
The Partnership's annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and press releases

areavailablefree of chargeat www.ataxfund.com as soon asreasonably practical after they arefiledwiththe SEC. Theinformation
on the website is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Thefinancial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Partnership are affected by various factors, many of which are
beyond the Partnership's control. These include the following:

Cash distributions from the Partner ship may change depending on the amount of cash available for distribution.

Cash distributions made by the Partnership to unitholders may increase or decrease at the determination of the General Partner
based on its assessment of the amount of cash available to the Partnership for this purpose. Beginning with the distribution for
the second quarter 2009, the Partnership's annual distribution was reduced from $0.54 per unit to $0.50 per unit dueto the General
Partner's determination that higher borrowing costs and other factors would reduce the cash available to the Partnership to make
distributions. If the Partnership's actual results of operations vary from current projections and the actual cash generated is less
than the new regular distribution, the Partnership may need to reduce the distribution rate further. Any changein our distribution
policy could have a material adverse effect on the market price of units.

Thereceipt of interest and principal paymentson our tax-exempt mortgagerevenuebondswill be affected by theeconomic
results of the underlying multifamily properties.

Although our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds areissued by state or local housing authorities, they are not obligations of these
governmental entitiesand are not backed by any taxing authority. Instead, each of theserevenue bondsisbacked by anon-recourse
loan made to the owner of the underlying apartment complex and is secured by afirst mortgage lien on the property. Because of
the non-recourse nature of the underlying mortgage loans, the sol e source of cash to pay base and contingent interest on therevenue
bond, and to ultimately pay the principal amount of the bond, is the net cash flow generated by the operation of the financed
property and the net proceeds from the ultimate sale or refinancing of the property, except in limited cases where a property owner
has provided a limited guarantee of certain payments. This makes our investments in these mortgage revenue bonds subject to
the kinds of risks usually associated with direct investmentsin multifamily real estate. |f aproperty is unable to sustain net cash
flow at alevel necessary to pay its debt service obligations on our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond on the property, a default
may occur. Net cash flow and net sale proceeds from a particular property are applied only to debt service payments of the
parti cular mortgagerevenue bond secured by that property and arenot avail abl eto satisfy debt service obligationson other mortgage
revenue bonds that we hold. In addition, the value of a property at the time of its sale or refinancing will be a direct function of
its perceived future profitability. Therefore, the amount of base and contingent interest that we earn on our mortgage revenue
bonds, and whether or not wewill receive the entire principal balance of the bonds as and when due, will depend to alarge degree
on the economic results of the underlying apartment complexes.
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The net cash flow from the operation of aproperty may be affected by many things, such asthe number of tenants, the rental rates,
operating expenses, the cost of repairs and maintenance, taxes, government regulation, competition from other apartment
complexes, mortgage rates for single-family housing and general and local economic conditions. 1n most of the marketsin which
the propertiesfinanced by our bondsarelocated, thereis significant competition from other apartment complexesand from single-
family housing that iseither owned or leased by potential tenants. Low mortgageinterest ratesand federal tax creditsmakesingle-
family housing more accessible to persons who may otherwise rent apartments.

Thevalue of the propertiesisthe only source of repayment of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds.

The principal of most of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds does not fully amortize over their terms. This meansthat all or
some of the balance of the mortgage loans underlying these bonds will be repaid as alump-sum “balloon” payment at the end of
the term. The ability of the property owners to repay the mortgage loans with balloon payments is dependent upon their ability
to sell the properties securing our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds or obtain adequate refinancing. The mortgage revenue
bonds are not personal obligations of the property owners, and we rely solely on the value of the properties securing these bonds
for security. Similarly, if atax-exempt mortgage revenue bond goesinto default, our only recourseisto foreclose on theunderlying
multifamily property. If the value of the underlying property securing the bond isless than the outstanding principal balance and
accrued interest on the bond, we will suffer aloss.

In the event a property securing atax-exempt mortgage revenue bond is not sold prior to the maturity or remarketing of the bond,
any contingent interest payable from the net sale or refinancing proceeds of the underlying property will be determined on the
basisof the appraised value of theunderlying property. Real estate appraisalsrepresent only an estimate of the value of the property
being apprai sed and are based on subj ective determinations, such asthe extent to which the properties used for comparison purposes
are comparable to the property being evaluated and the rate at which a prospective purchaser would capitalize the cash flow of
the property to determine a purchase price. Accordingly, such appraisals may result in us realizing less contingent interest from
a tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond than we would have realized had the underlying property been sold.

Thereisadditional credit risk when we make a taxable loan on a property.

The taxable mortgage |oans that we make to owners of the apartment properties that secure tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
held by us are non-recourse obligations of the property owner. Asaresult, the sole source of principal and interest payments on
these taxable loans is the net cash flow generated by these properties or the net proceeds from the sale of these properties. The
net cash flow from the operation of a property may be affected by many things as discussed above. In addition, any payment of
principal andinterest on ataxableloan onaparticular property will be subordinateto payment of all principal andinterest (including
contingent interest) on the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond secured by the same property. Asaresult, there may be a higher
risk of default on the taxable loans than on the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds. If a property is unable to sustain
net cash flow at alevel necessary to pay current debt service obligations on the taxable loan on such property, a default may
occur. While these taxable loans are secured by the underlying properties, in general, the Partnership does not expect to pursue
foreclosure or other remedies against a property upon default of ataxable mortgage loan if the property is not in default on the
tax-exempt bonds financing the property.

There arerisks associated with our strategy of acquiring ownership interestsin MF Propertiesin anticipation of future
tax-exempt bond financings of these projects.

To facilitate our investment strategy of acquiring additional tax-exempt mortgage bonds secured by multifamily apartment
properties, we may acquire ownership positions in MF Properties that we expect to ultimately sell in a syndication of LIHTCs
after the expiration of the compliance period relating to existing LIHTCs issued with respect to the MF Properties. Our plan is
to provide tax-exempt mortgage financing to the new property owners at the time of a syndication of new LIHTCsin connection
with arehabilitation of theseMF Properties. Current credit market and general economic conditionshavehad asignificant negative
effect on the market for LIHTC syndications and, as aresult, few LIHTC syndications are being completed at thistime. For this
and other reasons, thereisno assurance that the Partnership will be ableto sell itsinterestsin the MF Properties after the applicable
LIHTC compliance period. In addition, the value of the Partnership'sinterest in MF Properties will be affected by the economic
performance of the MF Properties and other factors generally affecting the value of residential rental properties. Asaresult, there
isno assurancethe Partnership will not incur alossuponthe sale of itsinterestin an MF Property. Inaddition, thereisno assurance
that we will be able to acquire tax-exempt bonds on the MF Propertieseven if we are ableto sell our interestsin the MF Properties
in connection with the syndication of new LIHTCs. During the time the Partnership owns an interest in an MF Property, any net
income it receives from these MF Properties will not be exempt from federal or state income taxation.
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We may suffer adver se consequences from changing interest rates.

Wehavefinanced the acquisition of some of our assetsusing variable-ratedebt financing. Theinterest that wepay onthisfinancing
fluctuates with a specific interest rate index. All of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds bear interest at fixed rates and,
notwithstanding the contingent interest feature on some of these bonds, the amount of interest we earn on these bonds will not
increase with ageneral riseininterest rates. Accordingly, anincreasein our interest expense dueto an increase in the interest rate
index used for our variable rate debt financing will reduce the amount of cash we have available for distribution to unitholders
and may affect the market value of our units.

Anincreaseininterest rates could al so decrease the value of our tax-exempt mortgage bonds. A decreasein the value of our tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds could a so decrease the amount we could realize on the sal e of our investments and would thereby
decrease the amount of funds available for distribution to our unitholders.

During periods of low prevailing interest rates, the interest rates we earn on new tax exempt mortgage revenue bonds that we
acquire may belower than theinterest rates on our existing portfolio of tax-exempt bonds. Tothe extent wefinancetheacquisition
of additional tax-exempt bonds through the issuance of additional units or from the proceeds from the sale of existing tax-exempt
bonds and we earn alower interest rate on these additional bonds, the amount of cash available for distribution on aper unit basis
may be reduced.

Weare subject to variousrisks associated with our derivative agreements.

We use derivative instruments, such as interest rate caps, to mitigate the risks we are exposed to as a result of changing interest
rates. However, thereisno assurance that these instrumentswill fully insulate the Partnership from theinterest rate risksto which
it isexposed. In addition, there are costs associated with these derivative instruments and there is no assurance these costs will
not ultimately turn out to exceed the losses we would have suffered, if any, had these instruments not beenin place. Thereisaso
arisk that a counterparty to such an instrument will be unable to perform its obligations to the Partnership. If aliquid secondary
market does not exist for these instruments, we may be required to maintain a position until exercise or expiration, which could
result in losses to the Partnership. In addition, we are required to record the fair value of these derivative instruments on our
financial statements by recording changesin their values as interest earnings or expense. This can result in significant period to
period volatility in the Partnership's reported net income over the term of these instruments.

Therearerisksassociated with debt financing programsthat involve securitization of our tax-exempt bonds.

We have obtained debt financing through the securitization of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and may obtain this type
of debt financing inthefuture. Theterms of these securitization programsdiffer, but in general requirethat we deposit tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds into a trust or other special purpose entity that issues a senior security to unaffiliated investors and a
residual interest to the Partnership. Thetrust or other entity receives al of the interest payments from its underlying tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds from which it paysinterest on the senior security at avariablerate. Astheholder of theresidual interest,
the Partnership is entitled to any remaining tax-exempt interest received by the trust after it has paid the full amount of interest
due on the senior security and all of the expenses of thetrust, including variousfeesto the trustee, remarketing agents and liquidity
providers. Specific risks generally associated with these bond securitization programs include the following:

Changesin short-term interest rates can adversely affect the cost of a bond securitization financing.

The interest rate payable on the senior securities resets periodically based on a specified index usualy tied to interest
rates on short-term instruments. In addition, because the senior securities may typically be tendered back to the trust,
causing the trust to remarket the senior securities from timeto time, an increase in interest rates may require an increase
totheinterest rate paid on the senior securitiesin order to successfully remarket these securities. Any increaseininterest
rate payable on the senior securities will result in more of the underlying tax-exempt bond interest being used to pay
interest on the senior securities leaving less tax-exempt bond interest available to the Partnership. As aresult, higher
short-term interest rates will reduce, and could even eliminate, the Partnership's return on aresidual interest in thistype
of financing.

Payments on theresidual interestsin these financing structures are subordinate to payments on the senior securities
and to payment of trust expenses and no party guarantees the payment of any amounts under the residual interests.

The residual interests in atrust or other special purpose entity used for these types of financing are subordinate to the
senior securities sold to investors. Asaresult, none of the tax-exempt bond interest received by such atrust will be paid
to the Partnership as the holder of aresidual interest until all payments currently due on the senior securities have been
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paid in full and other trust expenses satisfied. The holder of aresidual certificate in such a trust can look only to the
assets of the trust remaining after payment of these senior obligations for payment on the residual certificates. No third
party guarantees the payment of any amount on the residual certificates.

Termination of a bond securitization financing can occur for a number of reasonswhich could cause the Partnership
to lose the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and other collateral it pledged for such financing.

In general, thetrust or other special purpose entity formed for abond securitization financing can terminate for anumber
of different reasons relating to problems with the bonds or problems with the trust itself. Problems with the bonds that
could cause the trust to collapse include payment or other defaults or a determination that the interest on the bonds is
taxable. Problemswith atrust include a downgrade in the investment rating of the senior securities that it has issued, a
ratings downgrade of the liquidity provider for the trust, increases in short term interest rates in excess of the interest
paid on the underlying bonds, an inability to remarket the senior securities or an inability to obtain liquidity for the
trust. In each of these cases, the trust will be collapsed and the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and other collateral
held by the trusts will be sold. If the proceeds from the sale of the trust collateral are not sufficient to pay the principal
amount of the senior securities with accrued interest and the other expenses of the trusts then the Partnership will be
reguired, through its guarantee of the trusts, to fund any such shortfall. Asaresult, the Partnership, as holder of the
residual interest in the trust, may not only lose itsinvestment in the residual certificates but could also realize additional
losses in order to fully repay trust obligations to the senior securities.

An insolvency or receivership of the program sponsor could impair the Partnership'sability to recover the tax-exempt
bonds and other collateral pledged by it in connection with a bond securitization financing.

In the event the sponsor of a bond securitization financing program becomes insolvent, it could be placed in
receivership. Inthat situation, it is possible that the Partnership would not be able to recover the tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds it pledged in connection with the bond securitization financing or that it would not receive all or any of
the payments due from the trust or other special purpose entity on the residua interest held by the Partnership in such
trust or other entity.

Conditionsin the credit markets may increase our cost of borrowing or may make financing difficult to obtain, each of
which may have a material adver se effect on our results of operations and business.

Economic conditionsininternational and domestic credit markets have been, and remain, challenging. Significantly tighter credit
conditions and slower economic growth were experienced in 2010 and continued concerns about the systemic impact of high
unemployment, restricted availability of credit, declining residential and commercial real estate markets, volatile energy prices,
and overall business and consumer confidence have contributed to the economic downturn and it is unclear when and how quickly
conditions and markets will improve. As aresult of these economic conditions, the cost and availability of credit has been, and
may continue to be, adversely affected in al markets in which we operate. Concern about the stability of the markets generally
and the strength of counterparties specifically hasled many lenders and institutional investorsto reduce, and in some cases, cease,
to provide funding to borrowers. Asaresult, our access to debt and equity financing may be adversely affected. If these market
and economic conditions continue, they may limit our ability to replace or renew maturing debt financing on atimely basis and
may impair our access to capital marketsto meet our liquidity and growth regquirements which may have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds areilliquid assets and their value may decrease.

The majority of our assets consist of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds. These mortgage revenue bonds are relatively
illiquid, and there is no existing trading market for them. As a result, there are no market makers, price quotations or other
indications of adeveloped trading market for these mortgage revenue bonds. In addition, no rating has been issued on any of the
existing mortgage revenue bonds and we do not expect to obtain ratings on mortgage revenue bonds we may acquire in the
future. Accordingly, any buyer of these mortgage revenue bonds would need to perform its own due diligence prior to a
purchase. Asaresult, our ability to sell our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, and the price we may receive upon their sale,
will be affected by the number of potential buyers, the number of similar securities on the market at the time and a number of
other market conditions. Asaresult, such asale could result in alossto us.
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Therent restrictionsand occupant incomelimitationsimposed on propertiesfinanced by our tax-exempt mortgagerevenue
bonds and on our MF Properties may limit the revenues of such properties.

All of the apartment properties securing our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and the MF Propertiesin which our subsidiaries
hold indirect interests are subject to certain federal, state and/or local requirements with respect to the permissibleincome of their
tenants. Sincefederal rent subsidiesare not generally available on these properties, rents must be charged on adesignated portion
of the units at alevel to permit these units to be continuously occupied by low or moderate income persons or families. Asa
result, these rents may not be sufficient to cover al operating costs with respect to these units and debt service on the applicable
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond. Thismay forcethe property owner to charge rents on the remaining unitsthat are higher than
they would be otherwise and may, therefore, exceed competitive rents. Thismay adversely affect the occupancy rate of a property
securing an investment and the property owner's ability to service its debt.

Thepropertiesfinanced by certain of our tax-exempt mortgagerevenuebondsarenot completely insured against damages
from hurricanes and other major storms.

Five of the multifamily housing propertiesfinanced by tax-exempt bonds held by the Partnership arelocated in areasthat are prone
to damage from hurricanes and other major storms. The current insurable value of these five properties is approximately
$78.1 million. Due to the significant losses incurred by insurance companies in recent years due to damages from hurricanes,
many property and casualty insurers now require property owners to assume the risk of first loss on alarger percentage of their
property's value. In general, the current insurance policies on the five properties financed by the Partnership that are located in
areasrated for hurricane and storm exposure carry a 5% deductible on the insurable value of the properties. Asaresult, if any of
these properties were damaged in a hurricane or other major storm, the amount of uninsured losses could be significant and the
property owner may not havetheresourcestofully rebuild the property and thiscould result in adefault on the tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds secured by the property. Inaddition, the damagesto aproperty may result in al or aportion of the rental units not
being rentablefor aperiod of time. Unlessaproperty owner carriesrental interruption insurance, thisloss of rental income would
reduce the cash flow available to pay base or contingent interest on the Partnership's tax-exempt bonds collateralized by these
properties.

Thepropertiessecuringour revenuebondsor theM F Propertiesmay besubject toliability for environmental contamination
which could increasetherisk of default on such bondsor loss of our investment.

The owner or operator of real property may becomeliablefor the costs of removal or remediation of hazardous substancesrel eased
onits property. Variousfederal, state and local laws often impose such liability without regard to whether the owner or operator
of real property knew of, or wasresponsiblefor, the release of such hazardous substances. Wecannot assure you that the properties
that secure our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds or the MF Properties in which our subsidiaries hold indirect interests, will
not be contaminated. The costs associated with the remediation of any such contamination may be significant and may exceed
the value of a property or result in the property owner defaulting on the revenue bond secured by the property or otherwise result
in aloss of our investment in a property.

I f weacquireowner ship of apartment propertieswewill besubject toall of therisksnormally associated with theowner ship
of commercial real estate.

We may acquire ownership of apartment complexes financed by tax-exempt bonds held by us in the event of a default on such
bonds. Wemay also acquireindirect ownership of MF Propertieson atemporary basisin order to facilitate the eventual acquisition
by us of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds on these apartment properties. In either case, during the time we own an apartment
complex, we will generate taxable income or losses from the operations of such property rather than tax exempt interest. In
addition, we will be subject to al of the risks normally associated with the operation of commercial real estate including declines
in property value, occupancy and rental rates and increases in operating expenses. We may also be subject to government
regulations, natural disasters and environmental issues, any of which could have an adverse effect on the Partnership's financial
results and ability to make distributions to unithol ders.

Thereareanumber of risksrelated tothe construction of multifamily apartment propertiesthat may affect thetax-exempt
bondsissued to finance these properties.

We may invest in tax-exempt revenue bonds secured by multifamily housing properties which are still under
construction. Construction of such properties generally takes approximately twelve to eighteen months. The principa risk
associated with construction lending is that construction of the property will be substantially delayed or never completed. This
may occur for anumber of reasonsincluding (i) insufficient financing to compl ete the project due to underestimated construction
costs or cost overruns; (ii) failure of contractors or subcontractors to perform under their agreements; (iii) inability to obtain
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governmental approvals; (iv) labor disputes; and (v) adverse weather and other unpredictable contingencies beyond the control
of the developer. While we may be able to protect ourselves from some of these risks by obtaining construction completion
guarantees from devel opers, agreements of construction lenders to purchase our bonds if construction is not completed on time,
and/or payment and performance bonds from contractors, we may not be able to do so in all cases or such guarantees or bonds
may not fully protect usin the event aproperty isnot completed. In other cases, we may decideto forego certain types of available
security if we determine that the security isnot necessary or istoo expensiveto obtainin relation to theriskscovered. If aproperty
isnot completed, or costs more to complete than anticipated, it may cause usto receive less than the full amount of interest owed
to us on the tax-exempt bond financing such property or otherwise result in a default under the mortgage loan that secures our
tax-exempt bond on the property. In such case, we may be forced to foreclose on the incomplete property and sell it in order to
recover the principal and accrued interest on our tax-exempt bond and we may suffer aloss of capital asaresult. Alternatively,
we may decide to finance the remaining construction of the property, in which event we will need to invest additional fundsinto
the property, either as equity or asataxableloan. Any return on this additional investment would not be tax-exempt. Also, if we
foreclose on a property, we will no longer receive tax-exempt interest on the bond issued to finance the property. The overall
return to the Partnership from its investment in such property is likely to be less than if the construction had been completed on
time or within budget.

Thereareanumber of risksrelated to the lease-up of newly constructed or renovated propertiesthat may affect the tax-
exempt bondsissued to finance these properties.

We may acquire tax-exempt revenue bonds issued to finance properties in various stages of construction or renovation. As
construction or renovation is completed, these propertieswill move into thelease-up phase. The lease-up of these properties may
not be completed on schedule or at anticipated rent levels, resulting in a greater risk that these investments may go into default
than investments secured by mortgages on properties that are stabilized or fully leased-up. The underlying property may not
achieve expected occupancy or debt service coverage levels. While we may require property developers to provide us with a
guarantee covering operating deficits of the property during the lease-up phase, we may not be able to do so in all cases or such
guarantees may not fully protect us in the event a property is not leased up to an adequate level of economic occupancy as
anticipated.

We have assumed certain potential liability relating to recapture of tax creditson MF Properties.

The Partnership has acquired indirect interestsin several MF Properties that generated LIHTCsfor the previous partnersin these
partnerships. When the Partnership acquires an interest in an MF Property, it generally must agree to reimburse the prior partners
for any liabilities they incur due to a recapture of LIHTCs that result from the failure to operate the MF Property in a manner
consistent with the laws and regulations relating to LIHTCs after the Partnership acquired its interest in the MF Property. The
amount of this recapture liability can be substantial.

Any futureissuances of additional units could causetheir market valueto decline.

The Partnership may issue additional unitsfrom timeto timein order to raise additional equity capital. Theissuance of additional
units could cause dilution of the existing units and a decrease in the market price of the units. In addition, if additional units are
issued but we are unableto invest the additional equity capital in assetsthat generate tax-exempt incomeat levelsat | east equivalent
to our existing assets, the amount of cash available for distribution on a per unit basis may decline.

The Partnership isnot registered under the I nvestment Company Act.

The Partnership is not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended
(the “Investment Company Act”) because it operates under an exemption therefrom. As aresult, none of the protections of the
Investment Company Act (disinterested directors, custody requirements for securities, and regulation of the relationship between
afund and its advisor) will be applicable to the Partnership.

The Partner ship engagesin transactionswith related parties.

Each of the executive officers of Burlington and four of the managers of Burlington hold equity positions in Burlington. A
subsidiary of Burlington acts asthe General Partner and manages our investments and performs administrative servicesfor usand
earns certain fees that are either paid by the properties financed by our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds or by us. Another
subsidiary of Burlington provides on-site management for many of the multifamily apartment properties that underlie our tax-
exempt bonds and each of our MF Properties and earns fees from the property owners based on the gross revenues of these
properties. The owners of the limited-purpose corporations which own four of the apartment properties financed with tax-exempt
bonds and taxableloans held by the Partnership are employees of Burlington who are not involved in the operation or management
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of the Partnership and who are not executive officers or managers of Burlington. Because of these relationships, our agreements
with Burlingtonanditssubsidiariesarerel ated-party transactions. By their nature, rel ated-party transactionsmay not be considered
to have been negotiated at arm'slength. These relationships may also cause a conflict of interest in other situations where we are
negotiating with Burlington.

Unitholders may incur tax liability if any of the interest on our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bondsis determined to be
taxable.

Certain of our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds bear interest at rates which include contingent interest. Payment of the
contingent interest depends on the amount of net cash flow generated by, and net proceeds realized from a sale of, the property
securing the bond. Dueto this contingent interest feature, an issue may arise as to whether the relationship between the property
owner and usisthat of debtor and creditor or whether we are engaged in a partnership or joint venture with the property owner. 1f
the IRS were to determine that tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds represented an equity investment in the underlying property,
the interest paid to us could be viewed as a taxable return on such investment and would not qualify as tax-exempt interest for
federal incometax purposes. Wehave obtained legal opinionsto the effect that the base interest paid on our tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes provided the interest is not paid to a* substantial
user” or “related person” as defined in the Internal Revenue Code. However, these legal opinions are not binding on the IRS or
the courts, and no assurances can be given that the conclusions reached will not be contested by the IRS or, if contested, will be
sustained by acourt. In addition, the tax-exempt status of the interest paid on our tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds is subject
to compliance by the underlying properties, and the ownersthereof, with the bond documents and covenants required by the bond-
issuing authority and the Internal Revenue Code. Among these requirements are tenant income restrictions, regul atory agreement
compliance, reporting requirements, use of proceeds restrictions and compliance with rules pertaining to interest arbitrage. Each
issuer of the revenue bonds, aswell as each of the underlying property owners/borrowers, has agreed to comply with procedures
and guidelines designed to ensure satisfaction with the continuing reguirements of the Internal Revenue Code. Failureto comply
with these continuing requirements of the Internal Revenue Code may cause the interest on our bonds to be includable in gross
income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance, regardless of when such noncompliance occurs. In
addition, if we have, and may in the future, obtain debt financing through bond securitization programs in which we place tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds into trusts and are entitled to a share of the tax-exempt interest received by the trust on these
bonds after the payment of interests on senior securitiesissued by the trust, it is possible that the characterization of our residual
interest in such asecuritization trust could be challenged and theincomethat we receive through theseinstruments could be treated
as ordinary taxable income includable in our grossincome for federal tax purposes.

Not all of the income received by the Partnership is exempt from taxation.

We have made, and may make in the future, taxable mortgage |oans to the owners of properties which are secured by tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds that we hold. The interest income earned by the Partnership on these mortgage loansis subject to federal
and state income taxes. In addition, if we acquire direct or indirect interests in real estate, either through foreclose of a property
securing a tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond or a taxable loan or through the acquisition of an MF Property, any income we
receive from the property will be taxable income from the operation of real estate. In that case, the taxable income received by
the Partnership will be allocated to our unitholders and will represent taxable income to them regardless of whether an amount of
cash equal to such allocable share of this taxable income is actually distributed to unitholders.

If the Partner ship wasdeter mined to be an association taxable ascor por ation, it will have adver se economic consequences
for the Partnership and itsunitholders.

The Partnership has made an election to be treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. The purpose of this election
isto eliminate federal and state income tax liability for the Partnership and allow usto pass through our tax-exempt interest to our
unitholdersso that they are not subject tofederal tax onthisincome. If our treatment asapartnership for tax purposesischallenged,
we would be classified as an association taxable as a corporation. Thiswould result in the Partnership being taxed on its taxable
income, if any, and, in addition, would result in all cash distributions made by the Partnership to unitholders being treated as
taxable ordinary dividend incometo the extent of the Partnership's earnings and profits, which would include tax-exempt income.
The payment of these dividends would not be deductible by the Partnership. The listing of the Partnership’s units for trading on
the Nasdag Global Market causesthe Partnership to betreated asa“ publicly traded partnership” under Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code. A publicly traded partnership is generally taxable as a corporation unless 90% or more of its gross income is
“qualifying” income. Qualifying income includes interest, dividends, real property rents, gain from the sale or other disposition
of real property, gain from the sale or other disposition of capital assets held for the production of interest or dividends and certain
other items. Substantially all of the Partnership's gross income will continue to be tax-exempt interest income on mortgage
bonds. While we believe that all of thisinterest incomeis qualifying income, it is possible that some or all of our income could
be determined not to be qualifying income. In such a case, if more than 10% of our annual gross income in any year is not
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qualifying income, the Partnership will be taxable as a corporation rather than a partnership for federal income tax purposes. We
have not received, and do not intend to seek, a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service regarding our status as a partnership for
tax purposes.

Totheextent the Partner ship gener atestaxableincome; unitholder swill be subject toincometaxeson thisincome, whether
or not they receive cash distributions.

As a partnership, our unitholders will be individually liable for income tax on their proportionate share of any taxable income
realized by the Partnership, whether or not we make cash distributions.

Therearelimits on the ability of our unitholdersto deduct Partnership losses and expenses allocated to them.

Theability of unitholdersto deduct their proportionate share of thelosses and expenses generated by the Partnershipwill belimited
in certain cases, and certain transactions may result in the triggering of the Alternative Minimum Tax for unitholders who are
individuals.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None
Item 2. Properties.

Each of the Partnership'stax-exempt mortgage revenue bondsis collateralized by amultifamily housing property. ThePartnership
does not hold title or any other interest in these properties, other than the first mortgages securing the bonds.

Asaresult of theguidanceon consolidations, the Company isrequired to consolidate certain of themultifamily residential properties
securing its bonds because the owners of those properties are treated as Consolidated VIEsfor which the Company isthe primary
beneficiary. The Company consolidated six multifamily housing properties owned by VIEs located in Florida, South Carolina,
and Texas as of December 31, 2010. The Partnership does not hold title to the properties owned by the VIEs.

In addition to the properties owned by Consolidated VIEs, the Company reports the financial results of the MF Properties on a
consolidated basis due to the 99% limited partnership interests held by its subsidiary in the partnerships that own the MF
Properties. The Company consolidated eight MF Properties located in Ohio, Kentucky, Virginia, Georgia, and North Carolinaas
of December 31, 2010. Three of these properties (" Ohio Properties") are subject to a sales agreement that does not meet the criteria
for derecognition and full accrual accounting treatment under the guidancefor real estate sales. Asaresult, the Company continues
to consolidate these Ohio Properties as if they were owned.

The following table sets forth certain information for each of the consolidated properties as of December 31, 2010:

Consolidated VIEs

Number of Buildings and Carrying Vaue at
Property Name Location Units Land Improvements December 31, 2010
Bent Tree Apartments Columbia, SC 232 $ 986,000 $ 11,598,081 $ 12,584,081
Fairmont Oaks Apartments ~ Gainsville, FL 178 850,400 8,431,601 9,282,001
Residences at DeCordova Granbury, TX 76 527,436 4,761,552 5,288,988
Residences at Weatherford ~ Weatherford, TX 76 533,000 602,996 1,135,996
lona Lakes Apartments Ft. Myers, FL 350 1,900,000 17,508,844 19,408,844
Lake Forest Apartments Daytona Beach, FL 240 1,396,800 11,136,019 12,532,819
60,232,729
Less accumulated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $2.2 million in 2010) (18,237,508)
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 41,995,221

17



MF Properties

Number of Buildings and Carrying Vaue at

Property Name Location Units Land Improvements December 31, 2010
Eagle Ridge Erlanger, KY 64 $ 290,763 $ 2,459,077 $ 2,749,840
Meadowview Highland Heights, KY 118 703,936 5,010,028 5,713,964
Churchland Chesapeake, VA 124 1,171,146 6,358,531 7,529,677
Glynn Place Brunswick, GA 128 743,996 4,636,281 5,380,277
Greens of Pine Glen Durham, NC 168 1,744,760 5,211,464 6,956,224
28,329,982
L ess accumul ated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $1.3 million in 2010) (3,100,512)
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 25,229,470

MF Properties Subject to Sales Agreement

Number of Buildings and Carrying Vaue at

Property Name Location Units Land Improvements December 31, 2010
Crescent Village Cincinnati, OH PN $ 353,117 $ 4395937 $ 4,749,054
Willow Bend Hilliard, OH 92 580,130 3,070,386 3,650,516
Post Woods Reynoldsburg, OH 180 1,148,504 6,638,740 7,787,244
16,186,814
L ess accumul ated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $600,000 in 2010) (2,129,085)
Balance at December 31, 2010 14,057,729
Total Net Real Estate Assets at December 31, 2010 $ 81,282,420

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
There areno pending legal proceedings to which the Partnership is a party or to which any of the properties collateralizing the

Partnership's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are subject.

Item 4. [Reserved]
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PART I1

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Security Holder Mattersand I ssuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

€] Market Information. BUCs represent assignments by the sole limited partner of its rights and obligations as a limited
partner. Therights and obligations of unitholders are set forth in the Partnership's Agreement of Limited Partnership. BUCs of the
Partnership trade on the NASDAQ Global Market under the trading symbol "ATAX". Thefollowing table sets forth the high and
low sale prices for the BUCs for each quarterly period from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010.

2010 High Low
1st Quarter $ 616 $ 5.50
2nd Quarter $ 661 $ 5.15
3rd Quarter $ 568 $ 5.22
4th Quarter $ 553 % 5.18
2009 High Low
1st Quarter $ 675 $ 5.00
2nd Quarter $ 663 $ 4.51
3rd Quarter $ 629 $ 5.42
4th Quarter $ 598 $ 5.05
(b) Unitholders. The approximate number of unitholders on December 31, 2010 was 7,600.
(© Distributions. Distributionsto unithol derswere made on aquarterly basi sduring 2010, 2009, and 2008. Total distributions

for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were approximately $13,574,000, $10,864,000, and $9,140,000,
respectively.

(d) The distributions paid or accrued per BUC during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were as
follows:

For the For the For the
Y ear Ended Y ear Ended Y ear Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Cash Distributions $ 0.5000 $ 05100 $ 0.5400
Special Distribution $ — 3 00350 % —

Seeltem 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysisof Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” for information regarding
thesourcesof fundsthat will beused for cash distributionsand for adiscussion of factorswhich may adversely affect thePartnership's
ability to make cash distributions at the same levelsin 2010 and thereafter.

(e Sales of Unregistered Securities. None

) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. None
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Set forth below is selected financial datafor the Company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 through 2010. The
information should be read in conjunction with the Company's consolidated financial statements and notes thereto filed in
responseto Item 8 of thisreport. Pleaserefer to thediscussionsin Item 1 and Item 7 regarding the implementation of guidance

on consolidations and its effects on the presentation of financial datain this report on Form10-K:

For the For the For the For the For the
Y ear Ended Y ear Ended Y ear Ended Y ear Ended Y ear Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Property revenue $ 14,692,537 $ 15,667,053 $ 13,773,801 $ 11,208209 $ 9,266,223
Real estate operating expenses (10,016,742)  (10,127,657) (8,872,219) (7,299,257) (5,945,364)
Depreciation and amortization expense (5,062,817) (6,067,330) (4,987,417) (3,611,249) (1,895,546)
Mortgage revenue bond investment income 6,881,314 4,253,164 4,230,205 3,227,254 1,418,289
Other bond investment income — — — — 4,891
Other interest income 455,622 106,082 150,786 751,797 337,008
Gain on sale of assets held for sale — 862,865 — — —
Gain on early extinquishment of debt 435,395 — — — —
Loss on sale of security — — (68,218) — —
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford (2,528,852) — — — —
Provison for loan loss (562,385) (1,401,731) — — —
Interest expense (2,514,479) (4,202,126) (4,106,072) (2,595,616) (1,303,760)
Genera and administrative expenses (2,383,784) (1,997,661) (1,808,459) (1,577,551) (1,575,942)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (604,191) (2,907,341) (1,687,593) 103,587 305,799
Income from discontinued operations, (including
gain on sale of $26,514,809 and $11,667,246 in 2009
and 2006, respectively) — 26,734,754 646,989 824,249 12,470,936
Net income (loss) (604,191) 23,827,413 (1,040,604) 927,836 12,776,735
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 203,831 11,540 9,364 13,030 —
Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt
Investors, L. P. (400,360) 23,838,953 (1,031,240) 940,866 12,776,735
Less: general partners interest in net income 28,532 804,223 64,059 99,451 1,627,305
Unallocated gain (loss) of Consolidated VIEs (2,466,260) 20,495,957 (3,756,894) (3,452,591) 3,863,226
Unitholders' interest in net income $ 2037368 $ 2538773 $ 266159 $ 4,294006 $ 7,286,204
Unitholders' Interest in net income per unit (basic and diluted):
Income from continuing operations $ 007 $ 015 $ 020 $ 034 $ 0.74
Income from discontinued operations $ — $ — $ — 3 — $ =
Net income, basic and diluted, per unit $ 007 $ 015 $ 020 $ 034 $ 0.74
Distributions paid or accrued per BUC $ 0.5000 $ 05450 $ 0.5400 $ 05400 $ 0.5400
Investments in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds,
at estimated fair value $ 27,115,164 $ 69,399,763 $ 44,492,526 $ 66,167,116 $ 27,103,398
;ra?;(;/eé(ﬁ?pt mortgage revenue bonds held in trust, at $ 73451479 $ _ s _ s _ s .
Real estate assets, net $ 81,282,420 $ 91,790,893 $ 80,178,863 $ 70,246,514 $ 47,876,652
Total assets $ 241,607,249 $190,770,720 $ 157,863,276 $ 164,879,008 $ 100,200,189
Total debt-continuing operations $106,253,982 $ 85,480,187 $ 87,890,367 $ 72,464,333 $ 26,919,333
Total debt-discontinued operations $ — % — $ 19583660 $ 18,850,667 $ 18,850,667
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities $ 2,200,893 $ (339,354) $ 4445215 $ 4,227,023 $ 5,637,095
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities $ (48,549,857) $ 11,822,244 $ (16,598,170) $ (48,007,185) $ 6,396,786
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities $ 42,345477 $ (1,563,495) $ 4,692,149 $ 50,125,180 $ (6,855,558)
Cash Available for Distribution ("CAD")® $ 0513494 $ 8708527 $ 6248920 $ 6,062,931 $ 7,876,824
Weighted average number of BUCs outstanding,
basic and diluted 27,493,449 16,661,969 13,512,928 12,491,490 9,837,928

(1) To caculate CAD, amortization expense related to debt financing costs and bond reissuance costs, Tier 2 income due to the general partner (as defined in the Agreement of
Limited Partnership), interest rate derivative income or expense (including adjustments to fair value), provision for loan losses, impairments on assets, deferred gain and related
interest, bond discount amortization net of cash received, losses related to VIEs, and depreciation and amortization expense on MF Property assets are added back to the Company's
net income (loss) as computed in accordance with GAAP. The Company uses CAD as a supplemental measurement of its ability to pay distributions. The Company believes that
CAD provides relevant information about its operations and is necessary along with net income (loss) for understanding its operating results.
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Management utilizes a calculation of CAD as a means to determine the Partnership's ability to make distributions to
unitholders. The General Partner believes that CAD provides relevant information about the Partnership's operations and is
necessary along with net income for understanding its operating results. There is no generally accepted methodology for
computing CAD, and the Partnership's computation of CAD may not be comparable to CAD reported by other
companies. Although the Partnership considers CAD to be a useful measure of its operating performance, CAD should not be
considered as an alternative to net income or net cash flows from operating activities which are calculated in accordance with
GAAP.

The following sets forth a reconciliation of the Company's net income (loss) as determined in accordance with GAAP and the
Partnership's CAD for the periods set forth.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt
InvestorsL.P. $ (400,360) $ 23,838,953 $ (1,031,240) $ 940,866 $ 12,776,735
Net (income) lossrelated to VIEs and
eliminations due to consolidation 2,466,260 (20,495,957) 3,756,894 3,452,591 (3,863,226)
Net income before impact of VIE consolidation 2,065,900 3,342,996 2,725,654 4,393,457 8,913,509
Changein fair value of derivatives and interest
rate derivative amortization (571,684) 830,142 721,102 249,026 210
Depreciation and amortization expense
(Partnership only) 2,510,630 3,514,073 2,840,500 1,478,278 25,605
Bond purchase discount accretion (net of cash
received) (403,906) — — — —
Deposit liability gain - Ohio sale agreement 1,775,527 — — — —
Lher 2 Ingome disiributable to the General (464,045  (802,900) (33,336) (57.830)  (1,062,500)
Tier 2 Income distributable - contingent interest (8,201) — — — —
Ohio deferred interest 745,227 — — — —
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford 2,716,330 — — — —
Property loan loss 1,147,716 1,696,730 — — —
Loss on bond sale — 127,495 — — —
CAD $ 9513494 $ 8708527 $ 6248920 $ 6,062931 $ 7,876,824
Weighted average number of units outstanding,
basic and diluted 27,493,449 16,661,969 13,512,928 12,491,490 9,837,928
Net income, basic and diluted, per unit $ 007 $ 015 $ 020 $ 034 $ 0.74
Total CAD per unit $ 035 $ 052 $ 046 $ 049 $ 0.80
Distributions per unit $ 05000 $ 05450 $ 05400 $ 05400 $ 0.5400

@ Asdescribed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Net I nterest Income representing contingent interest and Net Residual Proceeds representing
contingent interest (Tier 2 income) will be distributed 75% to the unitholders and 25% to the General Partner. This adjustment represents the 25% of Tier 2
income due to the General Partner. For the year ended 2010, the deferred gain on the sale of the Ohio partnerships generated approximately $1.8 million and
contingent interest generated approximately $33K of Tier || income. For 2009, the Tier 2 income distributable to the General Partner was generated by the early
redemption of Woodbridge - Bloomington and Woodbridge - Louisville bond investments, the sale of Oak Grove, and from Fairmont Oaks and Lake Forest
Apartments. For 2008, L ake Forest generated approximately $45,000, Fairmont Oaks generated approximately $54,000, and lona L akesgenerated approximately
$54,000 of Tier 2 income. For 2007, Lake Forest generated approximately $231,000 of Tier 2 income.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
General

In this Management's Discussion and Analysis, the “Partnership” refersto America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. and its
Consolidated Subsidiaries which consist of:
» ATAXTEBSI, LLC, aspecia purpose entity owned and controlled by the Partnership, created to facilitate the Tax
Exempt Bond Securitization (* TEBS”) Financing with Freddie Mac - see Notes 2, 9 and 10,
*  Fivemultifamily apartmentsowned by variouslimited partnershipsinwhich Partnership subsidiarieshold a99% limited
partner interest and three multifamily apartment properties owned by various limited partnerships which are subject to
asales agreement (the “MF Properties’) - see Note 6.

The“Company” refers to the consolidated financial statements reported in this Form 10-K which include the assets, liabilities
and results of operations of the Partnership, its Consolidated Subsidiaries and six other consolidated entities in which the
Partnership does not hold an ownership interest but which own multifamily apartment properties financed with tax-exempt
bonds held by the Partnership and which are treated as variable interest entities ("VIES") of which the Partnership has been
determined to be the primary beneficiary (“Consolidated VIES'). All significant transactions and accounts between the
Partnership and the VIEs have been eliminated in consolidation.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financia statementsin accordance with GAAP requires management of the Company to make a number of
judgments, assumptions, and estimates. The application of these judgments, assumptions and estimates can affect the amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported by the Company. All of the Company's significant accounting policies are
described in Note 2. The Company considersthe following to beitscritical accounting policies because they involve judgments,
assumptionsand estimates by management that significantly affect thefinancial statements. If these estimatesdiffer significantly
from actual results, the impact on our consolidated financial statements may be material.

Accounting for the TEBS Financing

The Company has evaluated the accounting guidance in regard to the TEBS Financing (see Note 9) and has determined that the
securitization transaction does not meet the accounting criteria for a sale or transfer of financial assets and will, therefore, be
accounted for as a secured financing transaction. In accordance with the guidance which outlines the conditions that must be
met to de-recognize a transferred financial asset, in part, the transferor has surrendered control over transferred assets if and
only if the transferor does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through either of the following:

1. Anagreement that both entitles and obligates the transferor to repurchase or redeem them before their
maturity,

2. Theability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets, other than through a cleanup call,
or

3. Anagreement that permits the transferee to require the transferor to repurchase the transferred
financial assets at a price that is so favorable to the transferee that it is probable that the transferee will
require the transferor to repurchase them.

The TEBS Financing agreements contain certain provisionsthat allow the Company to (1) cause the return of certain individual
bonds under defined circumstances, (2) cause the return of all of the bonds by electing an Optional Series Pool Release or (3)
cause the return of any defaulted bonds. The Optional Series Pool Release is defined in the agreements as two specific dates,
September 15, 2017 or September 15, 2020, on which the Company has the option to repurchase all of the securitized bonds.
Given these terms, the Company has concluded that the condition in item 2 above is present in the agreements and, therefore,
effective control over the transferred assets has not occurred. Aseffective control has not been transferred, the transaction does
not meet the conditionsto de-recognizethe assetsresulting in the TEBS Financing being presented on the Company consolidated
financial statements as a secured financing.

In addition to evaluating the TEBS Financing as a sale or transfer of financial assets, we have evaluated the securitization trust
associated with the TEBS Financing (the “TEBS Trust”) under the provisions of the consolidation guidance. As part of the
TEBS Financing certain bond assets of the Partnership were securitized into the TEBS Trust with FreddieMac. The TEBS Trust
then issued Class A and B TEBS Certificates. The Partnership has determined that the TEBS Trust is a VIE and the Class B
Certificates owned by the Partnership create a variable interest in the TEBS Trust.
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In determining the primary beneficiary of the TEBS Trust, the Partnership considered the activities of the VIE which most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance, who has the power to control such activities, the risks which the entity
wasdesignedto create, the variability associated with thoserisks and theinterests which absorb such variability. The Partnership
has retained the right, pursuant to the TEBS Financing agreements, to either substitute or reacquire someor all of the securitized
bondsat variousfuture datesand under variouscircumstances. Asaresult, the Partnership determinedit had retained acontrolling
financial interest in the TEBS Trust because such actions effectively provide the Partnership with the ability to control decisions
pertaining to the VIE's management of interest rate and credit risk. Whilein the TEBS Trust, the bond assets may only be used
to settle obligations of the trust and the liabilities of the trust do not provide the Class A certificate holders with recourse to the
general credit of the Partnership. The Partnership also considered the related party relationship of the entitiesinvolved in the
VIE. It was determined that the Partnership met both of the primary beneficiary criteria and was the most closely associated
with the VIE and, therefore, was determined to be the primary beneficiary.

Given these accounting determinations, the TEBS Financing and the associated TEBS Trust are presented as a secured financing
onthe ATAX TEBS |, LLC balance sheet and all activities associated with the TEBS Financing are presented with the results
of the ATAX TEBS, LLC operations. Asnoted above, ATAX TEBSI, LLC isaConsolidated Subsidiary of the Partnership.

Variable Interest Entities (“ VIES")

The Partnership invests in federally tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds which have been issued to provide construction and/
or permanent financing of multifamily residential apartments. The Partnership owns 100% of these bonds and each bond is
secured by afirst mortgage on the property. The Partnership has also made taxable loans to the property ownersin certain cases
which are secured by second mortgages on these properties. Although each multifamily property financed with tax-exempt
mortgage bonds held by the Partnership is owned by a separate entity in which the Partnership has no equity ownership interest,
the debt financing provided by the Partnership creates a variable interest in these ownership entities that may require the
Partnership to report the assets, liabilities and results of operations of these entities on a consolidated basis under GAAP.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adopted new provisions of the consolidation guidance that amended the consolidation
guidance applicable to VIEs and required enhanced disclosure to provide more information about the Company's involvement
inaVIE. The Partnership must make an evaluation of these entitiesto determine if they meet the definition of aVIE. Generaly,
aVIE is an entity with one or more of the following characteristics: (a) the total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to
permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support; (b) as a group, the holders of the
equity investment at risk lack:

i. theability to make decisions about an entity's activities through voting or similar rights;

ii. theobligation to absorb the expected loss of the entity; or

iii. theright to receive the expected residual returns of the entity;
or (c) the equity investors have voting rights that are not proportional to their economic interests and substantially all of the
entity's activities either involve, or are conducted on behalf of an investor that has disproportionately few voting rights.

The revised accounting standard introduces a more qualitative approach to evaluating VIEs for consolidation and requires the
Partnership to perform an analysisto determine whether itsvariable interests give it controlling financial interestinaVIE. This
analysisidentifiesthe primary beneficiary, the entity that must consolidate the VIE, asthe entity that has (1) the power to direct
the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb losses
of the entity that could potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially
be significant to the VIE. In adopting this revised accounting standard, the Partnership has re-evaluated all of its investments
to determine if the property owners are VIEs and, if so, whether the Partnership is the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The
guidance al so requires an ongoing assessment of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

The Partnership has determined that, as of January 1, 2010, six of the entities financed by tax-exempt bonds owned by the
Partnership were held by VIEs. These VIEs are Ashley Square, Bent Tree, Cross Creek, Fairmont Oaks, lona Lakes and Lake
Forest. Additionally, in January 2010, the Partnership issued a Notice of Default on two bond holdings, DeCordova and
Weatherford, and began forecl osure procedures. The foreclosure on these bonds was completed in March 2010. Simultaneous
with the foreclosure, the properties were acquired through the assumption of liabilities by new ownership and the tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds owned by the Partnership became the obligations of the new owners. Prior to the foreclosure and
ownership transfer the owners of these propertieswere not considered VIEs. Based on theforeclosures and the lack of sufficient
equity investment at risk by the new owners, these entities were determined to be Consolidated VIEsin March 2010.
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The Partnership does not hold an equity interest in these VIEs and, therefore, the assets of the VIESs cannot be used to settle the
general commitments of the Partnership and the Partnership is not responsible for the commitments and liabilities of the VIEs.
The primary risks to the Partnership associated with these VIEs relate to the entities' ability to meet debt service obligations to
the Partnership and the valuation of the underlying multifamily apartment property which serves as bond collateral.

Under the prior consolidation standards, the Partnership consolidated Ashley Square, Bent Tree, Cross Creek, Fairmont Oaks,
lona Lakes and Lake Forest as it held the majority of the variable interests in these VIES. Under the revised standards, the
Partnership has determined that it is the primary beneficiary of four of these VIESs; Bent Tree, Fairmont Oaks, lona Lakes and
Lake Forest and has continued to consolidate these entities. Asaresult of adopting the new guidance on January 1, 2010, the
Partnership no longer reports Ashley Square and Cross Creek on a consolidated basis.

Investments in Tax-Exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds and Other Tax-Exempt Bonds

Valuation - As al of the Company's investments in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are classified as available-for-sale
securities, they are carried on the balance sheet at their estimated fair values. The Company owns 100% of each of these
bonds. Thereisno activetrading market for the bonds and price quotesfor thebondsarenot available. Asaresult, the Company
bases its estimate of fair value of the tax-exempt bonds using discounted cash flow and yield to maturity analyses performed
by management. This calculation methodology encompasses judgment in its application. If available, management may also
consider price quotes on similar bonds or other information from external sources, such as pricing services or broker
quotes. Pricing services, broker quotes and management's analyses provide indicative pricing only.

Asof December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, all of the Company's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds were valued using
discounted cash flow and yield to maturity analyses performed by management. Management'sval uation encompassesjudgment
initsapplication. Thekey assumptionin management'syield to maturity analysisistherangeof effectiveyieldsontheindividual
bonds. At December 31, 2010, the range of effective yields on the individual bonds was 7.2% to 8.7%. Additionally, the
Company calculated the sensitivity of the key assumption used in calculating the fair values of these bonds. Assuming an
immediate 10 percent adverse change in the key assumption, the effective yields on the individual bonds would increase to a
rangeof 7.9%1t0 9.6% and would result in additional unrealized |osseson the bond portfolio of approximately $8.4 million. This
sensitivity analysisishypothetical andisasof aspecificpointintime. Theresultsof thesensitivity analysismay not beindicative
of actual changesin fair value and should be used with caution.

The estimated future cash flow of each revenue bond depends on the operations of the underlying property and, therefore, is
subject to a significant amount of uncertainty in the estimation of future rental receipts, future real estate operating expenses,
and future capital expenditures. Such estimates are affected by economic factors such as the rental markets and labor markets
inwhichthe property operates, the current capitalization ratesfor propertiesin therental markets, and tax and insurance expenses.
Different conditions or different assumptions applied to the calculation may provide different results. The Partnership
periodically comparesitsestimateswith historical resultsto evaluate the reasonabl eness and accuracy of itsestimates and adjusts
its estimates accordingly

Review of securities for other-than-temporary impairment - The Company periodically reviews each of its mortgage revenue
bondsfor impairment. The Company evaluateswhether adeclineinthefair value of asecurity below itsamortized cost isother-
than-temporary based on a number of factorsincluding:

The duration and severity of the declinein fair value,

Our intent to hold and the likelihood of the Company being required to sell the security before its value recovers,
Adverse conditions specifically related to the security, its collateral, or both,

Volatility of the fair value of the security,

The likelihood of the borrower being able to make required principal and interest payments,

Failure of the issuer to make scheduled interest or principal payments, and

Recoveries or additional declinesin fair value after the balance sheet date.

While the Company evaluates all available information, it focuses specifically on whether it has the intent to sell the securities
prior to the time that their value recovers or until maturity, whether it is likely that the Company will be required to sell the
securitiesbefore arecovery in value and whether the Company expectsto recover the securities entireamortized cost basis. The
ability to recover the securities' entire amortized cost basisis based on the likelihood of the issuer being able to make required
principal andinterest paymentsonthesecurity. Theprimary source of repayment of theamortized cost isthe cash flows produced
by the property which serves as the collateral for the bonds. The Company utilizes a discounted cash flow model for the
underlying property and compares the results of the model to the amortized cost basis of the bond. The model reflects the cash
flows expected to be generated by the underlying property over aten year period, including an assumed property sale at the end
of year ten, discounted using the effective interest rate on the bond in accordance with the accounting guidance on other than
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temporary impairment of debt securities. The inputs to these models require management to make numerous subjective
assumptions, the most significant of which include:

« Revenue and expense projections for the property operations, which result in the estimated net operating income
generated over the ten year holding period assumed in the model. Base year (model year one) assumptions are
based on historical financial results and operating budget information. Base year assumptions are then adjusted for
expected changesin occupancy, rental rates and expenses, and

e The capitalization rate utilized to estimate the sales proceeds from an assumed property salein year ten of the
model. The capitalization rate used in the current year models was 7.0% which the Partnership believes represents a
reasonable market rate for multifamily properties.

The revenue, expense and resulting net operating income projections which are the basis for the discounted cash flow model
are based on judgment. Operating results from amultifamily residential property depends on the rental and occupancy rates of
the property and the level of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents are directly affected by the supply of, and demand
for, apartments in the market areas in which a property islocated. This, inturn, is affected by several factors such as local or
national economic conditions, the amount of new apartment construction and interest rates on single-family mortgage loans. In
addition, factors such as government regulation, inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problems and natural disasters can
affect the economic operations of a property.

If the discounted cash flows from a property are less than the amortized cost of the bond, we believe that there is a strong
indication that the cash flows from the property will not support the payment of the required principal and interest on the bond
and, accordingly, the bonds are considered other-than-temporarily impaired. |f an other-than-temporary impairment exists, the
amortized cost basis of themortgage bond iswritten down toitsestimated fair value. Theamount of thewrite-down representing
acredit loss is accounted for as a realized loss on the statement of operations. The amount of the write-down representing a
non-credit 1oss is recorded to other comprehensive income. The recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and the
potential impairment analysis are subject to aconsiderabl e degree of judgment, the results of which when applied under different
conditions or assumptions could have amaterial impact on the financial statements. If the credit and capital markets deteriorate
further or the Company experiences deterioration in the values of itsinvestment portfolio, the Company may incur impairments
toitsinvestment portfolio which could negatively impact the Company'sfinancial condition, cash flows, and reported earnings.

Evaluation of property loans for potential losses - In addition to the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held by the Company,
loans have been made to the owners of some of the properties which secure the bonds. These loans are collateral dependent
with the repayment of the loans being dependent on the cash flows of the underlying property. The Company periodically
evaluates these loans for potential losses by utilizing the practical expedient method allowed for in the guidance for measuring
impairment on a collateral dependent loan. The Company estimates the fair value of the property and compares the fair value
to the outstanding tax-exempt bonds plus any property loans. The Company utilizes the discounted cash flow model discussed
above except that in estimating aproperty'sfair value we evaluate anumber of different discounted cash flow modelsthat contain
varying assumptions. The various models may assume multiple revenue and expense scenarios, various capitalization rates
and multiple discount rates. We may also consider other information such as independent appraisals in estimating a property's
fair value.

If the estimated fair value of the property after deducting the amortized cost basis of the senior tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond exceeds the principal balance of the property loan then no potential loss is indicated and no allowance for loan loss is
needed. If apotential lossisindicated, an allowance for loan loss is recorded against the outstanding |oan amount and alossis
realized. The determination of the need for an allowance for loan loss is subject to considerable judgment.

Revenue recognition - tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds - Interest on the Partnership's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
is payable solely from the net cash flow of the underlying properties and reserve funds, if any, set aside pursuant to the bond
documents. These bonds are not the obligations of the state or local housing authorities that issued them and are not backed by
any taxing authority. Base interest income on fully performing tax-exempt mortgage revenue bondsisrecognized asit isearned.
Base interest income on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds not fully performing is recognized asit is received. Past due base
interest on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, which are or were previously not fully performing, isrecognized asit isearned.
The Partnership reinstates the accrual of base interest once the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond's ability to perform is
adequately demonstrated. Contingent interest income, which is only received by the Partnership if the property financed by a
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond that contains a contingent interest provision generates excess avail able cash flow as set forth
in each bond, is recognized when realized or realizable.

Revenue Recognition - investmentsin real estate - The Partnership's Consolidated VIEs and the MF Properties (see Note 6) are
lessors of multifamily rental units under leases with terms of one year or less. Rental revenue is recognized, net of rental
concessions, on a straight-line method over the related lease term.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Partnership's investments in interest rate derivative agreements are accounted for under the guidance that establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative financial instruments, including certain derivative financia instruments
embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activity. The guidance requiresthe Partnership to recognize all derivatives aseither
assetsor liabilitiesinitsfinancial statementsand record theseinstrumentsat their fair values. In order to achieve hedgeaccounting
treatment, derivative instruments must be appropriately designated, documented and proven to be effective as a hedge. The
Partnership did not designate its current derivatives as qualifying hedges.

The fair values of the interest rate derivatives at inception are their original cost. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate
derivative agreements are recognized in earnings as interest expense. The fair value adjustment through earnings can cause a
significant fluctuation in reported net income although it has no impact on the Partnership's cash flows. Although the Company
utilizes current price quotes by recognized dealersasabasisfor estimating thefair value of itsinterest rate derivative agreements,
the calculation of the fair value involves a considerable degree of judgment.

Executive Summary
Overview

The Partnership operates for the purpose of acquiring, holding, selling and otherwise dealing with a portfolio of federally tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds which have been issued to provide construction and/or permanent financing of multifamily
residential apartments. Each multifamily property financed with tax-exempt mortgage bonds held by the Partnership is owned
by aseparate entity. The Partnership does not hold an ownership interest in any of theseentities. However, in some cases, these
entities are treated as VIEs and, as aresult, the assets, liabilities and financial results of the properties owned by these entities
are consolidated with the Company. Whether or not treated as a VIE, the owners of the properties financed by tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds held by the Partnership have an operating goal to generate increasing amounts of net rental income
from these properties that will allow them to service their debt on the Partnership's bonds. In order to achieve this goal,
management of these multifamily apartment propertiesisfocused on: (i) maintaining high economic occupancy and increasing
rental ratesthrough effectiveleasing, reduced turnover ratesand providing qual ity maintenance and servicesto maximizeresident
satisfaction; (ii) managing operating expenses and achieving cost reductions through operating efficiencies and economies of
scale generaly inherent in the management of a portfolio of multiple properties; and (iii) emphasizing regular programs of
repairs, maintenance and property improvements to enhance the competitive advantage and value of the properties in their
respective market areas.

Tax-exempt Revenue Bonds. On December 31, 2010, the Partnership owned 21 federally tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
with an aggregate outstanding principal amount of $189.3 million. These bonds were issued by various state and local housing
authorities in order to provide construction and/or permanent financing of 21 multifamily residential apartments containing a
total of 4,042 rental units located in the states of Florida, lowa, South Carolina, Texas, Kansas, Kentucky, Minnesota, Illinais,
and Ohio, one multifamily residential apartment complex under construction in Texasthat will contain atotal of 76 rental units,
and a 142-bed student housing facility in Nebraska. In each case the Partnership owns, either directly or indirectly, 100% of
the bonds issued for these properties. Each bond is secured by a first mortgage or deed of trust on the financed apartment
property. Of the 21 bonds owned, eight are owned directly by the Partnership and 13 are owned by ATAX TEBSI, LLC,
aspecial purpose entity owned and controlled by the Partnership. Six of the entitiesthat own the apartment properties financed
by six of the Partnership's tax exempt bonds were deemed to be Consolidated VIEs of the Partnership at December 31, 2010
and, as aresult, these bonds are eliminated in consolidation on the Company's financial statements. Additionally, two bonds
secured by the three Ohio Properties subject to a sales agreement (see Note 6 and below) are eliminated in consolidation on the
Company'sfinancial statements. Additionally, six of the bonds also provide for the payment of contingent interest determined
by the net cash flow and net capital appreciation of the underlying real estate properties. As aresult, these mortgage revenue
bonds provide the Partnership with the potential to participate in future increases in the cash flow generated by the financed
properties, either through operations or from their ultimate sale.

Consolidated VIEs. The six Consolidated VIE multifamily apartment properties as of December 31, 2010, contained atotal of
1,152 rental units. Asof December 31, 2009, six of the 17 tax-exempt mortgage bonds owned by the Partnership were secured
by properties held as VIEs which contained 1,288 rental units. The properties underlying the thirteen non-consolidated tax-
exempt mortgage bonds contain a total of 2,144 rental units at December 31, 2010. Two bonds secured by the three Ohio
Properties containing 362 rental units are subject to a sales agreement (see Note 6) and are eliminated in consolidation on the
Company's financial statements. As of December 31, 2009, the properties underlying the 11 non-consolidated tax-exempt
mortgage bonds contain atotal of 1,497 rental units.
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MF Properties. Tofacilitateitsinvestment strategy of acquiring additional tax exempt mortgage bonds secured by multifamily
apartment properties, the Partnership may acquire ownership positions in apartment properties (“MF Properties’), in order to
ultimately restructure the property ownership through a sale of the MF Properties. The Partnership expects each of these MF
Propertiesto eventually be sold to anot-for-profit entity or in connection with asyndication of Low Income Housing Tax Credits
(“LIHTCSs") under Section 42 of theInternal Revenue Code of 1986, asamended (the* Internal RevenueCode”). ThePartnership
expects to acquire tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds issued to provide debt financing for these properties at the time the
property ownership is restructured. The Partnership expects to provide the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds to the new
property owners as part of the restructuring. Such restructurings will generally be expected to be initiated within 36 months of
the Partnership's investment in an MF Property and will often coincide with the expiration of the compliance period relating to
LIHTCs previously issued with respect to the MF Property. The Partnership will not acquire LIHTCs in connection with these
transactions.

In June 2010, the Partnership completed thefirst planned restructuring by investing in two Ohio tax exempt bonds, collateralized
by three existing Ohio MF properties, with atotal of 362 rental units. The Company acquired 100% of the Series A bond with
apar value of $14.7 million and the Series B bond with a par value of $3.6 million issued by the Ohio Housing Finance Agency
as part of aplan of financing for the acquisition and rehabilitation of the Ohio Properties. The new owners have not contributed
any capital to the transaction and the Company has effectively provided 100% of the capital structure to the new owners as part
of the saletransaction. Assuch, the transaction does not meet accounting standards for derecognition and full accrual accounting
treatment under the guidance for real estate sales and the Company will continue to consolidate the Ohio Properties asif they
were owned with the bonds being eliminated upon consolidation. Cash received as part of the sale transaction represents a
deferred gain on the sale transaction of approximately $1.8 million (see Note 6).

As of December 31, 2010, the Partnership's wholly-owned subsidiaries held limited partnership interests in five entities that
own MF Properties containing a total of 602 rental units together with the three Ohio Properties containing 362 rental units
which are subject to a sales agreement. As of December 31, 2009, the Partnership's wholly-owned subsidiaries held limited
partnership interests in nine MF Properties containing atotal of 964 units. The MF Properties operating goal is similar to that
of the properties underlying the Partnership's tax-exempt bonds.

Properties Management. Twelve of the 21 properties which collateralize the bonds owned by the Partnership are managed by
AmericaFirst Properties Management Company (“ Properties Management”), an affiliate of AFCA 2, which provides property
management services for Ashley Square, lona Lakes Apartments, Bent Tree Apartments, Lake Forest Apartments, Fairmont
Oaks Apartments, Cross Creek, Clarkson College, Woodland Park, DeCordova, and each of the MF Properties. Management
believes that this relationship provides greater insight and understanding of the underlying property operations and their ability
to meet debt service requirements to the Partnership. The properties not currently managed by Properties Management are
Autumn Pines, Bella Vista Apartments, Brookstone Apartments, Runnymede Apartments, Bridle Ridge, South Park Ranch
Apartments, Villages at Lost Creek and Woodlynn Village. Weatherford is currently under construction and not subject to a
management agreement.

TEBS. As of September 1, 2010, the Partnership and its Consolidated Subsidiary ATAX TEBS I, LLC, entered into a number
of agreementsrelating to anew long-term debt financing facility provided through the securitization of 13 tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds pursuant to Freddie Mac's TEBS program. The gross proceeds from TEBS Financing were approximately $95.8
million. After the payment of transaction expenses the Company received net proceeds from the TEBS Financing of
approximately $90.4 million. The Company applied approximately $49.5 million of these net proceeds to repay the entire
outstanding principal of, and accrued interest on, its secured term loan from Bank of America.

The TEBS Financing essentially provides the Company with a long-term variable-rate debt facility at interest rates reflecting
prevailing short-term tax-exempt rates. Under the TEBS Financing, the Company securitized the bonds by transferring certain
assets to Freddie Mac in exchange for tax-exempt Class A and Class B Freddie Mac Multifamily Variable Rate Certificates
(collectively, the“ TEBS Certificates’) issued by Freddie Mac. The TEBS Certificates represent beneficial interests in the
securitized assets held by Freddie Mac. The holders of the Class A TEBS Certificates are entitled to receive regular payments
of interest from Freddie Mac at a variable rate which resets periodically based on the weekly Securities Industry and Financial
Markets Association (“ SIFMA™) floating index rate plus certain Facility Fees. Asof closing, the SIFMA ratewas equal to 0.25%
and the total Facility Fees were 1.9%, resulting in a total initial cost of borrowing of 2.15%. As of December 31, 2010, the
SIFMA ratewas equal to 0.34% resulting in atotal cost of borrowing of 2.24%. Asthe holder of the Class B TEBS Certificates,
the Company is not entitled to receive interest payments on the Class B TEBS Certificates at any particular rate, but will be
entitled to all payments of principal and interest on the Bonds and Senior Custody Receipts held by Freddie Mac after payment
of principal and interest due on the Class A TEBS Certificates and payment of all Facility Fees and associated expenses.
Accordingly, the amount of interest paid on the Class B TEBS Certificatesis expected to vary over time, and could be eliminated
altogether, due to fluctuations in the interest rate payable on the Class A TEBS Certificates, Facility Fees, expenses and other
factors.
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For financial reporting purposes, the TEBS Financing is presented by the Company as a secured financing.

Prior to the closing of the TEBS Financing, the Company had outstanding debt financing of $54.8 million consisting of two
credit facilities. The first credit facility was with Bank of Americaand had an outstanding balance of $49.3 million (the “BOA
Facility”). As noted above, the BOA Facility was repaid with proceeds from the TEBS Financing. The second credit facility
was with Omaha State Bank and had an outstanding balance of $5.5 million (the“ OSB Facility”). The OSB Facility wasrepaid
prior to the execution of the TEBS Financing.

The TEBS Financing offers several advantages over the Company's previous credit facilities which, over time, are expected to
positively impact the generation of CAD. These advantages include:

» alonger term thereby addressing the previous refinancing risks,

»  better balance sheet leverage thereby providing additional funds for investment, and

e alowerinitial cost of borrowing.

Economic Conditions. The disruptions in domestic and international financial markets, and the resulting restrictions on the
availability of debt financing that had prevailed since 2008 began to subside in 2010. While economic trends show signs of a
stabilization of the economy and debt availability has increased significantly from two years ago, overall availability remains
limited and the cost of credit may continue to be adversely impacted. These conditions, in our view, will continue to create
potential investment opportunities for the Partnership. Many participantsin the multifamily housing debt sector either reduced
their participation in the market or were forced to liquidate some or all of their existing portfolio investments in order to meet
their liquidity needs. We believe this continues to create opportunities to acquire existing tax-exempt bonds from distressed
holders at attractive yields. The Partnership continues to evaluate potential investments in bonds which are available on the
secondary market. Webelieve many of these bondswill meet our investment criteriaand that we have aunique ability to analyze
and close on these opportunitieswhile maintaining our ability and willingnessto also participatein primary market transactions.

Current credit and real estate market conditions also create opportunities to acquire quality MF Properties from distressed
owners and lenders. Our ahility to restructure existing debt together with the ability to improve the operations of the
apartment properties through our affiliated property management company can position these MF Properties for an eventual
financing with tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds meeting our investment criteria and that will be supported by a valuable
and well-run apartment property. We believe we can selectively acquire MF Properties, restructure debt and improve
operations in order to create value to our unitholders in the form of a strong tax-exempt bond investment.

On the other hand, continued economic weakness in some markets may limit our ability to access additional debt financing that
the Partnership uses to partialy finance its investment portfolio or otherwise meet its liquidity requirements. The inability to
accessdebt financing may resultin adverse effectson our financial condition and resultsof operations. Therecanbeno assurance
that we will be able to finance additional acquisitions of tax-exempt bonds through either additional equity or debt
financing. Although the consequences of market and economic conditions and their impact on our ability to pursue our plan to
grow through investments in additional tax-exempt housing bonds are not fully known, we do not anticipate that our existing
assetswill beadversely affectedinthelong-term.  Inaddition, theeconomic conditionsincluding higher level sof unemployment,
lack of job growth and low home mortgage interest rates have had a negative effect on some of the apartment properties which
collateralize our tax-exempt bond investments and our MF Properties in the form of lower occupancy during the past two
years. Overall economic occupancy (which is adjusted to reflect rental concessions, delinquent rents and non-revenue units
such asmodel units and employee units) of the apartment properties that the Partnership has financed with tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds was approximately 81% during 2010 compared to 84% during 2009. Overall economic occupancy of the MF
Properties hasremained at approximately 83% during both years 2010 and 2009. Theseissuesmay continueto negatively affect
property operations and profitability in the short-term. We expect that property operations will improve in 2011 and 2012 and
that rental rate and occupancy trends will be positive.
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Discussion of the Apartment Properties securing the Partnership Bond Holdings and MF Properties as of December 31,

2010

The following discussion describes the operations and financial results of the individual apartment properties financed by the
tax-exempt bonds held by the Partnership and the MF Propertiesin which it holds an ownership. The discussion also outlines
the bond holdings of the Partnership, discusses the significant terms of the bonds and identifies those ownership entities
which are Consolidated VI Es of the Company.

Number Percentage of Occupied Economic Occupancy ® for
Number  of Units Units as of December 31, the period ended December 31,

Property Name Location of Units  Occupied 2010 2009 2010 2009
Non-Consolidated Properties
Ashley Square Apartments DesMoines, 1A 144 140 97% 86% 89% 92%
Autumn Pines Humble, TX 250 234 94% na 90% na
Bella Vista Apartments Gainesville, TX 144 130 90% 90% 87% 94%
Bridle Ridge Apartments Greer, SC 152 135 89% 87% 80% 81%
Brookstone A partments® Wakegan, IL 168 159 95% 93% 96% 90%
Clarkson College Omaha, NE 142 84 59% 73% 70% 73%
Cross Creek Apartments © Beaufort, SC 144 133 92% n/a 81% n/a
Runnymede A partments Austin, TX 252 218 87% 95% 93% 96%
South Park Ranch Apartments © Austin, TX 192 180 94% 93% 89% 90%
Villages at Lost Creek © San Antonio, TX 261 249 95% n/a 82% n/a
Woodland Park Topeka, KS 236 190 81% n/a 57% n/a
Woodlynn Village Maplewood, MN 59 58 98% 95% 96% 100%

2,144 1,910 89% 88% 84% 89%
Consolidated VIEs
Bent Tree Apartments Columbia, SC 232 211 91% 97% 81% 79%
Fairmont Oaks Apartments Gainsville, FL 178 150 84% 90% 7% 83%
Residences at DeCordova “ Granbury, TX 76 65 86% n/a 56% n/a
Residences at Weatherford @ Weatherford, TX 76 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
lona Lakes Apartments Ft. Myers, FL 350 310 89% 83% 66% 62%
Lake Forest Apartments Daytona Beach, FL 240 222 93% 89% 7% 79%

1,152 958 89% 90% 73% 76%
MF Properties
Churchland Chesapeake, VA 124 119 96% 98% 91% 90%
Eagle Ridge Erlanger, KY 64 51 80% 86% 84% 74%
Glynn Place Brunswick, GA 128 106 83% 63% 69% 68%
Greens of Pine Glen Durham, NC 168 153 91% 90% 84% 89%
Meadowview Highland Heights, KY 118 112 95% 7% 86% 81%
Crescent Village Cincinnati, OH 90 74 82% 89% 80% 85%
Post Woods Reynoldsburg, OH 180 159 88% 89% 84% 87%
Willow Bend Columbus (Hilliard), OH 92 82 89% 95% 86% 89%

964 856 89% 86% 83% 83%

@ Economic occupancy is presented for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and is defined as the net rental income received divided by the
maximum amount of rental income to be derived from each property. This statistic is reflective of rental concessions, delinquent rents and non-revenue units
such as model units and employee units. Actual occupancy is a point in time measure while economic occupancy is a measurement over the period presented,
therefore, economic occupancy for a period may exceed the actual occupancy at any point in time.
@This property is still under construction as of December 31, 2010, and therefore has no occupancy data.

® Previous period occupancy numbers are not available, asthisis a new investment.

“ Construction on these properties has been completed and the properties are in alease up and stabilization period.
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Non-Consolidated Properties

The owners of the following properties do not meet the definition of aVIE and/or the Partnership has evaluated and determined
itisnot the primary beneficiary of the VIE, asaresult, the Company does not report the assets, liabilitiesand results of operations
of these properties on a consolidated basis.

Ashley Square - Ashley Square Apartmentsis located in Des Moines, lowa and contains 144 units. The tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds owned by the Partnership aretraditional “80/20” bondsissued prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1986. These bonds
require that 20% of the rental units be set aside for tenants whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income,
without adjustment for household size. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $5.4 million and has a base interest
rate of 6.25% per annum. The bond also provides for contingent interest payable from excess cash flow generated by the
underlying property through the potential payment of contingent interest. The bond accrues contingent interest at arate of 3.0%
annually and such contingent interest ispayable only if the underlying property generates excess operating cash flowsor realizes
excess cash through capital appreciation and arelated sale or refinancing of the property. To date, the property has not paid any
contingent interest and the Partnership has not recognized any contingent interest income related to this bond. The property is
current on the payment of principal and base interest on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010. Ashley Square's
operations resulted in net operating income of $430,000 and $358,000 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of
approximately $1.2 million and $1.2 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Theimprovement in net operating income from
2009 is primarily the result of adecrease in real estate taxes.

Autumn Pines - Autumn Pines is located in Humble, Texas and contains 250 units. The tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond
owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the syndication of LIHTCs. The bond
has an outstanding principal amount of $13.4 million and has abaseinterest rate of 5.8% per annum. The bond does not provide
for contingent interest. The bond was purchased in November 2010 for approximately $12.3 million providing an approximate
effective 7.0% vyield to maturity. Autumn Pines' operations resulted in Net Operating Income of $1.1 million on net revenue
of approximately $2.3 million for the year ended 2010. The property is current on principal and interest payments on the
Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Bella Vista- BellaVistaApartmentsis located in Gainesville, Texasand contains 144 units. The tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the syndication of LIHTCs. The
bond has an outstanding principal amount of $6.7 million and has a base interest rate of 6.15% per annum. The bond does not
provide for contingent interest. Bella Vista's operations resulted in net operating income of $521,000 and $517,000 before
payment of debt service on net revenue of approximately $1.1 million and $1.0 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. The
increasein net operating incomeisdueto an decreasein property taxes. The property iscurrent on principal and interest payments
on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Bridle Ridge - Bridle Ridge Apartmentsis located in Greer, South Carolina and contains 152 units. The tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the syndication of
LIHTCs. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $7.9 million and a base interest rate of 6.0% per annum. The bond
does not provide for contingent interest. Bridle Ridge's operations resulted in net operating income of approximately $560,000
and $614,000 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $972,000 and $991,000 in 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The decrease in net operating incomeis due to adecrease in economic occupancy, and increasesin renting expense,
management fees, and property insurance expense. Theproperty iscurrent on principal and interest paymentsonthe Partnership's
bond as of December 31, 2010.

Brookstone - Brookstone Apartmentsislocated in Waukegan, [linoisand contains 168 units. The tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the syndication of LIHTCs. The
bond has an outstanding principal amount of $9.6 million and a base interest rate of 5.45% per annum. The bond does not
provide for contingent interest. These bonds were purchased in October 2009 for approximately $7.3 million providing an
approximateeffective7.5%yieldtomaturity. Brookstone'soperationsresultedinnet operatingincomeof $888,000 and $895,000
before payment of bond debt serviceon net revenueof approximately $1.3 millionand $1.3 millionin 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Thedecreasein net operating incomeisdueto anincreasein utilities expenses. The property iscurrent on principal and interest
payments on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Clarkson College- Clarkson Collegeisa 142 bed student housing facility located in Omaha, Nebraska. Thetax-exempt mortgage
revenue bond owned by the Partnership was issued under Section 145 of the Internal Revenue Code by a not-for-profit entity
qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $5.8 million
and has a base interest rate of 6.0% per annum. The bond also provides for contingent interest payable from excess cash flow
generated by the underlying property through the potential payment of contingent interest. The bond accrues contingent interest
at arate of 1.25% annually and such contingent interest is payable only if the underlying property generates excess operating
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cash flows or realizes excess cash through capital appreciation and a related sale or refinancing of the property. To date the
property has not paid any contingent interest and the Partnership has not recognized any contingent interest income related to
this bond. Clarkson College's operations resulted in net operating income of $361,000 and $409,000 before payment of bond
debt service on net revenue of approximately $611,000 and $625,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. This decrease in net
operating income is due to a decrease in economic occupancy. The property is current on principal and interest payments on
the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

CrossCreek- CrossCreek A partmentsislocatedin Beaufort, South Carolinaand contains 144 units. Thebond hasan outstanding
principal amount of $8.7 million and has a base interest rate of 6.15% per annum. The bond does not provide for contingent
interest. The Cross Creek bond was acquired in April 2009 for approximately $5.9 million providing an approximate effective
7.4% yield to maturity. At that time the project was not completed and was vacant. The Company acquired the taxableloanin
2009 for approximately $900,000 has subsequently made an approximate $2.3 million taxable loan to the property owner to
allow for the completion of construction, lease up and stabilization of the property and the payment of bond debt service Asof
December 31, 2010, Cross Creek Apartments has leased 133 of the 144 units for 92% physical occupancy. Construction of
Cross Creek was completed in November 2009. Cross Creek's operations resulted in net operating income of $375,000 in 2010
compared to a net operating loss of $140,000 in 2009 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately
$1.1 million and $248,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Thisincreasein net operating incomeisdueto afull year of income
and expenses in 2010 compared to a partial year in 2009. The property is current on the payment of principal and base interest
on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Runnymede Apartments - Runnymede Apartmentsislocated in Austin, Texas and contains 252 units. The tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the syndication of
LIHTCs. Thebond has an outstanding principal amount of $10.8 million and has a base interest rate of 6.00%. The bond does
not provide for contingent interest. Runnymede's operations resulted in net operating income of $930,000 and $883,000 before
payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $2.0 million and $2.0 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively. The
improvement from 2009 istheresult of decreasesintemporary employment servicesexpensesand utility expenses. Theproperty
iscurrent on principal and interest payments on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

South Park Ranch Apartments - South Park Ranch Apartments is located in Austin, Texas and contains 192 units. The tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the
syndication of LIHTCs. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $14.1 million and has a base interest rate of 6.13%
per annum. The bond does not provide for contingent interest. This bond was purchased in August 2009 for approximately
$11.9 million providing an approximately 6.8% yield to maturity. South Park's operations resulted in net operating income of
$1.1 million and $1.2 million before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $1.8 million and $1.8 million
in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Thedecreasein net operating incomeisdueto adecreasein economic occupancy. The property
iscurrent on principal and interest payments on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Villagesat Lost Creek - Villagesat Lost Creek islocated in San Antonio, Texasand contains 261 units. Thetax-exempt mortgage
revenue bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of
$18.5 million and has a base interest rate of 6.25% per annum. The bond does not provide for contingent interest. This bond
was purchased in May 2010 for approximately $15.9 million providing an approximately 7.6% yield to maturity. Lost Creek's
operationsresulted in Net Operating Income of $1.5 million on net revenue of approximately $2.3 millionin 2010. Theproperty
iscurrent on principal and interest payments on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Woodlynn Village - Woodlynn Village is located in Maplewood, Minnesota and contains 59 units. The tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bond owned by the Partnership is a private activity housing bond issued in conjunction with the syndication of
LIHTCs. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $4.5 million and has a base interest rate of 6.0% per annum. The
bond does not provide for contingent interest. Woodlynn Village's operations resulted in net operating income of $382,000 and
$401,000 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $590,000 and $578,000 in 2010 and 2009
respectively. The decrease in 2010 as compared to 2009 is due primarily to a decrease in economic occupancy. The property
iscurrent on principal and interest payments on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010.

Woodland Park - The Partnership has identified circumstances which indicate that certain actions may be necessary to protect
the Partnership's position as a secured bondholder of the Woodland Park tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and taxable
lender. Asof December 31, 2010, Woodland Park owes the Partnership approximately $15.7 million under tax-exempt bonds
and approximately $914,000 under taxable loans. The construction of Woodland Park was completed in November 2008 and
lease-up continues, however, the property has not yet reached stabilization which is defined in the bond documents as the
generation of a1.15:1 debt service coverageratio for six straight months. Additionally, there wereinsufficient funds on deposit
with the bond trustee to make the debt service payment of approximately $452,000 on the bonds which was due on May 3, 2010
and the property owner did not provide additional capital to fund the shortfall. As aresult, a payment default on the bonds
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occurred. Inorder to protect itsinvestment, the Partnership issued aformal notice of default through the bond trustee and started
the foreclosure process. The foreclosure process is expected to be complete in the first half of 2011. This action will allow a
new property owner to re-syndicate the LIHTCs associated with this property. If the LIHTCs can be successfully re-syndicated,
it will provide additional capital to the project which can be used to support debt service payments on the tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds until property operations improve to the point that sufficient cash is generated to pay any past due amounts on
the bonds as well as ongoing debt service. If the re-syndication is not successful the Partnership may pursue other options
including making additional taxable loans to the property or completing the foreclosure process and taking direct ownership of
the property. The Partnership believesthat themost significant issuein the slow lease-up of the property anditsfailureto achieve
stabilization has been the 100% set aside of the rental units for tenants that make less than 60% of the area median income. At
the request of the Partnership, in April 2010, the property owner reduced the number of units set aside for affordable tenantsto
75% and began leasing 59 units to market rate tenants. Additionally, the property owner has agreed that, if needed to stabilize
the property, it would further reduce the units set aside for affordable tenants to 60% thereby making an additional 35 units
available to market rate tenants. Asof December 31, 2009, the property had 116 units leased out of total available units of 236,
or 49% physical occupancy. Asof December 31, 2010, the property had 190 units leased out of total available units of 236, or
81% physical occupancy. Based on the level of leasing activity resulting from the change in the mix of affordable and market
rate tenants, the Partnership continues to believe that Woodland is capable of reaching stabilization.

The Partnership has evaluated this bond holding, as part of the evaluation of its entire investment portfolio, for an other-than-
temporary declinein value as of December 31, 2010 (see Note 2 for discussion of our impairment testing method). Based on
this evaluation, the Partnership has concluded that no other-than-temporary impairment of this bond existed at December 31,
2010.

Our ability to recover the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds entire amortized cost basis is dependent upon the issuer being
able to meet debt service requirements. The primary source of repayment is the cash flows produced by the property which
serves as the collateral for the bonds. The Company utilizes a discounted cash flow model for the underlying property and
compares the results of the model to the amortized cost basis of the bond. If the discounted cash flows from a property are less
than the amortized cost of the bond, we believe that there is a strong indication that the cash flows from the property will not
support the payment of the required principle and interest on the bond and, accordingly, the bonds are considered other-than-
temporarily impaired. These modelsreflect the cash flows expected to be generated by the underlying properties over aten year
period, including an assumed property sale at the end of year ten, discounted using the effective interest rate which is equal to
the stated rate on the bonds as they were purchased at par in accordance with the accounting guidance on other than temporary
impairment of debt securities.

The inputs to these models require management to make assumptions the most significant of which include:

* Revenue and expense projections for the property operations, which result in the estimated net operating income
generated over the ten year holding period assumed in the model. Base year (model year one) assumptions are based
on historical financial results and operating budget information. Base year assumptions are then adjusted for expected
changes in occupancy, rental rates and expenses, and

» Thecapitalization rateutilized to estimatethe sal es proceedsfrom an assumed property saleinyear ten of themodel. The
capitalization rate used in the current year models was 7.0% which the Partnership believes represents a reasonable
market rate for multifamily properties.

The revenue, expense and resulting net operating income projections which are the basis for the discounted cash flow model
are based on judgment. Operating results from a multifamily residential property depend on the rental and occupancy rates of
the property and the level of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents are directly affected by the supply of, and demand
for, apartments in the market areas in which a property islocated. This, inturn, is affected by several factors such as local or
national economic conditions, the amount of new apartment construction and interest rates on single-family mortgage loans. In
addition, factors such as government regulation, inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problems and natural disasters can
affect the economic operations of a property.

The various revenue and expense projections for this property's operations are summarized as follows:;

e Woodland Park - Revenue and expensesfor model year one (2011) are equal to the property budget. Budgeted revenues
of approximately $1.7 million are based on a budgeted average occupancy of 88%. Budgeted expenses are
approximately $800,000. Revenuesare projected to grow over theten yearsinthe model to approximately $2.2 million
in year ten based on average annua rental increases of 2% and an average occupancy increasing over time to
93%. Expenses are projected to grow to approximately $1.0 million in year ten based on average annual increases of
2.5%.
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In addition to the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond held by the Company, a taxable loan has been made to the owners of this
property. ThePartnership has evaluated this taxable property loan for potential impairment as of December 31, 2010 (see Note
2 for discussion of our impairment testing method). The repayment of thisloan isdependent largely on the value of the property
which collateralizes the loan. The Company periodically evaluates the loan for potential losses by estimating the fair value of
the property which collateralizes the loan. The Company utilizes the discounted cash flow model discussed above except that
in estimating a property fair value we consider a number of different discounted cash flow models that contain varying
assumptions. Thevariousmodels may assume multiplerevenueand expense scenarios, vari ous capitali zation ratesand multiple
discount rates. We may also consider other information such as independent appraisals in estimating a property fair value. If
the estimated fair value of the property after deducting the amortized cost basis of the senior tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond
exceeds the principal balance of the property loan then no potential lossisindicated and no allowance for loan lossis needed.

In estimating the property valuation for the current year, the most significant assumptions utilized in the discounted cash flow
model were the same as discussed above except that the specific discount rate used to estimate the property valuation in the
current year models was approximately 6.5% which the Partnership believes represents a rate at which a multifamily property
could obtain current tax-exempt financing similar to the current existing outstanding bonds. In addition to the discounted cash
flow models utilized to estimate the property valuation, the Company obtained an independent appraisal for this property in
February 2010. Based on the results of the discounted cash flow model and an evaluation of the appraisal the Partnership has
estimated the property value for Woodland Park which collateralizes the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond and the taxable
loan to be approximately $16.8 million.

Based on this estimated property valuation and after subtracting the amortized cost of the tax-exempt bond, the Partnership
recorded an allowancefor loan |oss of approximately $700,000 in 2009 and an additional allowance of approximately $200,000
in 2010 to reserve for the entire taxable loan balance due from Woodland Park. The Partnership will continue to monitor this
investment for changes in circumstances that might warrant an impairment charge.

Consolidated VIEs - Continuing Operations

The owners of the following properties have been determined to meet the definition of a VIE and the Partnership has been
determined to be the Primary Beneficiary. As a result, the Company reports the assets, liabilities and results of operations of
these properties on a consolidated basis.

Bent Tree - Bent Tree Apartments is located in Columbia, South Carolina and contains 232 units. The tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds owned by the Partnership aretraditional “80/20” bondsissued prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1986. These bonds
require that 20% of the rental units be set aside for tenants whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income,
without adjustment for household size. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $7.7 million and has a base interest
rate of 6.25% per annum. The bond also provides for contingent interest payable from excess cash flow generated by the
underlying property through the potential payment of contingent interest. The bond accrues contingent interest at arate of 1.9%
annually and such contingent interest ispayable only if the underlying property generates excess operating cash flowsor realizes
excess cash through capital appreciation and arelated sale or refinancing of the property. To date, the property has not paid any
contingent interest and the Partnership has not recognized any contingent interest income related to this bond. However, the
property is current on the payment of principal and base interest on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010. Bent Tree's
operations resulted in net operating income of $557,000 and $531,000 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of
approximately $1.5 million and $1.5 millionin 2010 and 2009, respectively. Theincreasein net operating incomeisanet result
of decreased insurance and utilities expenses.

Fairmont Oaks- Fairmont Oaks Apartmentsis|ocated in Gainesville, Floridaand contains 178 units. Thetax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds owned by the Partnership aretraditional “80/20” bondsissued prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1986. These bonds
require that 20% of the rental units be set aside for tenants whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income,
without adjustment for household size. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $7.6 million and has a base interest
rate of 6.3% per annum. The bond also provides for contingent interest payable from excess cash flow generated by the
underlying property through the potential payment of contingent interest. The bond accrues contingent interest at arate of 2.2%
annually and such contingent interest ispayable only if the underlying property generates excess operating cash flowsor realizes
excess cash through capital appreciation and arelated sale or refinancing of the property. To date, the Partnership has realized
$57,000 in contingent interest incomerelated to thisbond. The property is current on the payment of principal and base interest
on the Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010. Fairmont Oak's operations resulted in net operating income of $630,000
and $715,000 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $1.4 million and $1.5 million in 2010 and
2009, respectively. The decrease in net operating income is the result of lower economic occupancy.
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lona Lakes- lona L akes Apartmentsislocated in Fort Myers, Floridaand contains 350 units. Thetax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds owned by the Partnership are traditional “80/20" bondsissued prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1986. These bonds require
that 20% of the rental units be set aside for tenants whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income, without
adjustment for household size. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $15.9 million and has a base interest rate of
6.9% per annum. The bond also provides for contingent interest payable from excess cash flow generated by the underlying
property through the potential payment of contingent interest. The bond accrues contingent interest at arate of 2.6% annually
and such contingent interest is payable only if the underlying property generates excess operating cash flows or realizes excess
cash through capital appreciation and arelated sale or refinancing of the property. To date, the Partnership has realized $8,000
contingent interest income related to this bond. The property is current on the payment of principal and base interest on the
Partnership's bond as of December 31, 2010. lona Lake's operations resulted in net operating income of $931,000 and $804,000
before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $2.5 million and $2.3 million in 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Theincreasein net operatingincomewasaresult of anincreasein economic occupancy aswell asdecreased salary
expenses.

Lake Forest - Lake Forest Apartmentsis located in Daytona Beach, Florida and contains 240 units. The tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds owned by the Partnership aretraditional “80/20” bondsissued prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1986. These bonds
require that 20% of the rental units be set aside for tenants whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income,
without adjustment for household size. The bond has an outstanding principal amount of $9.3 million and has a base interest
rate of 6.25% per annum. The bond also provides for contingent interest payable from excess cash flow generated by the
underlying property through the potential payment of contingent interest. The bond accrues contingent interest at arate of 1.6%
annually and such contingent interest ispayableonly if the underlying property generates excess operating cash flowsor realizes
excess cash through capital appreciation and arelated sale or refinancing of the property. To date, the Partnership has realized
approximately $19,000 of contingent interest income related to this bond. The property is current on the payment of principal
and base interest on the Partnership's bonds as of December 31, 2010. Lake Forest's operations resulted in net operating income
of $676,000 and $723,000 before payment of bond debt service on net revenue of approximately $1.8 million and $1.8 million
in2010and 2009, respectively. Thedecreaseinnet operatingincomeisaresult of increasesin utilitiesand repair and maintenance
expense.

Residences at DeCordova and Residences at Weatherford are bond holdings for which these ownership entities meet the
Consolidated VIE definition. Based on an accumulation of individual circumstances, the Partnership has identified that
DeCordova and Weatherford's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are in aposition for which certain actions may be necessary
to protect the Partnership's position as a secured bondholder and lender. As of December 31, 2010, DeCordova owes the
Partnership approximately $4.9 million under tax-exempt bonds and $648,000 under taxable loans and Weatherford owes the
Partnership approximately $4.7 million under tax-exempt bonds and $1.1 million under taxable loans. The following is a
discussion of the circumstances related to each of these bonds. As both of these entities meet the Consolidated VIE definition
the bonds discussed below are eliminated in consolidation.

Residences at DeCordova. The construction of Residences at DeCordova was completed in April 2009 and |ease-up
continues, however, the property has not yet reached stabilization which is defined in the bond documents as the
generation of a1.15:1 debt service coverageratio for six straight months. Asresult of thefailureto reach stabilization,
thebondisin technical default. Asof December 31, 2010, the property had 65 unitsleased out of total available units
of 76, or 86% physical occupancy. This property is a senior (55+) affordable housing project located in Granbury,
Texas in the Dallas-Fort Worth area. The Partnership believes the most significant issue in the slow lease-up of the
property is the current single family housing market in the Dallas-Fort Worth area. Many potential tenants must first
sell their existing home beforethey are ableto moveinto arental unit. In September 2009, the Partnership was notified
by the tax credit limited partner of the owner of Residences at DeCordova of its intent to withdraw from the limited
partnership. In January 2010, the Partnership concluded its best course of action for the removal of the current limited
partner wasto issue aNotice of Default through the bond trustee and to begin foreclosure procedures. Such noticewas
issued in February 2010 and the foreclosure was completed in March 2010. Through this process the Partnership
removed the limited partner which will allow the property owner to “re-syndicate” the LIHTCsto anew limited partner
thereby providing additional capital to the project. The underwriting estimate of LIHTCs to be generated by this
property that would be available for “re-syndication” is approximately $2.8 million. The syndication of the LIHTCs,
at an amount less than the gross credits generated, would provide additional capital for the project in the form of new
limited partner equity. The Partnership believesthat, if this can be accomplished, such new equity would be sufficient
to allow for the current bonds to remain in place and operations be funded through an extended lease-up period. The
property continued to experience slow lease-up and was unable to re-syndicate the LIHTCs. Asaresult, in December
2010, the Partnership issued a second Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin foreclosure procedures in
order to remove both the general partner and the limited partner and take ownership of the property. This second
foreclosure was completed in February 2011 at which time the ownership of the property was taken by the Partnership.
At this time the Partnership expects to operate the property as a market rate apartment property. Once the property is
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leased up and stabilized the Partnership will evaluate its optionsin order to recoup its investment in DeCordova.

Residences at Weatherford. Residences at Weatherford are currently under construction and will contain 76 units upon
completion. Thisproperty isasenior (55+) affordable housing project located in Weatherford, Texasin the Dallas-Fort
Worth area. At this time infrastructure construction activities have been substantially completed but no construction
has begun on the actual apartment buildings. In January 2010, the Partnership issued a Notice of Default through the
bond trustee and began foreclosure procedures to remove the limited partner. Such notice wasissued in February 2010
and the foreclosure was completed in March 2010. At that time the general partner was allowed to continue in that
capacity and anew limited partner was admitted. Theforeclosurewasareconsideration event under thevariableinterest
entity guidance and as aresult of the reevaluation, the bond was eliminated and the entity that owns the property was
consolidated asa V| E effectivein March 2010. Through this process the Partnership anticipated that the new property
owner would recapitalizethe property by pursuing an alternative plan of financing. Specifically, the Partnership worked
with the general partner of the owner to identify available Tax Credit Assistance Program (“TCAP”) funding through
application to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA"). In March 2010, aTCAPWritten
Agreement with TDHCA was approved and entered into which committed TCAP funds to the project pending the
completion of formal agreements. Formal agreements and funding were originally expected to be completed in the
second quarter of 2010; however, the process was delayed due to the large number of transactions to be closed by
TDHCA. During the delay TDHCA identified certain issues in funding and compliance with other projects in which
the Genera Partner of Residences at Weatherford isinvolved. Asaresult of these issues, in October 2010, TDHCA
issued aNaticeof Terminationof TCAPFundingtothe General Partner. Together withthe General Partner, the Company
unsuccessfully appeal ed the terminati on. Based on thetermination noti ce, the Company hasdetermined that the property
fixed assets of Residences at Weatherford and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is eliminated
in consolidation were impaired. As of December 31, 2010 the property fixed assets, consisting of land and land
improvements, and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond owned by the Partnership have been written
down. Theresulting impairment charge and provision for loan losses of approximately $3.3 million is attributable to
theunitholders. Asaresult of thefailure of the property owner to secure an aternative plan of financing, the Partnership
issued asecond Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin forecl osure procedures in order to remove both the
general partner and the limited partner and take ownership of the property. This second foreclosure was completed in
February 2011 at which time the ownership of the property was taken by the Partnership. The Partnership has taken
over the project and intendsto fund the construction and stabili zation of the project. Upon thecompletion of construction
the Partnership expectsto operate the property as a market rate apartment property. Once the property isleased up and
stabilized the Partnership will evaluate its optionsin order to recoup its investment in Weatherford.

The Partnership evaluated the DeCordova bond, as part of the evaluation of its entire investment portfolio, for an other-than-
temporary declinein value as of December 31, 2010 (see Note 2 for discussion of our impairment testing method). Based on
this evaluation, the Partnership has concluded that no other-than-temporary impairment of the DeCordova bond existed at
December 31, 2010. Asnoted above, the Weatherford bond and related taxable loan were written down in third quarter, 2010.

The process and models utilized by the Company to evaluate bonds for impairment is described above. The various revenue
and expense projections utilized in the valuation model for DeCordova are summarized as follows:

« Revenueand expensesfor model year one (2011) areequal to the property budget. Budgeted revenues of approximately
$580,000 are based on a budgeted average occupancy of 90%. Budgeted expenses are approximately
$250,000. Revenuesare projected to grow over theten yearsin the model to approximately $710,000 in year ten based
onaverageannual rental increasesof 2% and an average occupancy increasing over timeto93%. Expensesareprojected
to grow to approximately $307,000 in year ten based on average annual increases of 2.5%.

In addition to the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond held by the Company, taxable loans have been made to the owners of
DeCordova. The Partnership has evaluated these taxable property loans for potential impairment as of December 31, 2010 as
described above (see Note 2 for discussion of our impairment testing method). Based on the results of the discounted cash flow
model and an evaluation of an appraisal completed in 2010, the Partnership has estimated the property value for the DeCordova
property collateralizing the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond and the taxable loans at $5.9 million.

Based on this estimated property valuation and after subtracting the amortized cost of the tax-exempt bonds, the Partnership has

concluded there is no impairment of the taxable loans made to DeCordova. The Partnership will continue to monitor these
investments for changes in circumstances that might warrant an impairment charge.
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MF Properties

ThePartnership holdsanindirect 99% interest in the owners of each of thefollowing properties. These propertiesare encumbered
by mortgage loans with an aggregate principal balance of $10.6 million at December 31, 2010. There are no tax-exempt bonds
currently secured by these properties. The Company reports the assets, liabilities and results of operations of these properties
on a consolidated basis.

Commons at Churchland - Commons at Churchland islocated in Chesapeake, Virginiaand contains 124 units and was acquired
in August, 2008. The consolidation of Commons at Churchland's operations resulted in the recognition by the Company of
approximately $571,000 and $552,000 in net operating income on revenue of $1.0 million and $1.0 million during 2010 and
2009 respectively. Theincrease in net operating income is primarily due to a decrease in advertising and utilities expenses.

Eagle Ridge- EagleRidge Townhomesislocated in Erlanger, K entucky and contains 64 unitsand wasacquired in July 2007. The
consolidation of Eagle Ridge's operations resulted in recognition by the Company of net operating income of $190,000 and
$121,000 on net revenue of approximately $479,000 and $427,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Theincreasein net operating
income is the result of increased economic occupancy.

Glynn Place - Glynn Place Apartmentsis located in Brunswick, Georgia and contains 128 units and was acquired in October
2008. The consolidation of Glynn Place Apartment's operations resulted in the recognition by the Company of approximately
$288,000 and $231,000 of net operating income on revenue of $753,000 and $734,000 during 2010 and 2009 respectively. The
increase in net operating income is due primarily to adecrease in salary, utility and repair and maintenance expenses.

Greens of Pine Glen - Greens of Pine Glen Apartmentsis located in Durham, North Carolina and contains 168 units and was
acquired in February 2009. The consolidation of Greens of Pine Glen Apartment's operations resulted in the recognition by the
Company of approximately $460,000 of net operating income on revenue of $1.2 million during 2010 and $289,000 of net
operating income on revenue of $1.1 million during the ten months of 2009.

Meadowview - Meadowview Apartmentsis located in Highland Heights, Kentucky and contains 118 units and was acquired in
July 2007. The consolidation of Meadowview's operations resulted in recognition by the Company of net operating income of
$368,000 and $355,000 on net revenue of approximately $864,000 and $819,000 in 2010 and 2009 respectively. Theincrease
in net operating incomeistheresult of increased economic occupancy and decreased salary and repair and maintenance expenses
which was offset by an increase in utilities expenses.

In June 2010, the Company completed a sal es transaction whereby four of the MF Properties, Crescent Village, Post Woods (|
and I1) and Willow Bend apartments in Ohio (the “ Ohio Properties’), were sold to three new ownership entities controlled by
an unaffiliated not-for-profit entity. The Company acquired 100% of the $18.3 million tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
issued by the Ohio Housing Finance Agency as part of a plan of financing for the acquisition and rehabilitation of the Ohio
Properties. Thetax-exempt mortgage bonds secured by the Ohio Properties were acquired by the Company at par and consisted
of two series. The Series A bond has apar value of $14.7 million and bearsinterest at an annual rate of 7.0%. The Series B bond
has a par value of $3.6 million and bearsinterest at an annual interest rate of 10.0%. Both series of bonds mature in June 2050.
TheCompany had previously acquired a99% interest inthe Ohio Propertiesaspart of itsstrategy of acquiring existingmultifamily
apartment properties that it expects will be partially financed with new tax-exempt mortgage bonds at the time the properties
becomedligiblefor theissuance of additional low-income housing tax credits. In addition to the new tax-exempt bonds acquired
by the Company, the plan of financing for the acquisition included other subordinated debt issued by the Company. The new
owners ultimately plan to sell limited partnership interestsin the properties and syndicate LIHTCs as part of the overall plan of
finance. The new owners have not contributed any capital to the transaction and the Company has effectively provided 100%
of the capital structure to the new owners as part of the sale transaction. Pursuant to Property, Plant, and Equipment - Real
Estate Sales guidance the sale and restructure does not meet the criteria for derecognition of the properties or full accrual
accounting for thegain. The guidance requires sufficient equity capital as part of asales transaction to indicate acommitment
from the buyer (typically a minimum of 3 to 5% investment by the new owners). As the buyer has no equity capital in this
transaction and the property operations are the current support for the debt service, the Company, in substance, remains the
owner for accounting purposes. As such, the Company will continue to consolidate the Ohio Properties as if the sale was not
completed. Under the sales agreement, the Ohio properties were sold for atotal purchase price of $16.2 million. Cash received
by the selling limited partnerships as part of the sal e transaction represents a gain on the sale transaction of approximately $1.8
million. The properties will continue to be presented as MF Properties and no gain will be recognized until such time as the
transaction meets the criteria for derecognition of the properties and gain recognition (See Note 5 and 6). The following isa
discussion of the operating results for the three Ohio Properties.
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Crescent Village - Crescent Village Townhomesis located in Cincinnati, Ohio and contains 90 units and was acquired in July
2007. The consolidation of Crescent Village's operations resulted in recognition by the Company of net operating income of
$146,000 and $366,000 on net revenue of approximately $726,000 and $749,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. The decrease
in net operating income is the result of decreased occupancy along with an increase in utility and administration expenses.
Crescent Village also paid a one-time administration fee to AFCA2.

Post Woods- Post Woods Townhomesis|ocated in Reynoldsburg, Ohio and contains 180 units and was acquired in July 2007.
The consolidation of Post Woods' operations resulted in the recognition by the Company of net operating income of $344,000
and $683,000 on net revenue of approximately $1.4 million and $1.4 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively. The decreasein
net operatingincomeisaresult of anincreasein advertising and utilitiesexpense. Post Woodsal so paid aone-timeadministration
feeto AFCA2.

Willow Bend - Willow Bend Townhomesislocated in Columbus (Hilliard), Ohio and contains 92 units and was acquired in July
2007. Theconsolidation of Willow Bend'soperationsresulted in recognition by the Company of net operatingincome of $157,000
and $343,000 on net revenue of approximately $776,000 and $795,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. The decrease in net
operating income is the result of decreased economic occupancy and increased utility expenses. Willow Bend also paid a one-
time administration feeto AFCA2.

Results of Operations

The Consolidated Company

The tables below compare the results of operations for the Company for 2010, 2009, and 2008:

For the For the For the
Y ear Ended Y ear Ended Y ear Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Revenues:
Property revenues $ 14692537 $ 15667,053 $ 13,773,801
Mortgage revenue bond investment income 6,881,314 4,253,164 4,230,205
Gain on sale of assets held for sale — 862,865 —
Gain on early extinquishment of debt 435,395 — —
Loss on sale of security — — (68,218)
Other interest income 455,622 106,082 150,786

Total Revenues 22,464,868 20,889,164 18,086,574
Expenses:
Real estate operating (exclusive of items shown below) 10,016,742 10,127,657 8,872,219
Provision for loan loss 562,385 1,401,731 —
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford 2,528,852 — —
Depreciation and amortization 5,062,817 6,067,330 4,987,417
Interest 2,514,479 4,202,126 4,106,072
Genera and administrative 2,383,784 1,997,661 1,808,459

Total Expenses 23,069,059 23,796,505 19,774,167
Income (loss) from continuing operations (604,191) (2,907,341) (1,687,593)
Income from discontinued operations — 26,734,754 646,989
Net income (10ss) (604,191) 23,827,413 (1,040,604)
Less: net |oss attributable to noncontrolling interest 203,831 11,540 9,364
Net (loss) income - AmericaFirst Tax Exempt Investors, L. P. $ (400,360) $ 23,838,953 $  (1,031,240)

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Property Revenues. Property revenues of the Company consist of those of the MF Propertiesaswell asthe six Consolidated
VIEs treated as continuing operations during the periods. Property revenues decreased approximately $1.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009 mainly as a result of Ashley Square and Cross Creek
Apartments no longer being reported as Consolidated VIEs in 2010. Accordingly, no revenues from the operation of these
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properties were included in property revenues reported by the Company in 2010 compared to approximately $1.5 million of
property revenues from these properties that were reported in 2009. The decline in property revenue due to the deconsolidation
of Ashley Square and Cross Creek was partially offset by an increase of approximately $300,000 in property revenues generated
by Residences at DeCordova which became a Consolidated VIE on March 1, 2010 and general improvements in economic
occupancy. Annual net rental revenues per unit related to the MF Properties increased to $7,295 per unit in 2010 from $7,119in
2009. Theannual net rental revenues per unit related to the Consolidated VIEs increased to approximately $6,920 in 2010 from
approximately $6,216 in 2009.

Mortgage revenue bond investment income. Mortgage revenue bond investment income of the Company consists of the
interest income earned only on the mortgage revenue bonds that were not issued to finance properties owned by Consolidated
VIEs. The deconsolidation of Ashley Square and Cross Creek Apartments increased investment income by approximately
$962,000. These properties are no longer treated as Consolidated VIEs as of January 1, 2010, therefore the interest paid to the
Company on the tax-exempt bonds is no longer eliminated in consolidation. In addition, the Company realized additional tax-
exempt interest income of approximately $1.9 million due to the acquisition of four tax-exempt bonds, South Park Ranch
Apartments, Brookstone Apartments, Villagesat L ost Creek, and Autumn Pinesthat were not owned during 2009. Theseincreases
were offset by interest income from Residences at DeCordova and Residences at Weatherford which became Consolidated VIEs
on March 1, 2010. The interest income related to these bonds is now eliminated in consolidation. The elimination of DeCordova
and Weatherford interest in 2010 totaled approximately $478,000.

Gain on assets held for sale. In September 2009, the Partnership sold the Oak Grove Commons apartments, an asset held
for sale, to an unaffiliated party for $3.75 million. After the deduction of selling expenses, commissions, and cash advances made
to the property, the Partnership realized a taxable gain of approximately $863,000 from the sale. There was no similar transaction
in 2010.

Gain on early extinguishment of debt. 1n June 2010, the Company had the opportunity to acquire at adiscount, and thereby
retire, the $12.8 million outstanding mortgage debt secured by the Ohio Properties. The early extinguishment of this debt resulted
in again of approximately $435,000. There was no similar transaction in 2009.

Other interest income. Other income is comprised mainly of interest income on taxable loans held by the Company. The
increase in other interest income is attributable to higher levels of taxable loans outstanding in 2010.

Real estate operating expenses. When comparing 2010 to 2009, a decrease of approximately $1.3 million in real estate
operating expenses is the result of the Ashley Square and Cross Creek Apartments deconsolidation. This decrease was offset by
approximately $428,000 of expenses related to the consolidation of Residences at DeCordova and Residences at Weatherford, an
increase of approximately $231,000 in administrative fees, and an increase of approximately $376,000 of acquisition related costs
incurred by the MF Properties. The acquisition costs incurred in 2010 by the Ohio Property owners represent expenses of non-
controlling interests. In addition, there were increases in MF Property related market ready, insurance, and salary expense.

Provision for loan loss. The Company periodically, or as changes in circumstances or operations dictate, evaluates its
investmentsforimpairment. Thevalueof theunderlying property assetsisultimately the most rel evant measure of valueto support
the investment carrying values. Investments tested for impairment include all fixed assets, bond investments and taxable loans
made to various properties and other amounts due to the Company. Such evaluation is based on cash flow and discounted cash
flow models. The Company concluded that there was no impairment of fixed assets or bond investments as of December 31,
2010, except for the Residences of Weatherford as discussed below. This evaluation determined that a portion of the taxable
property loans was potentially impaired and that an additional allowance for bad debt should be recorded. An allowance for bad
debt and an associated provision for loan loss of approximately $212,000 and $700,000 was recorded against the Woodland Park
taxableloanin 2010 and 2009, respectively. Inaddition, during thefourth quarter of 2010, $350,000 was recorded as an allowance
for bad debt and an associated provision for loan |oss against the cross collateralized Ashley Square and Cross Creek taxableloans.
In 2009 the Company recorded a$700,000 allowancefor bad debt against the judgment receivabl e related to the 2008 foreclosure
on the Prairiebrook Village bonds.

Asset impairment charge - Weatherford. Dueto theinability of the property owner to secure an alternative plan of financing
to complete construction of the project (see Note 5 and discussion above) the Company has determined that the property fixed
assets of Residences at Weatherford and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is eliminated in consolidation
wereimpaired. Asof September 30, 2010 the property fixed assets, consisting of land and land improvements, and the associated
tax-exempt mortgagerevenuebond owned by the Partnershipwerewritten down. Theresultingimpairment chargeof approximately
$2.5 million is attributable to the unitholders. In February 2011, the Company foreclosed on the current ownership and will
continue to devel op the property.
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Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization consists primarily of depreciation associated with the
apartment properties of the Consolidated VI Esand the MF Properties, amortization associ ated with in-place lease intangibl e assets
recorded as part of the purchase accounting for the acquisition of MF Properties, and deferred finance cost amortization written
off upon retirement of the BOA Credit Facility in addition to new amortization of finance costs related to the closing of the TEBS
Credit Facility. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense from 2009 to 2010 is attributable to a decrease of
approximately $96,000 in deferred financing cost amortization, a decrease of approximately $708,000 in in-place lease
amortization, and an approximate $581,000 decrease due to deconsolidation of Ashley Square and Cross Creek Apartments. These
were offset by adepreciation expenseincrease of approximately $200,000 due the consolidation of Residences at DeCordovaand
an increase of approximately $177,000 due to depreciation on assets added to the existing MF Properties and Consolidated VIEs
during 2010 .

Interest expense. The decreasein interest expense of $1.7 millionin 2010 as compared to 2009 was dueto offsetting factors.
Approximately $1.5 million of the decrease was a result of the mark to market adjustment of the Company's derivatives. These
interest rate derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and, accordingly, they are carried at fair value, with changesin fair
valueincluded in current period earnings within interest expense. The remaining change in interest expense results from changes
in the average outstanding debt throughout the year combined with changes in the Company's cost of borrowing. The average
outstanding debt decreased slightly while the average cost of borrowing increased slightly from approximately 3.5% per annum
in 2009 to approximately 3.6% per annum in 2010.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expensesincreased mainly dueto increased professional
fees and administration fees. Professional fees increased approximately $258,000 due mainly to accounting, legal and other
professional fees associated with the process the Company utilized to respond to acomment | etter received by the Company from
the Securities Exchange Commission in the first quarter of 2010. Additional professional feeswere aso incurred for accounting
consultation regarding the implementation of new accounting standards in 2010. Administration fees paid to AFCA 2 increased
approximately $335,000 asthe Company hasahigher level of invested assets and taxable loansin 2010. Off setting these expenses
was a reduction in reimbursable employee related costs paid to AFCA 2.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Property Revenues. Property revenues of the Company consist of those of the MF Propertiesaswell asthe six VIEstreated
ascontinuing operationsduring the periods. Property revenuesincreased approximately $1.9 millionfor theyear ended December
31, 2009 compared to the year ended December 31, 2008. Approximately $2.3 million is attributable to the acquisition of the
Commons at Churchland and Glynn Place Apartments acquired in the second half of 2008 and Greens of Pine Glen, acquired in
the first quarter of 2009. Property revenues for the VIEs reported a net decrease of approximately $317,000 due to reduced
occupancy at existing VIEs offset by approximately $248,000 of increased revenues from a new VIE, Cross Creek Apartments,
acquired inthe second quarter 2009. Theremaining decreasein Property revenuesistheresult of adeclinein Economic Occupancy
at the MF Properties. Annual net rental revenues per unit related to the MF Properties decreased to $7,119 per unit in 2009 from
$7,667 in 2008. The annual net rental revenues per unit related to the VIEs decreased to approximately $6,216 in 2009 from
approximately $7,664 in 2008.

Mortgage revenue bond investment income. Mortgage revenue bond investment income of the Company consists of the
interest income earned only on the mortgage revenue bonds that were not issued to finance properties owned by VIEs. Mortgage
revenue bond investment income was flat year over year due to offsetting factors. Income from three new bond investments
acquired in 2009 was approximately $500,000. Offsetting this increase was a decrease in interest income resulting from the
disposal of two bond investments plus the foreclosure of the Prairiebrook bond in 2008.

Gain on sale of asset held for sale. In September 2009, the Company sold the Oak Grove Commons apartments, an asset
held for sale, to an unaffiliated party for $3.75 million. After the deduction of selling expenses, commissions and cash advances
made to the property, the Company realized ataxable gain of approximately $863,000 from the sale.

Loss on sale of securities. The Chandler Creek and Deerfield bonds were sold in 2008 for par value plus accrued interest.
The loss resulted from the write off of unamortized deferred financing costs related to the bonds.

Other interest income. Other interest income represents interest earned on cash and cash equivalents. Although cash and

cash equivalents average outstanding balances were greater during 2009, the decrease in interest income is attributable to
significantly lower interest rates earned during 2009 as compared to 2008.

39



Real estate operating expenses. Real estate operating expenses increased approximately $1.2 million during 2009 as
comparedto 2008. Approximately $1.5 million of theincreaseisattributableto the acquisition of three M F Properties, the Commons
at Churchland and Glynn Place Apartments acquired in the second half of 2008 and Greens of Pine Glen, acquired in the first
quarter of 2009. In addition, Cross Creek Apartments, aconsolidated VI E, acquired during the second quarter of 2009, contributed
approximately $410,000 of additional real estate operating expenses. Off setting theseincreaseswas anet decrease of approximately
$770,000in VIE real estate operating expenses mainly from decreased repairs, maintenance and supplies expenses.

Provision for loan loss. The Company periodically, or as changes in circumstances or operations dictate, evaluates its
investmentsforimpairment. Thevalueof theunderlying property assetsisultimately the most rel evant measure of valueto support
the investment carrying values. Investments tested for impairment include all fixed assets, bond investments and taxable loans
made to various properties and other amounts due to the Company. Such evaluation is based on cash flow and discounted cash
flow models. The Company concluded that there was no impairment of fixed assets or bond investments as of December 31,
2009. Thisevaluation did determine that a portion of the taxable property loans were potentially impaired and that an additional
allowance or bad debt should be recorded. An allowance for bad debt and associated provision for loan loss of approximately
$700,000 was recorded against the Woodland Park taxable loan. Additionally, in May 2008, the Company filed a petition of
foreclosureonthePrairiebrook Villagebondswhichwerein default. In 2008, the Company recorded areceivable of approximately
$987,000 representing the remai ning amounts due from the project owner and devel oper based on summary judgment obtained. At
December 31, 2009, the current receivable amount was $713,500. Dueto anumber of factorsthe Company recorded an allowance
for bad debt against the judgment receivable as of December 31, 2009. The alowance for bad debt and associated provision for
loan loss recorded was $700,000.

Depreciationand amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense, which consistsprimarily of depreciation associ ated
withtheapartment propertiesof the Consolidated V1 Esand the M F Properti es, amortizati on associ ated within-placeleaseintangible
assets recorded as part of the purchase accounting for the acquisition of MF Properties, and deferred finance cost amortization
related to atender option bond credit facility that wasin place until June 2009, increased approximately $1.1 million in 2009 as
comparedto 2008. Approximately $1.1 million of theincreaseisattributableto the acquisition of three M F Properties, the Commons
at Churchland and Glynn Place Apartments acquired in the second half of 2008 and Greens of Pine Glen, acquired in the first
quarter of 2009. In addition, Cross Creek Apartments, acquired during the second quarter of 2009, contributed approximately
$203,000. These increases were offset by a decrease in amortization related to the deferred finance costs from the purchase of the
six MF propertiesin June, 2007 that were fully amortized in 2009 and the tender option bond credit facility.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased approximately $96,000 during 2009 compared to 2008 due to changes in
outstanding debt, borrowing rates, and the fair value of our interest rate derivatives. Tota outstanding debt from continuing
operations was $87.9 million at December 31, 2008 as compared to $85.5 million as of December 31, 2009 and the Company's
borrowing cost decreased from 4.5% per annum in 2008 to 3.5% per annum in 2009. These two factors accounted for a decrease
in interest expense of approximately $348,000. Offsetting this decrease was an increase in interest expense resulting from the
mark to market adjustments reflecting decreases in the fair value of our interest rate derivatives.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenseswere up approximately $185,000in 2009. This
increase was realized in professional fees and salary expense.

Discontinued Operations

In February 2009, the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds secured by Ashley Pointe at Eagle Crest in Evansville, Indiana,
Woodbridge Apartment of Bloomington I11 in Bloomington, Indiana, and Woodbridge Apartments of Louisvillell in Louisville,
Kentucky wereredeemed. The properties financed by these redeemed mortgage revenue bonds were required to be consolidated
into the Company's financial statements as VIEs under the guidance on consolidations. During the fourth quarter of 2008, these
VIEs met the criteria for discontinued operations under the guidance on property, plant and equipment and they were classified
as such in the consolidated financial statements for all periods presented. In order to properly reflect the transaction under the
guidance on consolidations, the Company recorded the redemption of the bonds as a sale of the properties as though they were
owned by the Company. The transaction was completed for atotal purchase price of $32.0 million resulting in again on salefor
GAAP reporting to the Company of approximately $26.5 million. The redemption of the bonds did not result in ataxable gain to
theCompany. Asof December 31, 2008, Ashley Pointe, WoodbridgeA partmentsof Bloomington 111, and WoodbridgeA partments
of Louisville Il reported assets of approximately $8.1 million and liabilities of approximately $23.3 million which are included
in assets and liabilities of discontinued operations, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 net
income, excluding the gain on sale, from these VI Es of approximately $347,000, $647,000 and $824,000, respectively, isincluded
in the income from discontinued operations.
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The Partnership

Thefollowing discussion of the Partnership's results of operationsfor the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 reflects
the operations of the Partnership without the consolidation of the Consolidated VIEs required by the guidance on consolidations.

This information reflects the information used by management to analyze the Partnership's operations and is reflective of the
consolidated operations of the Tax-Exempt Bond | nvestments segment and the MF Properties segment as presented in Note 18 to
the financial statements.

For the For the For the
Y ear Ended Y ear Ended Y ear Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Revenues:
Property revenues $ 7,205,099 $ 7,045578 % 4,793,535
Mortgage revenue bond investment income 10,223,269 11,087,923 10,102,802
Gain on sale of assets held for sale — 862,865 —
Gain on early debt retirement of debt 435,395 — —
Other interest income 488,427 106,082 150,786
Loss on sale of security — (127,495) (68,218)

Total Revenues 18,352,190 18,974,953 14,978,905
Expenses:
Real estate operating (exclusive of items shown below) 4,917,287 4,151,353 2,628,606
Provision for loan loss 1,147,716 1,696,730 —
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford 2,716,330 — —
Depreciation and amortization 2,810,525 3,514,073 2,728,096
Interest 2,514,479 4,283,680 5,097,454
Genera and administrative 2,383,784 1,997,661 1,808,459

Total Expenses 16,490,121 15,643,497 12,262,615
Net income 1,862,069 3,331,456 2,716,290
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 203,831 11,540 9,364
Net income - America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. $ 2,065,900 $ 3,342,996 $ 2,725,654

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Property Revenues. Property revenues of the Partnership consists only of those of the MF Properties. The overall increase
wastheresult of theincrease related to Greens of Pine Glen which was owned for the entire 2010 year as compared to ten months
in 2009. Annual net rental revenues per unit related to the MF Properties increased to $7,295 per unit in 2010 from $7,119 in
2009.

Mortgage revenue bond investment income. Mortgage revenue bond investment income of the Partnership consists of the
interest income earned on the mortgage revenue bonds actually held by the Partnership during the respective periods including
the bonds secured by properties owned by Consolidated VIES that are eliminated in consolidation in the Company's financial
statements. The decrease in mortgage revenue bond investment income during 2010 compared to 2009 is mainly the result of the
redemption of the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds secured by Ashley Pointe at Eagle Crest, Woodbridge A partment of
Bloomington 11 and WoodbridgeA partmentsof Louisvillell in February 2009. Thesebond redemptionsresultedintherecognition
of $2.5 million of contingent and deferred interest plus approximately $313,000 of regular bond interest in 2009. In addition,
approximately $164,000 of interest income was recorded in 2009 related to the Oak Grove and Prairiebrook bonds which were
not held in 2010. These decreases were partially offset by additional tax-exempt interest payments of approximately $2.2 million
received by the Partnership during 2010 due mainly to the acquisition of new tax-exempt bonds on Cross Creek Apartments,
South Park Ranch Apartments, Brookstone Apartments, Villages at Lost Creek, and Autumn Pines. Due to the uncertainty in
collections of contingent interest, the Partnership recognizes this asincome only when it is realized.

Gain on assets held for sale. In September 2009, the Partnership sold the Oak Grove Commons apartments, an asset held
for sale, to an unaffiliated party for $3.75 million. After the deduction of selling expenses, commissions and cash advances made
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to the property, the Partnership realized ataxable gain of approximately $863,000 from the sale. Therewas no similar transaction
in 2010.

Gain on early extinguishment of debt. In June 2010, the Partnership had the opportunity to acquire at adiscount, and thereby
retire, the $12.8 million outstanding mortgage debt secured by the Ohio Properties. The early extinguishment of this debt resulted
in again of approximately $435,000.

Other interestincome. Other interestincomeiscomprised mainly of interestincomeontaxableloansheld by the Partnership.
Theincrease in other interest income is attributable to higher levels of taxable |oans outstanding in 2010.

Loss on sale of securities. The bond redemptions secured by Ashley Pointe at Eagle Crest, Woodbridge Apartment of
Bloomington 111 and Woodbridge Apartmentsof Louisville Il in February 2009 resulted in alossfrom the write off of unamortized
deferred financing costs related to the bonds.

Real estate operating expenses. Real estate operating expensesassociated with the MF Propertiesare comprised principally
of real estate taxes, property insurance, utilities, property management fees, repairs and maintenance, and salaries and related
employee expenses of on-site employees. Real estate operating expenses increased as a result of an increase of approximately
$231,000 in administrative fees, and an increase of approximately $376,000 of acquisition related costs incurred by the MF
Properties. The acquisition costs incurred in 2010 by the Ohio Property owners represent expenses of non-controlling interests.
In addition, there were increases in MF Property related market ready, insurance, and salary expense.

Provision for loan loss. The Partnership periodically, or as changes in circumstances or operations dictate, evaluates its
investmentsforimpairment. Thevalueof theunderlying property assetsisultimately the most rel evant measure of valueto support
the investment carrying values. Investments tested for impairment include all fixed assets, bond investments, and taxable |oans
made to various properties and other amounts due to the Partnership. Such evaluation is based on cash flow and discounted cash
flow models. The Partnership concluded that there was no impairment of fixed assets or bond investments as of December 31,
2010, except for Residences at Wesatherford discussed below. Thisevaluation did determine that a portion of the taxable property
loans were potentially impaired and that an additional allowance for loan loss should be recorded. An allowance for loan loss of
approximately $1.1 million and $700,000 was recorded against the the property taxable loans during 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Additionaly, in 2009 a$700,000 allowance for bad debt was recorded against the judgment receivable related to
the 2008 foreclosure on the Prairiebrook Village bonds.

Asset impairment charge - Weatherford. Dueto theinability of the property owner to secure an alternative plan of financing
to complete construction of the project (see Note 5 and discussion above) the Partnership has determined that the property fixed
assets of Weatherford and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is eliminated in consolidation were impaired.
As of September 30, 2010 the property fixed assets, consisting of land and land improvements, and the associated tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bond owned by the Partnership were written down. The resulting impairment charge of approximately $2.7
million is attributable to the unitholders. In February 2011, the Partnership foreclosed on the current ownership and will continue
to develop the property.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization consists primarily of depreciation associated with the MF
Properties, amortization associated with in-place lease intangible assets recorded as part of the purchase accounting for the
acquisition of MF Properties and deferred finance cost amortization written off upon retirement of the BOA Credit Facility in
addition to new amortization of finance costs related to the closing of the TEBS Credit Facility. The decrease in depreciation and
amortization expense from 2009 to 2010 is attributable to a decrease of approximately $96,000 in deferred financing cost
amortization and a decrease of approximately $708,000 of in-place |ease amortization which are fully amortized. The remaining
differenceisdirectly related to an increase in depreciation expense on the existing MF Properties due to newly capitalized assets.

Interest expense. The decreasein interest expense of $1.7 millionin 2010 as compared to 2009 was dueto offsetting factors.
Approximately $1.5 million of the decrease was aresult of the mark to market adjustment of the Partnership 'sderivatives. These
interest rate derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and, accordingly, they are carried at fair value, with changesin fair
valueincluded in current period earnings within interest expense. The remaining changein interest expense results from changes
in the average outstanding debt throughout the year combined with changesin the Partnership 's cost of borrowing. The average
outstanding debt decreased dlightly while the average cost of borrowing increased slightly from approximately 3.5% per annum
in 2009 to approximately 3.6% per annum in 2010.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expensesincreased mainly dueto increased professional
fees and administration fees. Professional fees increased approximately $258,000 due mainly to accounting, legal and other
professional fees associated with the process the Partnership utilized to respond to a comment letter received by the Partnership
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fromthe SecuritiesExchange Commissioninthefirst quarter of 2010. Additional professional feeswereal soincurredfor accounting
consultation regarding the implementation of new accounting standards in 2010. Administration fees paid to AFCA 2 increased
approximately $335,000 as the Company hasahigher level of invested assets and taxableloansin 2010. Offsetting these expenses
was a reduction in reimbursable employee expenses paid to AFCA 2.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Property Revenues. Property revenues of the Partnership consists only of those of the MF Properties. Property revenues
increased approximately $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the same period of 2008. Thisincrease
was attributable to the acquisition of the Commons at Churchland and Glynn Place Apartments during the second half of 2008
and Greensof PineGlen, during thefirst quarter of 2009. Annual net rental revenues per unit related to the M F Properties decreased
to $7,119 per unit in 2009 from $7,667 in 2008.

Mortgage revenue bond investment income. Mortgage revenue bond investment income of the Partnership consists of the
interest income earned on the mortgage revenue bonds actually held by the Partnership during the respective periods including
the bonds secured by properties owned by VIEs that are eliminated in consolidation in the Company's financial
statements. Mortgage revenue bond investment income increased approximately $985,000 in 2009 compared to 2008. The
increaseisthe net effect of approximately $907,000 increase in base bond interest resulting from bonds acquired in 2008 and 2009
plus a $2.2 million increase in realized contingent interest income offset by a decrease in base interest of approximately $2.1
million resulting from the sale of two bond investments in 2008, the foreclosure of a bond investment in 2008, and the early
redemption of three bondsin February 2009. Dueto the uncertainty in collections of contingent interest, the Partnership recognizes
this asincome only when it is realized.

Gain on sale of asset held for sale. In September 2009, the Partnership sold the Oak Grove Commons apartments, an asset
held for sale, to an unaffiliated party for $3.75 million. After the deduction of selling expenses, commissions, and cash advances
made to the property, the Partnership realized ataxable gain of approximately $863,000 from the sale.

Loss on sale of securities. The Chandler Creek and Deerfield bonds were sold in 2008 for par value plus accrued interest.
In 2009, the loss is related to the three bonds redeemed during the first quarter of 2009. The losses result from the write off of
unamortized deferred financing costs related to the bonds.

Other interest income. Other interest income represents interest earned on cash and cash equivalents. Although cash and
cash equivalents average outstanding balances were greater during 2009, the decrease in interest income is attributable to
significantly lower interest rates earned during 2009 as compared to 2008.

Real estate operating expenses. Real estate operating expenses increased approximately $1.5 million during 2009 as
compared to 2008. Thisincreaseis attributable to the acquisition of three MF Properties, the Commons at Churchland and Glynn
Place Apartments acquired in the second half of 2008 and Greens of Pine Glen, acquired in the first quarter of 2009.

Provision for loan loss. The Partnership periodically, or as changes in circumstances or operations dictate, evaluates its
investmentsforimpairment. Thevalueof theunderlying property assetsisultimately the most rel evant measure of valueto support
the investment carrying values. Investments tested for impairment include all fixed assets, bond investments, and taxable |oans
made to various properties and other amounts due to the Partnership . Such evaluation is based on cash flow and discounted cash
flow models. The Partnership concluded that there was no impairment of fixed assets or bond investments as of December 31,
2009. Thisevaluation did determine that a portion of the taxable property loans were potentially impaired and that an additional
allowance for bad debt should be recorded. An alowancefor bad debt and an associated provision for loan loss of approximately
$1.0 million was recorded against the the property taxable loans during 2009. Additionally, in May 2008, the Partnership filed a
petition of foreclosure on the Prairiebrook Village bonds which were in default. 1n 2008, the Partnership recorded a receivable
of approximately $987,000 representing the remaining amounts due from the project owner and developer based on summary
judgment obtained. At December 31, 2009, thecurrent receivableamountwas$713,500. Duetoanumber of factorsthePartnership
recorded an allowance for bad debt against the judgment receivable as of December 31, 2009. The allowance for bad debt and
associated provision for loan loss recorded was $700,000.

Depreciationand amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense, which consistsprimarily of depreciation associ ated
with the consolidated MF Properties, amortization associated with in-place | ease intangible assets recorded as part of the purchase
accounting for the acquisition of MF Propertiesand deferred finance cost amortization rel ated to atender option bond credit facility
that was in place until June 2009, increased approximately $761,000 in 2009 as compared to 2008. Approximately $1.1 million
of theincrease s attributabl e to the acquisition of three MF Properties, the Commons at Churchland and Glynn Place A partments
acquired in the second half of 2008 and Greens of Pine Glen, acquired in the first quarter of 2009. These increases were offset by

43



adecrease in amortization related to the deferred finance costs from the purchase of the six MF propertiesin June, 2007 that were
fully amortized in 2009.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased approximately $814,000 during 2009 compared to 2008 due to changes in
borrowing rates, outstanding debt amounts, and fair value adjustments on our interest rate derivatives. Total outstanding debt was
$85.5 million at December 31, 2009 as compared to $107.5 million as of December 31, 2008 and the Partnership's borrowing cost
decreased from 4.6% per annum in 2008 to 3.4% per annum in 2009 resulting in a $1.2 million decrease. The mark to market
adjustments related to derivatives offset this decrease.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenseswere up approximately $185,000in 2009. This
increase was realized in professional fees and salary expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Tax-exempt interest on mortgage revenue bonds. Tax-exempt interest earned on the mortgage revenue bonds, including those
financing properties held by Consolidated VIEs, represents the Partnership's principal source of cash flow. The Partnership may
also receive cash distributions from equity interests held in MF Properties. Tax-exempt interest is primarily comprised of base
interest payments received on the Partnership's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds. Certain of the tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds may also generate payments of contingent interest to the Partnership from time to time when the underlying apartment
properties generate excess cash flow. Because base interest on each of the Partnership's mortgage revenue bonds is fixed, the
Partnership's cash receiptstend to befairly constant period to period unless the Partnership acquires or disposes of itsinvestments
in tax-exempt bonds. Changes in the economic performance of the properties financed by tax-exempt bonds with a contingent
interest provision will affect theamount of contingent interest, if any, paid tothe Partnership. Similarly, theeconomic performance
of MF Properties will affect the amount of cash distributions, if any, received by the Partnership from its ownership of these
properties. The economic performance of a multifamily apartment property depends on the rental and occupancy rates of the
property and on the level of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents are directly affected by the supply of, and demand
for, apartments in the market area in which a property is located. This, in turn, is affected by several factors such as local or
national economic conditions, theamount of new apartment construction and the affordability of single-family homes. Inaddition,
factors such as government regulation (such as zoning laws), inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problems, and natural
disasters can affect the economic operations of an apartment property. The primary uses of cash by apartment properties are the
payment of operating expenses and debt service.

TEBSFinancing. Other sources of cash available to the Partnership include debt financing and the sale of additional BUCs. As
of September 1, 2010, the Partnership and its Consolidated Subsidiary ATAX TEBSI, LLC, entered into a number of agreements
relating to a new long-term debt financing facility provided through the securitization of 13 tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
pursuant to Freddie Mac's TEBS program. The gross proceeds from TEBS Financing were approximately $95.8 million. After
the payment of transaction expensesthe Company received net proceedsfrom the TEBS Financing of approximately $90.4 million.
The Company applied approximately $49.5 million of these net proceeds to repay the entire outstanding principal of, and accrued
interest on, its secured term loan from Bank of America

The TEBS Financing essentially provides the Company with a long-term variable-rate debt facility at interest rates reflecting
prevailing short-term tax-exempt rates. Under the TEBS Financing, the Company transferred the 13 bonds, with atotal outstanding
principal amount of approximately $125.6 million, to ATAX TEBSI, LLC, aspecia purpose entity controlled by the Company
(the “Sponsor”). In order to meet Freddie Mac's underwriting requirements with respect to the multifamily apartment properties
financed by certain of the Bonds, the Sponsor was required to first place eight of the Bonds, with atotal outstanding principal of
approximately $70.5 million, into a separate custodia trust with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the
“Custodial Trust”) that issued senior and subordinated custody receipts (“ Custody Receipts’) representing beneficial interestsin
the Bonds held in the Custodial Trust to the Sponsor. The subordinated Custody Receipts with a total principal amount of
approximately $9.5 million were retained by the Sponsor. The senior Custody Receipts, with a total principal amount of
approximately $61.0 million, along with the remaining five Bonds that were not placed into the Custodia Trust, with a total
principal amount of approximately $55.1 million, were then securitized by transferring these assets to Freddie Mac in exchange
for tax-exempt Class A and Class B Freddie Mac Multifamily Variable Rate Certificates (collectively, the “TEBS Certificates’)
issued by Freddie Mac. The TEBS Certificates represent beneficial interests in the securitized assets held by Freddie Mac.

The Class A TEBS Certificates were issued in an initia principal amount of $95.8 million and were sold through a placement
agent to unaffiliated investors. The Class B TEBS Certificates were issued in an initia principal amount of $20.3 million and
were retained be the Sponsor. The holders of the Class A TEBS Certificates are entitled to receive regular payments of interest
from Freddie Mac at a variable rate which resets periodically based on the weekly Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (“SIFMA™) floating index rate plus certain Facility Fees. Asof closing, the SIFMA rate was equal to 0.25% and the
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total Facility Fees were 1.9%, resulting in atotal initial cost of borrowing of 2.15%. Asof December 31, 2010, the SIFMA rate
was equal to 0.34% resulting in atotal cost of borrowing of 2.24%.

Payment of interest on the Class A TEBS Certificates will be made from the interest payments received by Freddie Mac from the
Bonds and Senior Custody Receipts held by Freddie Mac on designated interest payment dates prior to any payments of interest
onthe Class B TEBS Certificates held by the Sponsor. Asthe holder of the Class B TEBS Certificates, the Sponsor is not entitled
toreceiveinterest paymentson the ClassB TEBS Certificates at any particular rate, but will be entitled to all payments of principal
and interest on the Bonds and Senior Custody Receipts held by Freddie Mac after payment of principal and interest due on the
Class A TEBS Certificates and payment of all Facility Fees and associated expenses. Accordingly, the amount of interest paid to
the Sponsor on the Class B TEBS Certificatesis expected to vary over time, and could be eliminated altogether, dueto fluctuations
in the interest rate payable on the Class A TEBS Certificates, Facility Fees, expenses and other factors.

Freddie Mac has guaranteed payment of scheduled principal and interest payments on the Class A TEBS Certificates and also
guarantees payment of the purchase price of any Class A TEBS Certificates that are tendered to Freddie Mac in accordance with
their terms but which cannot be remarketed to new holderswithin five business days. The Sponsor has pledged the ClassB TEBS
Certificatesto Freddie Mac to secure certain reimbursement obligations of the Sponsor to Freddie Mac. The Company also entered
into various subordination and intercreditor agreements with Freddie Mac under which the Company has subordinated its rights
and remedies with respect to the taxable mortgage loans made by it to the owners of properties securing certain of the Bonds to
the rights of Freddie Mac as the holder of the Bonds.

For financial reporting purposes, the TEBS Financing is presented by the Company as a secured financing.

Prior to the closing of the TEBS Financing, the Company had outstanding debt financing of $54.8 million consisting of two credit
facilities. The first credit facility was with Bank of America and had an outstanding balance of $49.3 million (the “BOA
Facility”). Asnoted above, the BOA Facility was repaid with proceeds from the TEBS Financing. The second credit facility was
with Omaha State Bank and had an outstanding balance of $5.5 million (the“OSB Facility”). The OSB Facility was repaid prior
to the execution of the TEBS Financing.

The TEBS Financing offers several advantages over the Company's previous credit facilities which, over time, are expected to
positively impact the generation of CAD. These advantages include:

* alonger term thereby addressing the previous refinancing risks,

*  better balance sheet leverage thereby providing additional funds for investment, and

e alowerinitial cost of borrowing.

Equity Capital. The Partnership is authorized to issue additional BUCs to raise additional equity capital to fund investment
opportunities. In April 2010, aRegistration Statement on Form S-3 was declared effective by the SEC under which the Partnership
may offer up to $200.0 million of additional BUCsfromtimetotime. InApril 2010, the Partnership issued an additional 8,280,000
BUCs through an underwritten public offering at a public offering price of $5.37 per BUC pursuant to this new Registration
Statement. Net proceeds realized by the Partnership from this issuance of these BUCs were approximately $41.7 million after
payment of an underwriter's discount and other offering costs of approximately $2.8 million.

Cash distributions made by the Partnership to unitholders may increase or decrease at the determination of the General Partner
based on its assessment of the amount of cash available to the Partnership for this purpose. Beginning with the distribution for
the second quarter of 2009, the Partnership's annual distribution was reduced from $0.54 per unit to $0.50 per unit due to the
General Partner's determination that higher borrowing costs and other factors would reduce the cash available to the Partnership
to make distributions.

Leverage. ThePartnership'soperating policy isto use securitizationsor other formsof leverageto maintain alevel of debt financing
between 40% and 60% of the total par value of the Partnership's tax-exempt mortgage bond portfolio. At December 31, 2010,
the Partnership has outstanding debt financing of $95.6 million secured by 13 tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds with a total
par value of $125.6 million plus approximately $15.2 million in restricted cash. As of December 31, 2010, the debt outstanding
related to the total par value of the Partnerships' total bond portfolio of approximately $189.3 million plus restricted cash results
in aleverageratio of 47%. The outstanding debt financing is the TEBS financing agreement with Freddie Mac, discussed above
(see Note 9). Additionaly, the MF Properties are encumbered by mortgage loans with an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $10.6 million. These mortgage loans mature at various times from November 2011 through November 2013 (see
Note 10). Thetotal debt financing plus mortgage loans of $106.2 million resultsin aleverage ratio to Total Assets of 44%.

The Partnership's principal uses of cash are the payment of distributions to unitholders, interest and principal on debt financing
and general and administrative expenses. The Partnership also uses cash to acquire additional investments. Distributions to
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unitholders may increase or decrease at the determination of the General Partner. Distributions to unitholders depend primarily
upon the amount of base and contingent interest received on the Company'stax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and cash received
from other investments, the amount of borrowings and the effective interest rate of these borrowings, and the amount of the
Partnership's undistributed cash. The General Partner believes that cash provided by its tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and
other investments will be adequate to meet its projected long-term liquidity requirements, including the payment of expenses,
interest, and distributions to unitholders. Recently, income from investments has not been sufficient to fund such expenditures
without utilizing cash reserves to supplement the deficit. See discussion below regarding “ Cash Available for Distribution.” As
aresult, beginning with the second quarter 2009 di stribution, the General Partner |owered the Company'sregul ar annual distribution
from $0.54 to $0.50 per BUC, or $0.125 per quarter per BUC. The General Partner believes that distributions at this level are
sustainable, however, if actual results vary from current projections and the actual CAD generated is less than the new regular
distribution, such distribution amount may need to be reduced.

The Consolidated VIES and MF Properties primary source of cashisnet rental revenuesgenerated by their real estateinvestments.
Net rental revenues from a multifamily apartment property depend on the rental and occupancy rates of the property and on the
level of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents are directly affected by the supply of, and demand for, apartmentsin the
market areain which aproperty islocated. This, inturn, isaffected by several factors such aslocal or national economic conditions,
the amount of new apartment construction and the affordability of single-family homes. In addition, factors such as government
regulation (such aszoning laws), inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problemsand natural disasters can affect the economic
operations of an apartment property.

The Consolidated VIES and MF Properties primary uses of cash are: (i) the payment of operating expenses; and (ii) the payment
of debt service.

On a consolidated basis, cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, increased approximately
$2.5million compared to the same period ayear earlier mainly dueto changesinworking capital components. Cash frominvesting
activities decreased approximately $60.4 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. The largest change in investing activities relates
to $32.0 million in cash proceeds realized in the first quarter of 2009 from the early redemption of the bonds on Ashley Pointe,
Woodbridge- Louisville and Woodbridge - Bloomington. No proceeds from the sale or redemption of investments were realized
in 2010. Restricted cash increased approximately $18.1 million in 2010 due to the TEBS facility requirements as compared to a
decreasein restricted cash in 2009 of approximately $7.9 million resulting in an increase in cash utilized of approximately $26.0
million. Net cash utilized for the acquisition of new investments in bonds, property partnerships, and other assets totaled
approximately $31.0 million in 2010 compared to approximately $31.8 million in 2009 resulting in adecrease in cash utilized for
investments of approximately $800,000. An investment sold in 2009 resulted in a $3.5 million increase in 2009 cash which was
not repeated in 2010. Principal payments received resulted in an approximate $300,000 increase year over year. Cash provided
by financing activitiesfor the year ended December 31, 2010, increased approximately $43.9 million compared to the same period
ayear earlier. Cash provided by debt financings increased approximately $40.3 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. Net cash
provided by the sale of additional BUCs increased $2.7 million in 2010 over 2009. Principal payments on debt declined
approximately $9.4 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. Cash used for interest rate derivatives and financing costs increased
approximately $5.4 million and cash used for distributions increased approximately $3.1 million, accounting for the remaining
change in cash from financing activities. The main transactions driving the changes in financing cash flows were the TEBS
Financing closing in September and the sale of additional BUCs closing in April.

Cash Availablefor Distribution

M anagement utilizesacal cul ation of CA D asameansto determinethePartnership'sability tomakedistributionstounitholders. The
General Partner believesthat CAD provides relevant information about its operations and is necessary along with net income for
understanding its operating results. To calculate CAD, amortization expense related to debt financing costs and bond reissuance
costs, certain income due to the General Partner (defined as Tier 2 income in the Agreement of Limited Partnership), interest rate
derivative expense or income (including adjustmentsto fair value), provision for loan losses, impairments on bonds, |osses rel ated
to Consolidated V1Esincluding the cumulative effect of accounting change, and depreciation and amortization expense are added
back to the Company's net income (loss) as computed in accordance with GAAP. Thereis no generally accepted methodology
for computing CAD, and the Partnership's computation of CAD may not be comparable to CAD reported by other
companies. Although the Partnership considers CAD to be a useful measure of its operating performance, CAD should not be
considered as an aternative to net income or net cash flows from operating activities which are calculated in accordance with
GAAP.
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During June 2010, the Company completed a sales transaction whereby four of the MF Properties, the Ohio Properties, were sold
to three new ownership entities controlled by an unaffiliated not-for-profit entity (see Note 5). As part of the transaction, the
Company acquired 100% of the $18.3 million tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds issued by the Ohio Housing Finance Agency
as part of aplan of financing for the acquisition and rehabilitation of the Ohio Properties. The new owners did not contribute any
capital to the transaction and the Company has effectively provided 100% of the capital structure to the new owners as part of the
sale transaction. Pursuant to guidance related to property, plant, and equipment for real estate sales the sale and restructure does
not meet the criteriafor decrecognition of the properties and full accrual accounting treatment for the resulting gain. Assuch, the
Company will continue to consolidate the Ohio Properties as if the sale was not completed. Under the sales agreement, the Ohio
properties were sold for atotal purchase price of $16.2 million. Cash received by the selling limited partnerships as part of the
sale transaction represents a deferred gain on the sale transaction of approximately $1.8 million. The properties will continue to
be presented as MF Properties and no gain will be recognized until such time as the transaction can be accounted for asasale. As
the deferred gain on the transaction represents cash paid to the Company and no on-going legal obligations related to the Ohio
Properties or potential obligation to repay any amounts exists, the deferred gain is CAD and is shown as an adjustment in the CAD
Calculation below. Thisgain meetsthe definition of Net Residual Proceeds representing contingent interest (Tier 2 income) and
was therefore distributed 75% to the unitholders and 25% to the General Partner.

Beginning with the distribution for the second quarter of 2009, the Partnership's annual distribution was reduced from $0.54 per
unit to $0.50 per unit due to AFCA 2's determination that higher borrowing costs and other factors would reduce the cash available
to the Partnership to make distributions. At times recently CAD has not been sufficient to fully fund such distributions without
utilizing cash reserves to supplement the deficit. While the Partnership currently expects to maintain the annual distribution
amount of $0.50 per BUC, if it is unable to generate CAD at levelsin excess of the annual distribution, such distribution amount
may need to be reduced.

The following tables show the calculation of CAD for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

2010 2009 2008

Net income (loss) $ (400,360) $ 23,838,953 $ (1,031,240)
Net (income) loss related to VIEs and eliminations due to consolidation 2,466,260 (20,495,957) 3,756,894
Net income before impact of VIE consolidation 2,065,900 3,342,996 2,725,654
Changein fair value of derivatives and interest rate derivative amortization (571,684) 830,142 721,102
Depreciation and amortization expense (Partnership only) 2,510,630 3,514,073 2,840,500
Bond purchase discount accretion (net of cash received) (403,906) — —
Deposit liability gain - Ohio sale agreement 1,775,527 — —
Tier 2 Income distributable to the General Partner (1) (464,045) (802,909) (38,336)
Tier 2 Income distributable - contingent interest (8,201) — —
Ohio deferred interest 745,227 — —
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford 2,716,330 — —
Property loan losses 1,147,716 1,696,730 —
Loss on bond sale — 127,495 —
CAD $ 9513494 $ 8,708527 $ 6,248,920
Weighted average number of units outstanding,

basic and diluted 27,493,449 16,661,969 13,512,928
Net income, basic and diluted, per unit $ 007 $ 015 $ 0.20
Total CAD per unit $ 035 % 052 $ 0.46
Distributions per unit $ 05000 $§ 05450 $ 05400

@ As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Net Interest Income representing contingent interest and Net Residual Proceeds representing
contingent interest (Tier 2 income) will be distributed 75% to the unitholders and 25% to the General Partner. This adjustment represents the 25% of Tier 2 income
due to the General Partner. For the year ended 2010, the deferred gain on the sale of the Ohio partnerships generated approximately $1.8 million and contingent
interest generated approximately $33K of Tier I income. For 2009, the Tier 2 income distributable to the General Partner was generated by the early redemption
of Woodbridge - Bloomington and Woodbridge - Louisville bond investments, the sale of Oak Grove and from Fairmont Oaks and L ake Forest Apartments.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Partnership held tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds which are collateralized by
multifamily housing projects. The multifamily housing projects are owned by entities that are not controlled by the
Partnership. The Partnership has no equity interest in these entities and does not guarantee any obligations of these entities. Some
of the ownership entities are deemed to be Consolidated VIEs and are consolidated with the Partnership for financia reporting
purposes. The VIEsthat are consolidated with the Partnership do not have off-balance sheet arrangements.

The Partnership does not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As such, the Partnership is not
materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, market, or credit risk that could ariseif it had engaged in such relationships.

The Partnership does not have any relationships or transactions with persons or entities that derive benefits from their non-
independent relationships with the Partnership or its related parties other than what is disclosed in Note 12 to the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Contractual Obligations

The Partnership has the following contractual obligations as of December 31, 2010:

Lessthan 1 More than 2
Total year 1-2 years years
Debt financing $ 95,608,000 $ 675000 $ 1,954,000 $ 92,979,000
Mortgages payable $ 10645982 $ 4485770 $ 6,160212 $ —
Effective interest rate(s) () 2.30% 2.26% 2.21%
Interest (2) $ 9009193 $ 4747374 $ 2235512 $ 2,026,307

@ Interest rates shown are the average effective rate as of December 31, 2009 and include the impact of our interest rate derivatives.

@ Interest shown is estimated based upon current effective interest rates through maturity.

As discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the amounts maturing in 2011 consist of the paydowns on the TEBS credit
facility with Freddie Mac and payments on the MF Property mortgages. The Partnership plans to refinance or retire the current
maturing mortgage in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Inflation

With respect to the financial results of the Partnership's investments in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and MF Properties,
substantially all of the resident leases at the multifamily residential properties, which collateralize the Partnership's tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds, alow, at the time of renewal, for adjustments in the rent payable thereunder, and thus may enable the
properties to seek rent increases. The substantial majority of these leases are for one year or less. The short-term nature of these
leases generally serves to reduce the risk to the properties of the adverse effects of inflation; however, market conditions may
prevent the properties from increasing rental ratesin amounts sufficient to offset higher operating expenses. Inflation did not have
asignificant impact on the Partnership's financial results for the years presented in this report.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted ASC 810, Consolidations, which requires an entity to perform an analysis to determine
whether the entity's variable interest or interests give it a controlled financial interest in aVIE. The purpose of the analysisisto
identify the primary beneficiary of aVIE asthe entity that has (1) the power to direct the activities of aVIE that most significantly
impact the entity's economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb losses of the entity that could potentially be significant
totheVIE or theright to receive benefitsfrom the entity that could potentially besignificant tothe VIE. SeeNote 3 for disclosures.

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements. The new accounting guidance amends previously issued guidance and adds new requirements for disclosures
about transfers into and out of Levels 1 and 2 and separate disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements rel ated
to Level 3 measurements. It also provides clarification about existing fair value disclosures, the level of disaggregation required,
and the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The ASU is effective for thefirst reporting period (including
interim periods) beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the requirement to providethe Level 3 activity of purchases, sales,
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issuances, and settlements on a gross basiswhich is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim
periods within those fiscal years. The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

InJune 2009, theFinancial Accounting StandardsBoard (“FASB”)issued pre-codification guidance Statement No. 166, Accounting
for Transfersof Financial Assets- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. This statement was codified into ASC 860. On and
after the effective date, the concept of aqualifying special purpose entity isno longer relevant for accounting purposes. Therefore,
formerly qualifying special-purpose entities, as defined under the previous accounting standards, should be evaluated for
consolidation under the applicable consolidation guidance. The guidance must be applied as of the beginning of each reporting
entity's first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting
period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. The adoption of this guidance on January 1, 2010 did not have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

InJuly 2010, the FASB issued A SU No. 2010-20, Disclosuresabout the Credit Quality of Financing Receivablesand the Allowance
for Credit Losses. ASU No. 2010-20 enhancesthe existing disclosure requirements providing more transparency of the allowance
for loanlossesand credit quality of financing receivables. The new disclosuresthat relateto information as of the end of areporting
periodwill beeffectivefor thefirstinterim and annual reporting periodsending on or after December 15, 2010. Thenew disclosures
that relate to activity occurring during the reporting period will be effective for thefirst interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2010, or first quarter of fiscal 2011 and thereafter in the Company's case. The adoption of ASU 2010-20 impacted
disclosures but did not affect financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The Partnership's primary market risk exposures are interest rate risk and credit risk. The Partnership's exposure to market risks
relates primarily to its investments in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and its debt financing.

The Partnership bases the fair value of the tax-exempt bonds, which have alimited market, on a discounted cash flow or yield to
maturity analysis performed by the General Partner. This calculation methodology encompasses judgment in its application. If
available, the General Partner may also consider price quotes on similar bonds or other information from external sources, such
as pricing services. As of December 31, 2010, al of the Partnership 's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds were valued using
management's discounted cash flow and yield to maturity analyses. Pricing services, broker quotes and management's analyses
provideindicativepricingonly. Duetothelimited market for thetax-exempt bonds, these estimates of fair value do not necessarily
represent what the Partnership would actually receivein a sale of the bonds.

If uncertaintiesinthecredit and capital marketscontinue, themarketsdeterioratefurther, or the Partnership experiencesdeterioration
inthe values of itsinvestment portfolio, the Partnership may incur impairmentsto itsinvestment portfolio which could negatively
impact the Partnership 's financial condition, cash flows, and reported earnings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental, monetary and tax policies, domestic and international
economicand political considerationsand other factorsbeyond the Partnership'scontrol. Thenatureof the Partnership'sinvestment
in the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and the debt financing used to finance these investments exposes the Partnership to
financial risk dueto fluctuationsin market interest rates. The tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds bear base interest at fixed rates
and may additionally pay contingent interest which fluctuates based upon the cash flows of the underlying property. As of
December 31, 2010, the weighted average base rate of thetax-exempt mortgage revenue bondswas 6.0%. Accordingly, theinterest
income generated by the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds is generally fixed, except to the extent the underlying properties
generate enough excess cash flow to pay contingent interest.

At December 31, 2010, the Partnership has a $95.6 million TEBS financing agreement that provides for interest at afloating rate
equal to weekly SIFMA plus 190 basis points. As a result, the Partnership's cost of borrowing fluctuates with the weekly
SIFMA. The effective interest rate for this credit facility as of December 31, 2010 was 2.24% per annum. If the average SIFMA
Index Rate, including fees, had increased or decreased by 100 basis points for the year ended December 31, 2010, the interest
expense payments on this variable-rate debt financing would have increased or decreased by approximately $957,000.
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Theinterest rateof themortgagefinancing onthe MF Propertiesfluctuatesbased ontheLIBOR. Accordingly, thecost of borrowing
on the debt will increase asthe LIBOR increases. As of December 31, 2010, the outstanding balance of the mortgage financing
of the MF Properties was $10.6 million. The weighted average effective interest rate for 2010 on the debt outstanding as of
December 31, 2010 was approximately 4.6% per annum. |f the average LIBOR Rate, including fees, had increased or decreased
by 100 basis points for the year ended December 31, 2010, the interest expense payments on this variable-rate debt financing
would have increased or decreased by approximately $172,000.

The Partnership is managing its interest rate risk on its debt financing by entering into interest rate cap agreements that cap the
amount of interest expense it could pay on its floating rate debt financing as follows:

In order to mitigate its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the variable rate TEBS Financing, the Partnership entered into
interest rate cap agreements with Barclays Bank PLC, Bank of New York Mellon and Royal Bank of Canada, each in an initial
notional amount of approximately $31.9 million which effectively limits the interest payable by the Company on the TEBS
Financing to afixed rate of 3.0% per annum on the combined notional amounts of theinterest rate cap agreements through August
2017. Theinterest rate cap plusthe Facility Fees payable to Freddie Mac result in amaximum potential cost of borrowing on the
TEBS Financing of 4.9% per annum. In conjunction with the TEBS Financing and the payment of the Bank of America credit
facility, the $50.0 million interest rate derivative purchased on June 18, 2009, was terminated. The $4.5 million interest rate cap
with Bank of Americarel atesto the Glynn Placemortgageloan. During June2010, a$12.8 millioninterest ratederivative purchased
on July 9, 2009 was allowed to expire as the related mortgage was retired.

Thefollowing table sets forth certain information regarding the Partnership's interest rate cap agreements at December 31, 2010:

Effective Maturity Purchase
Date Purchased Notional Amount Capped Rate Date Price Counterparty
September 2, 2010 $ 31,936,667 3.00% September 15,2017 $ 921,000 Bank of New York Mellon
September 2, 2010 $ 31,936,667 3.00% September 15,2017 $ 845,600 Barclays Bank PLC
September 2, 2010 $ 31,936,667 3.00% September 15,2017 $ 928,000 Royal Bank of Canada
October 29, 2008 $ 4,480,000 6.00% November 1, 2011 $ 26,512 Bank of America

These interest rate derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and, accordingly, they are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value included in current period earnings within interest expense. Interest rate derivative expense, which is the result of
marking the interest rate derivative agreementsto fair value, resulted in adecrease of approximately $572,000 in interest expense
for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to an increase of approximately $830,000 in interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2009. These interest rate derivatives are presented on the balance sheet in Other Assets. The carrying value
of these derivatives was approximately $3.4 million and $141,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Thefair value of the Partnership'sinvestmentsin tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, which bear fixed base interest rates, isalso
directly impacted by changes in market interest rates. An increase in rates will cause the fair value of the bonds to
decrease. Although changes in the fair value of the bonds do not impact earnings or cash flow, they affect total partners' capital
and book value per unit. In addition, if the fair value of the bonds decreases, the Partnership may need to provide additional
collateral for its debt financing.

Credit Risk

The Partnership's primary credit risk istherisk of default onits portfolio of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and taxable |oans
collateralized by themultifamily properties. Thetax-exempt mortgage revenue bondsare not direct obligations of the governmental
authorities that issued the bonds and are not guaranteed by such authorities or any insurer or other party. In addition, the tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds and the associated taxable |oans are non-recourse obligations of the property owner. Asaresult,
the sole source of principal andinterest payments (including both base and contingent interest) on thetax-exempt mortgagerevenue
bonds and the taxable loans is the net rental revenues generated by these properties or the net proceeds from the sale of these
properties.
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If aproperty isunableto sustain net rental revenues at alevel necessary to pay current debt service obligations on the Partnership's
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond or taxabl e loan on such property, adefault may occur. A property's ability to generate net rental
income is subject to a wide variety of factors, including rental and occupancy rates of the property and the level of operating
expenses. Occupancy rates and rentsare directly affected by the supply of, and demand for, apartmentsin the market areain which
aproperty islocated. This, in turn, is affected by several factors such aslocal or national economic conditions, the amount of new
apartment construction and the affordability of single-family homes. In addition, factors such as government regulation (such as
zoning laws), inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problems, and natural disasters can affect the economic operations of an
apartment property.

Additionally, the Partnership may invest in construction bonds. At December 31, 2010, one bond owned by the Partnership is a
construction bond. The principle risk associated with construction lending is the risk that construction of the property will be
substantially delayed or never completed. Thismay occur for anumber of reasonsincluding (i) insufficient financing to complete
the project due to underestimated construction costs or cost overruns; (ii) failure of contractors or subcontractorsto perform under
their agreements; (iii) inability to obtain governmental approvals; (iv) labor disputes, and (v) adverse weather and other
unpredictable contingencies beyond the control of the developer. If aproperty is not completed, or costs more to complete than
anticipated, it may causethe Partnership to receivelessthan thefull amount of interest owed to it on the tax-exempt bond financing
such property or otherwise result in a default under the mortgage loan that secures its tax-exempt bond on the property. As
construction or renovation is completed, these propertieswill move into thelease-up phase. The lease-up of these properties may
not be completed on schedule or at anticipated rent levels, resulting in a greater risk that these investments may go into default
than investments secured by mortgages on properties that are stabilized or fully leased-up. The underlying property may not
achieve expected occupancy or debt service coverage levels. In order to lower theserisks, the Partnership hasrequired the owners/
developers of these projects to enter into guaranteed maximum price contracts, obtain payment and performance bonds, and have
capitalized interest reserve funds.

As of December 31, 2010, based on an accumulation of individual circumstances, the Partnership hasidentified three tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds for which certain actions may be necessary to protect the Partnership's position as a secured bondholder
and lender. These bonds are Woodland Park, DeCordova and Weatherford. The Partnership has evaluated these bond holdings
for an other-than-temporary decline in value and the rel ated taxable loans for potential impairment as of December 31, 2010 (see
Note 2 for discussion of our impairment testing method). As of December 31, 2010, Woodland Park owes the Partnership
approximately $15.7 million under tax-exempt bonds and $914,000 under taxable loans, DeCordova owes the Partnership
approximately $4.9 million under tax-exempt bonds and $648,000 under taxable loans and Weatherford owes the Partnership
approximately $4.7 million under tax-exempt bonds and $1.1 million under taxable loans. Based on the impairment testing, the
Partnership has concluded that no other-than-temporary impairment of the Woodland and DeCordova bonds existed at
December 31, 2010. See discussion of Weatherford below. Additionally, the Partnership concluded that no impairment of the
taxable loans made to Residences at DeCordova existed, however, an alowance for loan loss of approximately $914,000 was
recorded against the taxable |loan balance due from Woodland Park.

As of December 31, 2010 the Weatherford tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond and taxable loans owned by the Partnership have
been written down. The resulting impairment charge and provision for loan losses of approximately $3.3 million is attributable
to the unitholders. Asaresult of thefailure of the property owner to secure an alternative plan of financing, the Partnership issued
a second Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin foreclosure procedures in order to remove both the general partner
and the limited partner and take ownership of the property. This second foreclosure was completed in February 2011 at which
time the ownership of the property was taken by the Partnership. The Partnership hastaken over the project and intendsto fund
the construction and stabilization of the project. Upon the completion of construction the Partnership expects to operate the
property asamarket rate apartment property. Oncethe property isleased up and stabilized the Partnership will evaluateits options
in order to recoup its investment in Weatherford.

Defaultsonitstax-exempt mortgagerevenuebondsand taxableloansmay reducetheamount of future cash availablefor distribution
to unitholders. In addition, if a property's net rental income declines, it may affect the market value of the property. If the market
value of aproperty deteriorates, the amount of net proceedsfrom the ultimate sale or refinancing of the property may beinsufficient
to repay the entire principal balance of the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond or taxable loan secured by the property. In the
event of adefault on atax-exempt mortgage revenue bond or taxable |oan, the Partnership will have the right to foreclose on the
mortgage or deed of trust securing the property. If the Partnership takes ownership of the property securing a defaulted tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bond, it will be entitled to all net rental revenues generated by the property. However, such amounts will no
longer represent tax-exempt interest to the Partnership.
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The Partnership's primary method of managing the credit risks associated with itstax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and taxable
loansisto perform a complete due diligence and underwriting process of the properties securing these mortgage bonds and loans
and to carefully monitor the performance of such property on a continuous basis.

As the above information incorporates only those material positions or exposures that existed as of December 31, 2010, it does
not consider those exposures or positions that could arise after that date. The ultimate economic impact of these market risks on
the Partnership will depend on the exposures that arise during the period, the Partnership's risk mitigating strategies at that time
and overall business and economic environment.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains the majority of its unrestricted cash balances at two financial institutions. The balances insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation have been temporarily increased to $250,000 at each institution. At various times, the
cash balances may exceed the $250,000 limit. The Company is also exposed to risk on its short-term investmentsin the event of
non-performance by counterparties. The Company does not anticipate any non-performance. Thisrisk isminimized significantly
by the Company's portfolio being restricted to investment grade securities.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AmericaFirst Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. and subsidiaries
(the "Company") as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of partners' capital
and comprehensive income (loss), and of cash flows for each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 2010. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements
arefree of material misstatement. Anauditincludesexamining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, aswell as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Webelieve that our audits provide areasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of America
First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operationsand their
cashflowsfor each of thethreeyearsin the period ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with accounting principlesgenerally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, the financial statements include total tax-exempt investments valued at
approximately $100,600,000 (42% of total assets) and $69,400,000 (37% of total assets) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, whose fair values have been estimated by management in the absence of readily determinable fair values. At
December 31, 2010 and 2009, management's estimates were based on discounted cash flow or yield to maturity analyses
performed by management.

Asdiscussed in Note 2, the Company adopted guidancerelated to the consolidation of Variablelnterest Entities effective January
1, 2010.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 11, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 11, 2011
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AMERICA FIRST TAX EXEMPT INVESTORS, L .P.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009
Assets
Cash and cash equivaents $ 13,277,048 $ 17,280,535
Restricted cash 25,252,756 5,277,217
Interest receivable 4,670,182 993,181
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held in trust, at fair value (Notes 5 & 9) 73,451,479 —
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, at fair value (Note 5) 27,115,164 69,399,763
Real estate assets: (Note 6)
Land 12,946,831 13,403,655
Buildings and improvements 91,802,694 100,255,779
Real estate assets before accumulated depreciation 104,749,525 113,659,434
Accumulated depreciation (23,467,105) (21,868,541)
Net real estate assets 81,282,420 91,790,893
Other assets (Note 7) 16,558,200 6,029,131
Total Assets $ 241,607,249 $ 190,770,720
Liabilities
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 3528303 $ 3,931,848
Distribution payable 3,803,399 2,757,945
Debt financing (Note 9) 95,608,000 55,363,333
Mortgages payable (Note 10) 10,645,982 30,116,854
Total Liabilities 113,585,684 92,169,980
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15)
Partners' Capital
General partner (Note 2) (280,629) 271,051
Beneficial Unit Certificate holders 161,389,189 130,482,881
Unallocated deficit of variable interest entities (32,945,669) (32,215,697)
Total Partners Capital 128,162,891 98,538,235
Noncontrolling interest (Note 6) (141,326) 62,505
Total Capital 128,021,565 98,600,740
Total Liabilities and Capita $ 241,607,249 $ 190,770,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.



AMERICA FIRST TAX EXEMPT INVESTORS, L .P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Property revenues
M ortgage revenue bond investment income
Gain on sale of assets held for sale
Gain on early extinquishment of debt
Other interest income
Loss on sale of security
Total Revenues
Expenses:
Real estate operating (exclusive of items shown below)
Provision for loan loss
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Genera and administrative
Total Expenses
L oss from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations (including gain on bond redemption of
$26,514,809 in 2009)
Net income (loss)

Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P.

Net income (loss) allocated to:
Genera Partner
Limited Partners - unitholders
Unallocated gain (loss) of Consolidated VIEs
Noncontrolling interest

Unitholders' interest in net income per unit (basic and diluted):
Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations

Net income, basic and diluted, per unit

Weighted average number of units outstanding,
basic and diluted

Y ears Ended December 31,

2010

2009 2008

$ 14,692,537 $

15,667,053 $ 13,773,801

6,881,314 4253164 4,230,205
— 862,865 —

435,395 — —
455,622 106,082 150,786

— — (68,218)
22,464,868 20,880,164 18,086,574
10,016,742 10,127,657 8,872,219
562,385 1,401,731 —
2,528,852 — —
5062817 6,067,330 4,987,417
2514479 4202126 4,106,072
2383784 1,997,661 1,808,459
23,069,059 23,796,505 19,774,167
(604,191) ~ (2,907,341)  (1,687,593)
— 26,734,754 646,989
(604,191) 23,827,413 _ (1,040,604)
203,831 11,540 9,364

$ (400,360) $ 23838953 $ (1,031,240)
$ 28532 $ 804223 $ 64,059
2,037,368 2538773 2,661,595
(2,466,260)  20,495957  (3,756,894)
(203,831) (11,540) (9,364)

$ (604,191) $

23,827,413 $ (1,040,604)

$ 007 $ 015 $ 0.20
$ 007 $ 015 $ 0.20
27,493,449 16,661,969 13,512,928

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at January 1, 2008
Noncontrolling interest contribution
Distributions paid or accrued
Reclssification of Tier Il income

Comprehensive income:
Net Income (loss)
Unrealized |loss on securities

Comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income attributable
to noncontrolling interest
Comprehensive | oss attributable to
Partnership

Balance at December 31, 2008
Sale of Beneficia Unit Certificates
Noncontrolling interest contribution
Distributions paid or accrued
Reclssification of Tier I income

Comprehensive income:

Net Income (loss)
Unrealized gain on securities

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable
to noncontrolling interest
Comprehensive income attributable
to Partnership

Balance at December 31, 2009
Sale of Beneficial Unit Certificates
Deconsolidation of VIEs- (Note 4)
Consolidation of VIES - (Note 4)
Distributions paid or accrued:
Regular distribution

Distribution of Tier Il earnings
(Note 2)

Comprehensive income:
Net Income (loss)
Unrealized loss on securities
Comprehensive loss

Comprehensive loss attributable to
noncontrolling interest
Comprehensive | oss attributable to
Partnership

Balance at December 31, 2010

AMERICA FIRST TAX EXEMPT INVESTORS, L .P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS CAPITAL AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

L Unallocated
Beneficial deficit of Accumulated
Unit variable Non- Other
Genera Certificate interest controlling Comprehensive
Partner # of Units Holders entities Interest Total Income (Loss)
$ 348,913 13,512,928 $112,880,314 $ (48,954,760) $ 48756 $ 64,323,223 $ (3,581,844)
28,324 28,324
(1,842,672) (7,296,981) (9,139,653)
1,824,245 (1,824,245) —
64,059 2,661,595 (3,756,894) (9,364)  (1,040,604)
(132,760) (13,143,203) (13,275,963)
(14,316,567) (13,275,963)
9,364
(14,307,203)
261,785 13,512,928 93,277,480 (52,711,654) 67,716 40,895,327 (16,857,807)
8,330,000 38,887,035 38,887,035
6,329 6,329
(1,460,644) (9,403,296) (10,863,940)
607,201 (607,201) —
804,223 2,538,773 20,495,957 (11,540) 23,827,413
58,486 5,790,090 5,848,576
29,675,989 5,848,576
11,540
29,687,529
271,051 21,842,928 130,482,881  (32,215,697) 62,505 98,600,740 (11,009,231)
8,280,000 41,591,576 41,591,576
15,881 1,572,185 1,736,288 3,324,354 1,588,066
27,523 2,724,760 2,752,283 2,752,283
(127,566) (12,629,015) (12,756,581)
(465,816) (1,397,449) (1,863,265)
28,532 2,037,368 (2,466,260) (203,831) (604,191)
(30,234) (2,993,117) (3,023,351) (3,023,351)
(3,627,542)
(203,831)
(3,423,711)
$ (280,629) $ 30,122,928 $161,389,189 $(32,945669) $ (141,326) $128,021565 $  (9,692,233)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICA FIRST TAX EXEMPT INVESTORS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford
Non-cash loss (gain) on derivatives
Provision for loan loss
Bond discount amortization
Loss on sale of security
Gain on assets held for sale
Gain on early extinquishment of debt
Gain on sale of discontinued operations
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions
Increasein interest receivable
Increase in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations
Proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
Acquisition of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
Investment in joint venture
Acquisition of partnerships, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of asset held for sale
Capital expenditures
Proceeeds from assets held for sale
Increasein restricted cash
Restricted cash - debt collateral (paid) released
Increasein restricted cash - Ohio sale
Transfer of cash to unconsolidated VI E upon deconsolidation
Transfer of cash from consolidated VIE upon consolidation
Principal payments received on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
Proceeds from termination of derivatives
Principal payments received on taxable loans
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Distributions paid
Increasein liabilities related to restricted cash
Deferred financing costs
Proceeds from debt financing
Principal payments on debt financing and mortgage payable
L oan extension payment
Derivative settlements
Acquisition of interest rate cap agreements
Sale of Beneficial Unit Certificates
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period, including cash and cash equivalents of discontinued
operations of $0, $164,866, and $145,278 respectively

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period, including cash and cash equivalents of discontinued
operations of $0, $0, and $164866, respectively

Cash paid during the period for interest

Distributions declared but not paid

Cash received for sale of MF Properties eliminated in consolidation (Note 5)

Cash paid for purchase of tax exempt bond eliminated in consolidation (Note 4)

Cash paid for taxable loan eliminated in consolidation (Note 5)

Receivable from bond foreclosure

Capital expenditures financed through accounts payable

Liabilites assumed in the acquisition of partnerships

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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For the years ended,

2010 2009 2008
$  (604,191) $ 23,827,413 $ (1,040,604)
5,062,817 6,067,330 5,579,536
2,528,852 — —
(571,684) 830,142 721,102
562,385 1,401,731 —
(464,560) — —
— — 68,218
— (862,865) —
(435,395) — —
— (26,514,809) —
(2,740,834) (223,980) (234,502)
(1,213,333) (3,902,841) (735,057)
76,836 (961,475) 86,522
2,200,893 (339,354) 4,445,215
— 32,000,000 —
— — 19,346,363

(28195363)  (19,271,328)  (12,435,000)
(1,115,000) — —
= (7,886,852)  (12,801,328)

— (2,649,991) —
(1,641,480) (1,989,065) (638,546)
— 3,512,856 —

36,031 22,977 (305,284)
(15,409,293) 7,870,980 (10,000,000)
(2,684,876) — —
(88,949) — —
1,979 — —
547,004 212,667 81,625
— — 54,000

— 100,000

(48549.857) 11,822,244 (16,598,170)

(13574,391)  (10,538,321) (9,139,653)
(36,031) (22,977) 305,284
(3,903,782) (550,912) (1,684,125)
95,810,000 55,500,000 87,734,027

(74,600,810)  (83,993840)  (71,575,000)
(246,485) — —

— (238,980) 63,128
(2,694,600) (605,500) (1,011,512)
41,591,576 38,887,035 —
42345 477 (1,563,495) 4,692,149
(4,003,487) 9,919,395 (7,460,806)
17,280,535 7,361,140 14,821,946

$ 13277048 $ 17280535 $ 7,361,140
$ 2487421 $ 4431099 $ 5084905
$ 3803399 $ 2757945 $ 2432327
$ 16192000 $ — % —
$ (18,313,000) $ — % —
$ (1.236236) $ — % —
$ — 8 — $ 1,362,000
$ 95646 $ 51616 $ 43,242
$ — $ 650632 $ 181,909



AMERICA FIRST TAX EXEMPT INVESTORS, L .P.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

1. Organization

AmericaFirst Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. (the “ Partnership”) was formed on April 2, 1998 under the Delaware Revised Uniform
Limited Partnership Act for the purpose of acquiring, holding, selling and otherwise dealing with a portfolio of federally tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds which have been issued to provide construction and/or permanent financing of multifamily
residential apartments. Interest on these bondsis excludable from grossincomefor federal incometax purposes. Asaresult, most
of the income earned by the Partnership is exempt from federal income taxes. Our general partner is America First Capital
Associates Limited Partnership Two (“AFCA 2" or “Genera Partner”). The Partnership will terminate on December 31, 2050
unless terminated earlier under provisions of its Agreement of Limited Partnership.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the “Company” reported in this Form 10-K include the assets and results of operations
of the Partnership, the MF Properties owned by various limited partnerships in which one of the Partnership's wholly-owned
subsidiaries (each a“Holding Company”) holds a99% limited partner interest, six entitiesin which the Partnership does not hold
an ownership interest but which own multifamily apartment properties financed with tax-exempt bonds held by the Partnership
andwhicharetreated asvariableinterest entities("VIEs") of whichthePartnership hasbeen determinedto betheprimary beneficiary
(the “Consolidated VIES’), and two bonds secured by the three properties, Crescent Village, Post Woods, and Willow Bend
apartments in Ohio (the “Ohio Properties’) subject to a sales agreement (see Note 6) which are eliminated in consolidation on
the Company's financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adopted new provisions of the consolidation guidance included in Accounting Standards
Cadification 810, Consolidations that amended the consolidation guidance applicable to VIEs and the definition of a VIE, and
reguires enhanced disclosures to provide more information about an enterprise's involvement in a VIE. Under the consolidation
guidance, the Partnership must make an evaluation of these entities to determine if they meet the definition of a VIE. Generally,
aVIEisan entity with one or more of thefollowing characteristics: (a) thetotal equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit
the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support; (b) as a group, the holders of the equity
investment at risk lack (i) the ability to make decisions about an entity's activitiesthrough voting or similar rights, (ii) the obligation
to absorb the expected losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual returns of the entity; or (c) the equity
investors have voting rightsthat are not proportional to their economic interests and substantially all of the entity's activities either
involve, or are conducted on behalf of, an investor that has disproportionately few voting rights.

The revised accounting standard introduces a more qualitative approach to evaluating VIEs for consolidation and requires the
Partnership to perform an analysisto determine whether its variableinterests give it acontrolling financial interestinaVIE. This
analysis identifies the primary beneficiary, the entity that must consolidate the VIE, as the entity that has (1) the power to direct
the activities of aVIE that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb losses of
the entity that could potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. In adopting this revised accounting standard, the Partnership has re-evaluated all of its investments to
determineif the property ownersare VIEsand, if so, whether the Partnership isthe primary beneficiary of the VIE. The guidance
also requires ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. As a result, changes to the
Consolidated VIES may occur in the future based on changes in circumstances. The accounting guidance on consolidations is
complex and requires significant analysis and judgment. The adoption of these provisions on January 1, 2010 resulted in the
deconsolidation of certain entities previoudly included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. Through the continual
reconsideration criteria, effective March 1, 2010 two additional entities determined to be VIES were consolidated (see Note 4).

Three of the VIEs related to 2009 are presented in the financial statements as Discontinued Operations (Note 8). Stand alone
financial information of thePartnershipreportedinthisForm 10-K includesonly theassetsand resultsof operation of the Partnership
and the MF Properties without the consolidation of the VIEs. Inthe Company's consolidated financial statements, all transactions
and accounts between the Partnership, the MF Properties and the VI Es have been eliminated in consolidation.

TheGeneral Partner doesnot believethat the consolidation of theVIEsfor reporting under generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America (“GAAP") impacts the Partnership's tax status, amounts reported to Beneficial Unit Certificate
(“BUC”) holders on IRS Form K-1, the Partnership's ability to distribute tax-exempt income to unitholders, the current level of
quarterly distributions or the tax-exempt status of the underlying mortgage revenue bonds.Purchase Accounting

58



Pursuant to the guidance on business combinations, the Company allocates the total acquisition cost of a property acquired to the
land, building and leases in existence as of the date of acquisition based on their relative fair values. The building isvalued as if
vacant. The estimated valuation of in-placeleasesis cal culated by applying arisk-adjusted discount rate to the projected cash flow
deficit at each property during an assumed |ease-up period for these properties. This allocated cost is amortized over the average
remaining term of the leases and isincluded in the statement of operations under depreciation and amortization expense.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid securities and investments in federally tax-exempt securities with maturities of
three months or less when purchased.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains the majority of its unrestricted cash balances at two financial institutions. The balances insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation have been temporarily increased to $250,000 at each institution. At varioustimesthe cash
balances may exceed the $250,000 limit. The Company is aso exposed to risk on its short-term investments in the event of non-
performance by counterparties. The Company does not anticipate any non-performance. Thisrisk is minimized significantly by
the Company's portfolio being restricted to investment grade securities.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash, which is legally restricted to use, is comprised of resident security deposits, required maintenance reserves,
escrowed funds, restricted compensating balance with the Bank of America, and property rehabilitation. At December 31, 2010,
the TEBS facility required an additional $15.2 million added as restricted cash balances.

Investment in Tax-Exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds and Other Tax-Exempt Bonds

The Company accountsfor itsinvestmentsin tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and other tax-exempt bonds under the guidance
for accounting for certain investmentsin debt and equity securities. Theguidancerequiresinvestmentsin securitiesto beclassified
as one of the following: 1) held-to-maturity, 2) available-for-sale, or 3) trading securities. All of the Company's investments in
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and other tax-exempt bonds are classified as available-for-sale, and are reported at estimated
fair value with the net unrealized gains or losses reflected in other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains and losses do not
affect the cash flow of the bonds, distributions to unitholders, or the characterization of the tax-exempt interest income of the
financial obligation of the underlying collateral.

The Company owns 100% of each of these bonds. Thereis no active trading market for the bonds and price quotes for the bonds
are not available. Asaresult, the Company bases its estimate of fair value of the tax-exempt bonds using discounted cash flow
and yield to maturity analyses performed by management. This calculation methodology encompasses a significant amount of
management judgment in its application. If available, management may also consider price quotes on similar bonds or other
information from external sources, such as pricing services or broker quotes. Pricing services, broker quotes and management's
analyses provide indicative pricing only.

The Company periodically reviews each of its mortgage revenue bonds for impairment. The Company evauates whether
unrealized losses are considered to be other-than-temporary based on a number of factors including:

e Theduration and severity of the declinein fair value,

« The Company's intent to hold and the likelihood of it being required to sell the security before its value recovers,
* Adverse conditions specifically related to the security, its collateral, or both,

« Volatility of the fair value of the security,

* Thelikelihood of the borrower being able to make payments,

e Failure of the issuer to make scheduled interest or principal payments, and

*  Recoveriesor additional declinesin fair value after the balance sheet date.

While the Company evaluates all available information, it focuses specifically on whether it has the intent to sell the securities
prior tothetimethat their valuerecoversor until maturity, whether it islikely that the Company will bereguired to sell the securities
before arecovery in value and whether the Company expects to recover the securities entire amortized cost basis. The ability to
recover the securities entire amortized cost basis is based on the likelihood of the issuer being able to make required principal
and interest payments on the security. The primary source of repayment of the amortized cost is the cash flows produced by the
property which serves as the collateral for the bonds. The Company utilizes a discounted cash flow model for the underlying
property and compares the results of the model to the amortized cost basis of the bond. These models reflect the cash flows
expected to be generated by the underlying properties over a ten year period, including an assumed property sale at the end of
year ten, discounted using the effective interest rate on the bonds in accordance with the accounting guidance on other than
temporary impairment of debt securities. Theinputsto these model srequire management to make assumptionsthe most significant
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of which include:

*  Revenueand expense projectionsfor the property operations, whichresult in the estimated net operatingincome generated
over the ten year holding period assumed in the model. Base year (model year one) assumptions are based on historical
financial results and operating budget information. Base year assumptions are then adjusted for expected changes in
occupancy, rental rates and expenses., and

» Thecapitalization rate utilized to estimate the sal es proceeds from an assumed property salein year ten of themodel. The
capitalization rateused in the current year model swas 7.0% which the Partnership believesrepresents areasonabl e market
rate for multifamily properties.

The revenue, expense and resulting net operating income projections which are the basis for the discounted cash flow model are
based on judgment. Operating results from a multifamily residential property depends on the rental and occupancy rates of the
property and the level of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents are directly affected by the supply of, and demand for,
apartmentsin the market areasin which aproperty islocated. This, inturn, isaffected by several factors such aslocal or national
economic conditions, the amount of new apartment construction and interest rates on single-family mortgage loans. 1n addition,
factors such as government regulation, inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problems and natural disasters can affect the
economic operations of a property.

If the discounted cash flowsfrom aproperty arelessthan the amortized cost of the bond, we believethat thereisastrongindication
that the cash flowsfromthe property will not support the payment of therequired principal andinterest onthebond and, accordingly,
the bonds are considered other-than-temporarily impaired. If an other-than-temporary impairment exists, the amortized cost basis
of the mortgage bond is written down to its estimated fair value. The amount of the write-down representing a credit loss is
accounted for as a realized loss on the statement of operations. The amount of the write-down representing a non-credit loss is
recorded to other comprehensive income. The recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and the potential impairment
analysis are subject to a considerable degree of judgment, the results of which when applied under different conditions or
assumptions could have a material impact on the financial statements. If the credit and capital markets deteriorate further or the
Company experiences deterioration in the values of itsinvestment portfolio, the Company may incur impairmentsto itsinvestment
portfolio which could negatively impact the Company's financial condition, cash flows, and reported earnings.

Theinterest income received by the Company from itsinvestment in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds is dependent upon the
net cash flow of the underlying properties. Base interest income on fully-performing tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds is
recognized as it is earned. Tax-exempt bonds are considered to be fully-performing if the bond is currently meeting all of its
obligations. Base interest income on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds not fully performing is recognized when realized or
realizable. Past due base interest on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, which are or were previously not fully performing, is
recognized when realized or realizable. Contingent interest income, which is only received by the Company if the properties
financed by the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds generate excess avail able cash flow as set forth in each bond agreement, is
recognized when realized or realizable. The Company reinstatesthe accrual of baseinterest once the tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond's ability to perform is adequately demonstrated. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company's tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds were fully performing asto their base interest.

Interest income on other tax-exempt bonds is recognized as earned.

The Company owns some tax-exempt bonds which were purchased at a discount. The discount is amortized on an effectiveyield
method and the result is realized in income in the current period.

The Company eliminates the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and the associated interest income and interest receivable when
it consolidates the underlying real estate collateral in accordance with implementation of the consolidation guidance for variable
interest entities.

Variableinterest entities (“ VIES”)

When the Partnership invests in a tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is collateralized by a multifamily property, the
Partnership will evaluate the entity which owns the property financed by the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond to determine if
it is a VIE as defined by the guidance on consolidations. The guidance on consolidations is a complex standard that requires
significant analysis and judgment. If it is determined that the entity isaVIE, the Partnership will then evaluate if it isthe primary
beneficiary of such VIE, by determining whether the Partnership will absorb the majority of the VIE's expected losses, receive a
majority of the VIE's residual returns, or both. If the Partnership determines itself to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE, then
the assets, liabilities and financial results of the related multifamily property will be consolidated in the Partnership's financial
statements. As a result of such consolidation, the tax-exempt or taxable debt financing provided by the Partnership to such
consolidated VIE will be eliminated as part of the consolidation process. However, the Partnership will continueto receiveinterest
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and principal payments on such debt and these paymentswill retain their characterization as either tax-exempt or taxable interest
for incometax reporting purposes. Sincethe Partnership hasno legal ownership of the VI Es, creditors of the VIEshave no recourse
to the Partnership.

Investmentsin Real Estate

The Company's investments in real estate are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of real estate is based
on the estimated useful life of the related asset, generally 19-40 years on multifamily residential apartment buildings and five to
15yearson capital improvementsand is cal culated using the straight-line method. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
asincurred, while improvements, renovations and replacements are capitalized.

Management reviews each property for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of a property may not be recoverable. The review of recoverability is based upon comparing the net book
value of each real estate property to the sum of its estimated undiscounted future cash flows. If impairment exists due to the
inability to recover the carrying value of a property, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying value of the
property exceeds its estimated fair value.

In October 2010, the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA”) issued a Notice of Termination of Tax
Credit Assistance Program (“TCAP") Funding to the General Partner of Residences at Weatherford. Together with the General
Partner, the Company unsuccessfully appealed the termination. Based on the termination notice, the Company determined that
the property fixed assets of Residences at Weatherford and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is eliminated
in consolidation areimpaired. Asof December 31, 2010 the property fixed assets, consisting of land and land improvements, and
the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond owned by the Partnership have been written down to estimated fair value. The
resulting impairment chargeand provision for loan loss of approximately $3.3 millionisattributableto theunitholders. InFebruary
2011, the Company foreclosed on the current ownership and has begun construction on the Weatherford property. There were no
impairment |osses recognized during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Property Loans

In addition to the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held by the Company, loans have been made to the owners of the some of
the properties which secure the bonds. The repayment of these loans is dependent largely on the value of the property which
collateralizes the loan. The Company periodically evaluates these loans for potential losses by estimating the fair value of the
property which collateralizes the loans and comparing the fair value to the outstanding tax-exempt bonds plus any property
loans. The Company utilizes the discounted cash flow model discussed above except that in estimating a property fair value we
evaluate anumber of different DCF modelsthat contain varying assumptions. The various models may assume multiple revenue
and expense scenarios, various capitalization ratesand multiple discount rates. The Company may also consider other information
such as independent appraisalsin estimating a property fair value.

If the estimated fair value of the property after deducting the amortized cost basis of the senior tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond
exceeds the principal balance of the property loan then no potential lossisindicated and no allowancefor loan lossisrecorded. If
apotential lossisindicated, an allowancefor loan lossis recorded against the outstanding loan amount and alossisrealized. The
determination of the need for an allowance for loan loss is subject to considerable judgment. For the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company recognized loan losses of approximately $562,000, $1.4 million and $0, respectively.

Accounting for TEBS Financing

The Company has evaluated the accounting guidance in regard to the TEBS Financing (Note 9) and has determined that the
securitization transaction does not meet the accounting criteria for a sale or transfer of financial assets and will, therefore, be
accounted for asasecured financing transaction. Morespecifically, theguidanceon transfersand servicing setsforth the conditions
that must be met to de-recognize atransferred financial asset. Thisguidance provides, in part, that the transferor has surrendered
control over transferred assetsif and only if the transferor does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through
any of the following:

1. Anagreement that both entitles and obligates the transferor to repurchase or redeem them before their maturity,

2. Theability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets, other than through a cleanup call, or

3. Anagreement that permits the transferee to reguire the transferor to repurchase the transferred financial assets at aprice
that is so favorable to the transferee that it is probabl e that the transferee will require the transferor to repurchase them.

The TEBS Financing agreements contain certain provisions that allow the Company to (1) cause the return of certain individual
bonds under defined circumstances, (2) cause the return of al of the bonds by electing an Optional Series Pool Release or (3)
cause the return of any defaulted bonds. The Optional Series Pool Release is defined in the agreements as two specific dates,
September 15, 2017 or September 15, 2020, on which the Company has the option to repurchase all of the securitized bonds.
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Given these terms, the Company has concluded that the condition in item 2 above is present in the agreements and, therefore,
effective control over the transferred assets has not occurred. As effective control has not been transferred the transaction does
not meet the conditions to de-recognize the assets resulting in the TEBS Financing being presented on the Company consolidated
financial statements as a secured financing.

In addition to evaluating the TEBS Financing as a sale or transfer of financial assets, we have evaluated the securitization trust
associated with the TEBS Financing (the “TEBS Trust”) under the provisions of consolidation guidance. As part of the TEBS
Financing certain bond assets of the Partnership were securitized into the TEBS Trust with Freddie Mac. The TEBS Trust then
issued Class A and B TEBS Certificates. The Partnership has determined that the TEBS Trust isaVIE and the Class B Certificates
owned by the Partnership create a variable interest in the TEBS Trust.

In determining the primary beneficiary of the TEBS Trust, the Partnership considered the activities of the VIE which most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance, who has the power to control such activities, the risks which the entity was
designed to create, the variability associated with those risks and the interests which absorb such variability. The Partnership has
retained the right, pursuant to the TEBS Financing agreements, to either substitute or reacquire someor al of the securitized bonds
at various future dates and under various circumstances. As a result, the Partnership determined it had retained a controlling
financial interest in the TEBS Trust because such actions effectively provide the Partnership with the ability to control decisions
pertaining to the VIE's management of interest rate and credit risk. While in the TEBS Trust, the bond assets may only be used
to settle obligations of the trust and the liabilities of the trust do not provide the Class A certificate holders with recourse to the
general credit of the Partnership. The Partnership also considered therelated party relationship of the entitiesinvolved inthe VIE.
It was determined that the Partnership met both of the primary beneficiary criteria and was the most closely associated with the
VIE and, therefore, was determined to be the primary beneficiary.

Given these accounting determinations, the TEBS Financing and the associated TEBS Trust are presented as a secured financing
onthe ATAX TEBSI, LLC balance sheet and all activities associated with the TEBS Financing are presented with the results of
the ATAX TEBSI, LLC operations. Asnoted above, ATAX TEBSI, LLC isa Consolidated Subsidiary of the Partnership.

Deferred Financing Costs

Debt financing costs are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the stated maturity of the related debt financing
agreement, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized on a straight-
line basis over the stated maturity of the related tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, which approximates the effective interest
method. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, debt financing costs and bond issuance costs of $4.9 million and $2.4 million,
respectively, were included in other assets. These costs are reduced on the balance sheet by the accumulated amortization of
$932,000 and $1.7 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Income Taxes

No provision has been made for income taxes because the unitholders are required to report their share of the Partnership'staxable
income for federal and state income tax purposes. Certain of the Consolidated VIES and wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Partnership are corporations that are subject to federal and state income taxes. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company
evaluated whether it was more likely than not that any deferred tax assets would be realized. The Company has recorded a full
va uation allowance of approximately $13.9 million and $12.3 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, against the
deferred tax assets created at these entities by timing differences because the realization of these future benefitsis not morelikely
than not.

Revenue Recognition on Investments in Tax-Exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds

Theinterest income received by the Partnership from its tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds i s dependent upon the net cash flow
of the underlying properties. Base interest income on fully performing tax-exempt mortgage revenue bondsis recognized asit is
earned. Baseinterest income on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds not fully performing isrecognized asit isreceived. Past due
base interest on tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, which are or were previously not fully performing, is recognized asit is
received. The Partnership reinstates the accrual of base interest once the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond's ability to perform
is adequately demonstrated. Contingent interest income, which is only received by the Partnership if the property financed by a
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond that contains a contingent interest provision generates excess available cash flow as set forth
in each bond, is recognized when realized or realizable.

Revenue Recognition on Investmentsin Real Estate
The Partnership's Consolidated VVIEsand the MF Properties (Note 6) arelessors of multifamily rental unitsunder leaseswith terms
of oneyear or less. Rental revenue is recognized, net of rental concessions, on a straight-line method over the related lease term.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
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The Company accountsfor its derivative and hedging activitiesin accordance with the guidance on Derivativesand Hedging. The
guidance on Derivatives and Hedging requiresthe recognition of all derivativeinstrumentsasassetsor liabilitiesin the Company's
consolidated balance sheets and measurement of these instruments at fair value. The accounting treatment is dependent upon
whether or not aderivativeinstrument isdesignated asahedge and, if so, thetype of hedge. The Company'sinterest rate derivative
agreements do not have a specific hedge designation under the guidance on derivatives and hedging, and therefore changesin fair
value are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as interest expense. The Company is exposed to loss should a
counterparty to its derivative instruments default. The Company does not anticipate non-performance by any counterparty. The
fair value of the interest rate derivative agreements is determined based upon current price quotes by recognized dealers.

Net Income per BUC

Net income per BUC has been cal cul ated based on the weighted average number of BUCs outstanding during each year presented.
The Partnership has no dilutive equity securities and, therefore, basic net income per BUC is the same as diluted net income per
BUC. The following table provides a reconciliation of net income per BUC holder:

Y ears Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Calculation of unitholders' interest in income (loss) from continuing operations:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (604,191) $ (2,907,341) $(1,687,593)
Less: general partners interest in income 28,532 804,223 64,059
Unallocated loss related to variable interest entities (2,466,260) (6,238,797)  (4,403,883)
Noncontrolling interest (203,831) (11,540) (9,364)
Unitholders' interest in income from continuing operations $ 2,037,368 $ 2,538,773 $ 2,661,595
Calculation of unitholders' interest in income (loss) from discontinued operations: ]
Income from discontinued operations $ — $26,734,754 $ 646,989
Less: general partner'sinterest in income — — —
Unallocated income related to variable interest entities — 26,734,754 646,989
Unitholders' interest in discontinued operations $ — 3 — $ =
Calculation of unitholders interest in net income (10ss) -
Net income (loss) $ (604,191) $ 23,827,413 $(1,040,604)
Less general partner'sinterest in net income 28,532 804,223 64,059
Unallocated income (loss) of Consolidated VIES (2,466,260) 20,495,957  (3,756,894)
Noncontrolling interest (203,831) (11,540) (9,364)
Unitholders interest in net income $ 2,037,368 $ 2,538,773 $ 2,661,595

Weighted average number of units outstanding,
27,493,449 16,661,969 13,512,928

Unitholders interest in net income per BUC (basic and diluted):

Income from continuing operations $ 007 $ 015 $ 0.20
Income from discontinued operations — — —
Net income $ 007 $ 015 $ 0.20

Noncontrolling Interest

The Company owns a non-controlling interest in the MF Properties. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted new
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in asubsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The
adoption of the new guidancerequired achangeinwhat wasformerly minority interest to noncontrolling interest and the placement
of noncontrolling interest within the partners' capital section of the consolidated balance sheet rather than in the mezzanine section
of the consolidated balance sheet. The guidance required retrospective adoption; in this annual report the consolidated statements
of operations, cash flows, and partners' capital for the year ended December 31, 2008 has been revised to reflect thereclassification
of the non-controlling interests.

Use of estimates in preparation of consolidated financial statements

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statementsin conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptionsthat affect the reported amounts of assetsand liabilitiesand disclosure of contingent assetsand liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statementsand the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
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Actual resultscould differ from those estimates. The most significant estimates and assumptionsinclude those used in determining
investment valuation, investment impairments, impairment of property assets, and allowance for loan losses.

3. Partnership Income, Expenses and Cash Distributions

The Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Partnership contains provisions for the distribution of Net Interest Income, Net
Residual Proceeds and Liquidation Proceeds, for the allocation of income or loss from operations and for the allocation of income
and loss arising from a repayment, sale or liquidation of investments. Income and losses will be allocated to each unitholder on
aperiodic basis, as determined by the General Partner, based on the number of BUCs held by each unitholder as of the last day
of the period for which such alocation is to be made. Distributions of Net Interest Income and Net Residual Proceeds will be
made to each unitholder of record on thelast day of each distribution period based on the number of BUCs held by each unitholder
as of such date. For purposes of the Agreement of Limited Partnership, cash distributions, if any, received by the Partnership from
the Investment in MF Properties (Note 6) will be included in the Partnership's Interest Income and cash distributions received by
the Partnership from the sale of such properties will be included in the Partnership Residual Proceeds.

Cash distributions are currently made on a quarterly basis but may be made on a monthly or semiannual basis at the election of
AFCA 2. Oneachdistribution date, Net Interest Incomeisdistributed 99% to the unitholdersand 1% to AFCA 2 and Net Residual
Proceeds are distributed 100% to unitholders except that Net Interest Income and Net Residual Proceeds representing contingent
interest in an amount equal to 0.9% per annum of the principal amount of the mortgage bonds on a cumulative basis (defined as
Net Interest Income (Tier 2) and Net Residual Proceeds (Tier 2), respectively) are distributed 75% to the unitholders and 25% to
AFCA 2.

The Agreement of Limited Partnership also allowsthe General Partner towithhold, fromtimetotime, Interest Income and Residual
Proceeds and to place these amountsinto areserve to provide funding for working capital or additional investments. In 2005, the
General Partner placed Net Residual Proceeds representing contingent interest of approximately $10.9 millionintothereserve. As
of December 31, 2010, all amounts of Net Residual Proceeds representing contingent interest have been distributed.

Theunallocated deficit of the Consolidated VI Esisprimarily comprised of theaccumul ated historical net |osses of the Consolidated
VIEs as of the date of the implementation of the guidance on consolidations. The unallocated deficit of the Consolidated VIES
and the Consolidated VIEs net losses subsequent to that date are not alocated to the General Partner and unitholders as such
activity is not contemplated by, or addressed in, the Agreement of Limited Partnership.

4. VariableInterest Entities

The Partnership invests in federally tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds which have been issued to provide construction and/or
permanent financing of multifamily residential apartments. The Partnership owns 100% of these bonds and each bond is secured
by afirst mortgage on the property. The Partnership has also made taxable loans to the property owners in certain cases which
are secured by second mortgages on these properties. Although each multifamily property financed with tax-exempt mortgage
bonds held by the Partnership is owned by a separate entity in which the Partnership has no equity ownership interest, the debt
financing provided by the Partnership creates a variable interest in these ownership entities that may require the Partnership to
report the assets, liabilities and results of operations of these entities on a consolidated basis under GAAP.

Under consolidation guidance, the Partnership must make an evaluation of these entities to determine if they meet the definition
of a“variableinterest entity” (“VIE"). The Partnership has determined that, as of January 1, 2010, six of the entities financed by
tax-exempt bonds owned by the Partnership were held by VIEs. TheseVIEsare Ashley Square, Bent Tree, Cross Creek, Fairmont
Oaks, lonal akesand LakeForest. Additionally, in January 2010, the Partnershipissued aNotice of Default on two bond holdings,
Residencesat DeCordova("DeCordova') (formerly knownas ("f/k/a") The Gardens of DeCordova) and Residencesat Weatherford
("Weatherford") (f/k/a The Gardens of Weatherford), and began foreclosure procedures. The foreclosure on these bonds was
completed in March 2010. Simultaneous with the foreclosure, the properties were acquired through the assumption of liabilities
by new ownership and the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds owned by the Partnership became the obligations of the new
owners. Prior to the foreclosure and ownership transfer the owners of these properties were not considered VIEs. Based on the
foreclosuresand thelack of sufficient equity investment at risk by the new owners, these entitieswere determined to be Consolidated
VIEsin March 2010.

The Partnership does not hold an equity interest in these VIES and, therefore, the assets of the VIEs cannot be used to settle the
general commitments of the Partnership and the Partnership is not responsible for the commitments and liabilities of the VIEs.
The primary risks to the Partnership associated with these VIEs relate to the entities ability to meet debt service obligations to
the Partnership and the valuation of the underlying multifamily apartment property which serves as bond collateral.
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Under the prior consolidation standards the Partnership consolidated Ashley Square, Bent Tree, Cross Creek, Fairmont Oaks, lona
Lakes and Lake Forest as it held the majority of the variable interestsin these VIEs. Under the revised standards, the Partnership
has determined that it is the primary beneficiary of four of these VIEs; Bent Tree, Fairmont Oaks, lona Lakes and Lake Forest
and has continued to consolidate these entities. Asaresult of adopting the new guidance on January 1, 2010, the Partnership no
longer reports Ashley Square and Cross Creek on a consolidated basis.

The following is adiscussion of the significant judgments and assumptions made by the Partnership in determining the primary
beneficiary of the VIE and, therefore, whether the Partnership must consolidate the VIE.

Consolidated VIEs

The Partnership has determined it isthe primary beneficiary of the Bent Tree, Fairmont Oaks, lona L akes, Lake Forest, DeCordova
and Weatherford VIEs. The capital structure of each of these VIEs consists of senior debt, subordinated debt, and equity capital.
The senior debt isin the form of atax-exempt multifamily housing mortgage revenue bond and accounts for the majority of the
VIEs total capital. Asthe bondholder, the Partnership isentitled to principal and interest paymentsand has certain protectiverights
as established by the bond documents. The equity ownership in four of these entities, Bent Tree, Fairmont Oaks, lona Lake and
LakeForest, isultimately held by corporationswhich areowned by four individuals, three of which arerelated parties. Additionally,
each of these properties, with the exception of Weatherford which is currently under construction, is managed by an affiliate of
the Partnership, America First Properties Management Company, LLC (“Properties Management”) which is an affiliate of
Burlington.

In determining the primary beneficiary of these VIEs, the Partnership considered the activities of the VI E which most significantly
impact the VIES economic performance, who has the power to control such activities, the risks which the entities were designed
to create, the variability associated with thoserisks and theinterestswhich absorb such variability. The Partnership also considered
the related party relationships of the entities involved in the VIEs. It was determined that the Partnership, as part of the related
party group, met both of the primary beneficiary criteria and was the most closely associated with the VIEs and, therefore, was
determined to be the primary beneficiary.

As noted above, the Partnership foreclosed on the bonds secured by DeCordova and Weatherford in March 2010. The following
isadiscussion of the circumstances related to the DeCordova and Weatherford properties.

Residences at DeCordova. This property is a senior (55+) affordable housing project located in Granbury, Texas in the
Dallas-Fort Worth area. Construction was completed in April 2009 and lease-up continues, however, the property has not yet
reached stahilization which is defined in the bond documents as the generation of a 1.15:1 debt service coverage ratio for six
straight months. In January 2010, the Partnership issued a Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin foreclosure
procedures in order to remove the limited partner. Such notice was issued in February 2010 and the foreclosure was compl eted
in March 2010. At that time the general partner was allowed to continuein that capacity and a new limited partner was admitted.
Theforeclosure was areconsideration event under the variableinterest entity guidance and asaresult of the reevaluation, the bond
was eliminated and the entity which owns the property was consolidated as a VIE effective March 2010. At the request of the
Partnership, in April 2010, the property owners reduced the number of units set aside for affordable tenants to 60% and began
leasing 30 unitsto market ratetenants. The property continued to experience slow lease-up and in December 2010, the Partnership
issued a second Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin foreclosure procedures in order to remove both the general
partner and the limited partner and take ownership of the property. This second foreclosure was completed in February 2011 at
which time the ownership of the property wastaken by the Partnership. Asof December 31, 2009, the property had 31 unitsleased
out of total available units of 76, or 41% physical occupancy. Asof December 31, 2010, the property had 65 units leased out of
total available units of 76, or approximately 86% physical occupancy and an additional eight leases are pending. At thistimethe
Partnership expects to operate the property as amarket rate apartment property. Once the property isleased up and stabilized the
Partnership will evaluate its options in order to realize itsinvestment in DeCordova.

Residences at Weatherford. Residences at Weatherford are currently under construction and will contain 76 units upon
completion. Thisproperty isasenior (55+) affordable housing project located in Weatherford, Texasin the Dallas-Fort Worth area.
At this time infrastructure construction activities have been substantially completed but no construction has begun on the actual
apartment buildings. In January 2010, the Partnership issued a Notice of Default through the bond trustee and began foreclosure
procedures to remove the limited partner. Such notice was issued in February 2010 and the foreclosure was completed in March
2010. At that time the general partner was allowed to continue in that capacity and a new limited partner was admitted. The
foreclosure was a reconsideration event under the variable interest entity guidance and as a result of the reevaluation, the bond
was eliminated and the entity that owns the property was consolidated as a VI E effective in March 2010. Through this process
the Partnership anticipated that the new property owner would recapitalizethe property by pursuing an alternative plan of financing.
Specifically, the Partnership worked with the general partner of the owner to identify available Tax Credit Assistance Program
(“TCAP") funding through application to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA”). In March 2010
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a TCAP Written Agreement with TDHCA was approved and entered into which committed TCAP funds to the project pending
the completion of formal agreements. Formal agreements and funding were originally expected to be completed in the second
quarter of 2010, however, the process was delayed due to the large number of transactionsinvolving TDHCA to beclosed. During
thedelay TDHCA identified certainissuesin funding and compliancewith other projectsinwhichthe General Partner of Residences
at Weatherfordisinvolved. Asaresult of theseissues, in October 2010, TDHCA issued aNotice of Terminationof TCAPFunding
to the General Partner. Together with the General Partner, the Company unsuccessfully appealed the termination. Based on the
termination notice, the Company has determined that the property fixed assets of Residences at Weatherford and the associated
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond which is eliminated in consolidation were impaired. Asof December 31, 2010 the property
fixed assets, consisting of land and land improvements, and the associated tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond owned by the
Partnership have been written down. Theresultingimpairment charge and provision for |oan |osses of approximately $3.3 million
is attributable to the unitholders. Asaresult of the failure of the property owner to secure an alternative plan of financing, the
Partnership issued a second Notice of Default through the bond trustee to begin foreclosure procedures in order to remove both
the general partner and thelimited partner and take ownership of the property. Thissecond foreclosure was completed in February
2011 at which time the ownership of the property was taken by the Partnership. The Partnership has taken over the project and
intends to fund the construction and stabilization of the project. Upon the completion of construction, the Partnership expects to
operatethe property asamarket rate apartment property. Oncethe property isleased up and stabilized the Partnership will evaluate
its optionsin order to realize its investment in Weatherford.

Non-Consolidated VIEs

As aresult of adopting the new accounting guidance, we deconsolidated two entities, the Ashley Square and Cross Creek VIEs.
Indetermining theprimary beneficiary of these VI Es, the Partnership considered the activities of each VI E which most significantly
impact the VIES economic performance, who has the power to control such activities, the risks which the entities were designed
to create, the variability associated with those risks and the interests which absorb such variability. The significant activities of
the VIE that impact the economic performance of the entity includeleasing and maintaining apartments, determining if the property
isto be sold, decisions relating to debt refinancing, the selection of or replacement of the property manager and the approval of
the operating and capital budgets. Asdiscussed below, whilethe capital structuresof these VIEsresulted in the Partnership holding
amajority of the variable interests in these VI Es, the Partnership determined it does not have the power to direct the activities of
these VIEs that most significantly impact the VIES economic performance and, as aresult, is not the primary beneficiary of these
VIEs.

Ashley Square- Ashley Square Housing Cooperative acquired the ownership of the Ashley Square apartmentsin December 2008
from Ashley Square LL C through awarranty deed of transfer and an assumption of debt. Thistransfer of ownership constitutes
areconsideration event as outlined in consolidation guidance which triggers are-evaluation of the holders of variable interests to
determine the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The capital structure of the VIE consists of senior debt, subordinated loans and
equity capital. Thesenior debt isin the form of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds that are 100% owned by the Partnership and
account for the majority of the VIE'stotal capital. Asthe bondholder, the Partnership isentitled to principal and interest payments
and has certain protective rights as established by the bond documents. The VIE is organized as a housing cooperative and the
99% equity owner of thisVIEisTheFoundationfor AffordableHousing (“ FAH"), anunaffiliated Nebraskanon-profit organi zation.
Additionally, this property is managed by Properties Management.

Cross Creek - Cross Creek Apartments Holdings LLC is the owner of the Cross Creek Apartments. On January 1, 2010, Cross
Creek Apartment Holdings LL C entered into a new operating agreement and admitted three new members. These new members
committed approximately $2.2 million of capital payable in three installments including $563,000 on January 1, 2010. The new
operating agreement and admi ssion of new owner membersconstitutesareconsi deration event asoutlined in consolidation guidance
which triggers a re-evaluation of the holders of variable interests to determine the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The capital
structure of the VIE consists of senior debt, subordinated loans and equity capital at risk. The senior debt isin the form of tax-
exempt mortgage revenue bonds that are 100% owned by the Partnership and account for the majority of the VIE's total capital.
As the bondholder, the Partnership is entitled to principal and interest payments and has certain protective rights as established
by the bond documents. The three newly admitted members of this VIE are each unaffiliated with the Partnership and have
contributed significant equity capital to the VIE. These members collectively control a 99% interest in the VIE. The other 1%
member of thisVIE is FAH, which is also unaffiliated with the Partnership. Additionally, this property is managed by Properties
Management.
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The following table presents information regarding the carrying value and classification of the assets held by the Partnership as

of December 31, 2010, which constitute a variable interest in Ashley Square and Cross Creek.

Ashley Square Apartments
Tax Exempt Mortgage Revenue Bond
Property Loan

Cross Creek Apartments
Tax Exempt Mortgage Revenue Bond
Property Loans

Balance Sheet Carrying Maximum Exposure
Classification Vaue to Loss

Bond Investment $ 4,712,187 $ 5,356,000
Other Asset 1,190,000 5,804,975
$ 5,902,187 $ 11,160,975
Bond Investment $ 7,251,128 $ 5,913,776
Other Asset 3,183,754 3,183,754
$ 10,434,882 $ 9,097,530

The consolidated financia statements of the Company include the assets, liabilities and results of operation of the Partnership and
the six Consolidated VIEs. Financia information of the Partnership, on a stand-alone basis, includes only the assets, liabilities
and results of operations of the Partnership and the MF Properties without the impact of the consolidation of the VIES. In the
Company's consolidated financial statements, all transactions and accounts between the Partnership, the MF Properties and the
Consolidated VIEs have been eliminated in consolidation.

The following tables provide information about the six Consolidated VIEsin 2010 and the six VIEs consolidated in 2009 in the
Partnership'sfinancial statementsunder the provisions of the guidance on consolidations. These schedulesal soincludeinformation
on the tax-exempt bonds owned by the Partnership which are eliminated in consolidation, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. In addition to the tax-exempt bonds detailed below, the Partnership has made taxable loansto VIEs of $18.4 million
and $14.4 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

VIEs - December 31, 2010

Base Principal Income
Maturity Interest Outstanding at Earned in
Property Name Location Date Rate Dec. 31, 2010 2010
Bent Tree Apartments™ Columbia, SC 12/15/2030 6.25% $ 7,748000 $ 698,163
Fairmont Oaks Apartments® Gainsville, FL 4/1/2033 6.30% 7,592,000 479,792
lona Lakes Apartments Ft. Myers, FL 4/1/2030 6.90% 15,895,000 1,102,534
L ake Forest Apartments ¥ Daytona Beach, FL 12/1/2031 6.25% 9,297,000 654,806
Residences at DeCordova Granbury, TX 5/1/2047 6.00% 4,853,000 242,650
Residences at Wesatherford Weatherford, TX 5/1/2047 6.00% 4,686,000 164,010
Total Tax-Exempt Mortgage Bonds $ 50,071,000 $ 3,341,955
(1) Bonds held by ATAX TEBSI, LLC
VIEs - December 31, 2009
Base Principal Income
Maturity Interest Outstanding at Earned in
Property Name Location Date Rate Dec. 31, 2009 2009
Ashley Square Des Moines, IA 12/1/2025 750% $ 6,500,000 $ 494,271
Bent Tree Apartments Columbia, SC 12/15/2030 7.10% $ 11,130,000 $ 790,230
Cross Creek Apartments Beaufort, SC 3/1/2049 6.15% $ 8,850,000 $ 408,206
Fairmont Oaks Apartments Gainsville, FL 4/1/2033 6.30% $ 7,645,000 $ 483,840
lona Lakes Apartments Ft. Myers, FL 4/1/2030 6.90% $ 16,060,000 $ 1,113,315
Lake Forest Apartments Daytona Beach, FL 12/1/2011 6.90% $ 10,030,000 $ 696,066
Total Tax-Exempt Mortgage Bonds $ 60,215,000 $ 3,985,928
VIEs - Discontinued Operations - December 31, 2009
Base Principal Income
Maturity Interest Outstanding at Earned in
Property Name Location Date Rate Dec. 31, 2009 2009
Ashley Pointe Evansville, IN 12/1/2027 7.00% $ — $ 70,350
Woodbridge Apts. Of Bloomington |11 Bloomington, IN 12/1/2027 750% $ — $ 141,750
Woodbridge Apts. Of Louisvillell Louisville, KY 12/1/2027 750% $ — $ 100,980
Total Tax-Exempt Mortgage Bonds $ — $ 313,080
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The following tables present the effects of the consolidation of the VIEs on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets and

Statements of Operations.

Consolidating Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2010 and 20009:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Interest receivable

Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held in trust
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds

Real estate assets:
Land

Buildings and improvements
Real estate assets before accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets
Other assets
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

Distribution payable
Debt financing
Mortgage payable
Total Liabilities
Partners Capital
General Partner

Beneficial Unit Certificate holders
Unallocated deficit of Consolidated VIEs

Total Partners Capital
Noncontrolling interest
Total Capital

Total Liabilities and Partners Capital

Consolidated Consolidation -

Partnership as of VIEs as of Elimination as Total as of
December 31, December 31, of December 31, December 31,
2010 2010 2010 2010
$ 13,095306 $ 181,742 $ — $ 13,277,048

21,259,931 3,992,825 — 25,252,756
10,154,676 — (5,484,494) 4,670,182
95,400,690 — (21,949,211) 73,451,479
47,956,608 — (20,841,444) 27,115,164
6,736,351 6,210,480 — 12,946,831
37,780,446 54,022,248 — 91,802,694
44,516,797 60,232,728 — 104,749,525
(5,229,598) (18,237,507) — (23,467,105)
39,287,199 41,995,221 — 81,282,420
33,078,415 1,334,439 (17,854,654) 16,558,200

$ 260232825 $ 47,504,227 $ (66,129,803) $ 241,607,249
$ 1,580,642 $ 39,069,063 $ (37,121,402) $ 3,528,303
3,803,399 — — 3,803,399
95,608,000 — — 95,608,000
10,645,982 50,071,000 (50,071,000) 10,645,982
111,638,023 89,140,063 (87,192,402) 113,585,684
(280,629) — — (280,629)
149,016,757 — 12,372,432 161,389,189

— (41,635,836) 8,690,167 (32,945,669)

148,736,128 (41,635,836) 21,062,599 128,162,891
(141,326) — — (141,326)
148,594,802 (41,635,836) 21,062,599 128,021,565

$ 260232825 $ 47,504,227 $ (66,129,803) $ 241,607,249
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Consolidated Consolidation -

Partnership as VIEs as of Elimination as Tota as of
of December 31,  December 31,  of December 31,  December 31,
2009 2009 2009 2009
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,009418 $ 271,117 $ — $ 17,280,535
Restricted cash 3,137,244 2,139,973 — 5,277,217
Interest receivable 6,075,991 — (5,082,810) 993,181
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds 125,703,198 — (56,303,435) 69,399,763
Resal estate assets:
Land 6,736,351 6,667,304 — 13,403,655
Buildings and improvements 37,375,063 65,512,057 (2,631,341) 100,255,779
Real estate assets before accumulated depreciation 44.111,414 72,179,361 (2,631,341) 113,659,434
Accumulated depreciation (3,324,801) (18,543,740) — (21,868,541)
Net real estate assets 40,786,613 53,635,621 (2,631,341) 91,790,893
Other assets 19,843,456 1,714,940 (15,529,265) 6,029,131
Total Assets $ 212555920 $ 57,761,651 $ (79,546,851) $ 190,770,720
Liabilities and Owners Equity
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other $ 1618741 $ 41,691,171 $ (39,378,064) $ 3,931,848
Distribution Payable 2,757,945 — — 2,757,945
Debt financing 55,363,333 — — 55,363,333
Mortgage payable 30,116,854 57,764,026 (57,764,026) 30,116,854
Total Liabilities 89,856,873 99,455,197 (97,142,090) 92,169,980
Partners Capital
General Partner 271,051 — — 271,051
Beneficial Unit Certificate holders 122,365,491 — 8,117,390 130,482,881
Unallocated deficit of Consolidated VIEs — (41,693,546) 9,477,849 (32,215,697)
Total Partners' Capital 122,636,542 (41,693,546) 17,595,239 98,538,235
Noncontrolling interest 62,505 — — 62,505
Total Capital 122,699,047 (41,693,546) 17,595,239 98,600,740
Total Liabilities and Partners' Capital $ 212555920 $ 57,761,651 $ (79,546,851) $ 190,770,720
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Consolidating Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

Consolidated Consolidation

Partnership For VIEs For the Elimination For Total For the

the Year Ended Y ear Ended the Year Ended Y ear Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2010 ¥ 2010 2010 2010
Revenues:
Property revenues $ 7,205,099 $ 7,487,438 $ — $ 14,692,537
Mortgage revenue bond investment income 10,223,269 — (3,341,955) 6,881,314
Gain on early extinguishment of debt 435,395 — — 435,395
Other interest income 488,427 — (32,805) 455,622
Total Revenues 18,352,190 7,487,438 (3,374,760) 22,464,868
Expenses:
Readl estate operating (exclusive of items shown below) 4,917,287 5,099,455 — 10,016,742
Provison for loan loss 1,147,716 — (585,331) 562,385
Asset impairment charge - Weatherford 2,716,330 2,767,070 (2,954,548) 2,528,852
Depreciation and amortization 2,810,525 2,305,313 (53,021) 5,062,817
Interest 2,514,479 5,546,229 (5,546,229) 2,514,479
General and administrative 2,383,784 — — 2,383,784
Total Expenses 16,490,121 15,718,067 (9,139,129) 23,069,059

Net income (l0ss) 1,862,069 (8,230,629) 5,764,369 (604,191)
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 203,831 — — 203,831
Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt Investors, L. P. $ 2,065,900 $ (8,230,629) $ 5,764,369 $ (400,360)

@ Includes TEBS Financing - see Notes 2 and 9

Consolidated Consolidation -

Partnership For VIEs For the Elimination For Total For the

the Y ear Ended Y ear Ended the Year Ended Y ear Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2009 2009 2009 2009
Revenues:
Property revenues $ 7,045578 $ 8,621,475 $ — $ 15,667,053
Mortgage revenue bond investment income 11,087,923 — (6,834,759) 4,253,164
Gain on sale of assets held for sale 862,865 — — 862,865
Other interest income 106,082 — — 106,082
Loss on sale of securities (127,495) — 127,495 —
Total Revenues 18,974,953 8,621,475 (6,707,264) 20,889,164
Expenses:
Readl estate operating (exclusive of items shown below) 4,151,353 5,976,304 — 10,127,657
Provison for loan loss 1,696,730 — (294,999) 1,401,731
Depreciation and amortization 3,514,073 2,608,915 (55,658) 6,067,330
Interest 4,283,680 6,847,884 (6,929,438) 4,202,126
General and administrative 1,997,661 — — 1,997,661
Total Expenses 15,643,497 15,433,103 (7,280,095) 23,796,505

Income (loss) from continuing operations 3,331,456 (6,811,628) 572,831 (2,907,341)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — 34,786,445 (8,051,691) 26,734,754
Net income (10ss) 3,331,456 27,974,817 (7,478,860) 23,827,413
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 11,540 — — 11,540
Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt Investors, L. P. $ 33429% $ 27974817 $ (7,478,860) $ 23,838,953
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Consolidated Consolidation -
Partnership For VIEs For the Elimination For Total For the
the Y ear Ended Y ear Ended the Year Ended Y ear Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2008 2008 2008 2008

Revenues:
Property revenues $ 4,793,535 $ 8,938,510 $ 41,756 $ 13,773,801
Mortgage revenue bond investment income 10,102,802 — (5,872,597) 4,230,205
Other interest income 150,786 — — 150,786
Loss on the sale of security (68,218) — — (68,218)

Total Revenues 14,978,905 8,938,510 (5,830,841) 18,086,574
Expenses:
Readl estate operating (exclusive of items shown below) 2,628,606 6,243,613 — 8,872,219
Depreciation and amortization 2,728,096 2,318,580 (59,259) 4,987,417
Interest 5,097,454 5,941,543 (6,932,925) 4,106,072
General and administrative 1,808,459 — — 1,808,459

Total Expenses 12,262,615 14,503,736 (6,992,184) 19,774,167
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,716,290 (5,565,226) 1,161,343 (1,687,593)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — (1,515,365) 2,162,354 646,989
Net income (l0ss) 2,716,290 (7,080,591) 3,323,697 (1,040,604)
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 9,364 — — 9,364

Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt Investors, L. P. $ 2,725,654 $ (7,080,591) $ 3,323,697 $ (1,031,240)

In February 2009, the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds secured by assets of the VIEs presented as discontinued operations as
of December 31, 2008 were redeemed. In order to properly reflect the transaction under the guidance on consolidations, the
Company recorded the redemption of the bonds as the sale of the properties as though they were owned by the Company. The
transaction was completed in the first quarter of 2009 for a total purchase price of $32.0 million resulting in a gain on sale for
GAAP reporting of approximately $26.5 million. The redemption of the bonds did not result in a taxable gain to the Partnership.

On a stand-alone basis, the Partnership received approximately $30.9 million of net proceeds from the bond redemption. These
proceeds represent the repayment of the bond par values plus accrued base interest and approximately $2.3 million of contingent
interest. The contingent interest, recognized in the first quarter of 2009, represents additional earnings to the Partnership beyond
the recurring base interest earned on the bond portfolio. The contingent interest also represents additional Cash Available for
Distribution to the unitholders of approximately $1.7 million, or $0.13 per unit.

5. Investmentsin Tax-Exempt M ortgage Revenue Bonds

The tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are issued by various state and local governments, their agencies and authorities to
finance the construction or rehabilitation of income-producing real estate properties. However, the tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds do not constitute an obligation of any state or local government, agency or authority and no state or local government,
agency or authority isliable on them, nor isthe taxing power of any state or local government pledged to the payment of principal
or interest on the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds. The tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are non-recourse obligations of
the respective owners of the properties. The sole source of the funds to pay principal and interest on the tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds is the net cash flow or the sale or refinancing proceeds from the properties. Each tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bond, however, is collateralized by a first mortgage on all real and personal property included in the related property and an
assignment of rents. Each of the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds bears tax-exempt interest at a fixed rate and the Clarkson
Collegebondsprovidefor the payment of additional contingent interest that is payabl e solely from avail able net cash flow generated
by the financed property.
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The tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds owned by the Company have been issued to provide construction and/or permanent
financing of multifamily residential properties. The Company had the following investments in tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds as of dates shown:

December 31, 2010

Description of Tax-Exempt Cost adjusted Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

M ortgage Revenue BondsHeld in Trust for pay-downs Gain Loss Fair Value

Ashley Square @ $ 5356000 $ — (643,813) $ 4,712,187
BellaVista® 6,695,000 — (1,044,554) 5,650,446
Bridle Ridge @ 7,865,000 — (1,342,509) 6,522,491
Brookstone 7,418,019 287,507 — 7,705,526
Cross Creek 5,913,776 1,337,352 — 7,251,128
Lost Creek @ 15,928,741 516,094 — 16,444,835
Runnymede® 10,755,000 — (1,545,327) 9,209,673
Southpark @ 11,940,458 264,143 — 12,204,601
Woodlynn Village® 4,522,000 — (771,408) 3,750,592
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held in trust $ 76393994 $ 2,405,096 $ (5347,611) $ 73,451,479

@ Bonds owned by ATAX TEBS, LLC (Note 9)
December 31, 2010

Description of Tax-Exempt Cost adjusted Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
M ortgage Revenue Bonds for pay-downs Gain Loss Fair Value
Autumn Pines $ 12334247 $ — 3 (1,244227) $ 11,090,020
Clarkson College 5,836,667 — (821,753) 5,014,914
Woodland Park 15,662,000 — (4,651,770) 11,010,230
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds $ 33832914 $ — $ (6,717,750) $ 27,115,164

December 31, 2009

Description of Tax-Exempt Cost adjusted Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

M ortgage Revenue Bonds for pay-downs Gain Loss Fair Value

BellaVista $ 6,740,000 $ — 3 (946,161) $ 5,793,839
Bridle Ridge 7,885,000 — (1,143,404) 6,741,596
Brookstone 7,351,469 379,508 — 7,730,977
Clarkson College 5,936,665 — (620,670) 5,315,995
Gardens of DeCordova 4,853,000 — (1,302,060) 3,550,940
Gardens of Weatherford 4,686,000 — (1,450,223) 3,235,777
Runnymede 10,825,000 — (1,385,383) 9,439,617
Southpark 11,919,860 427,699 — 12,347,559
Woodland Park 15,662,000 — (4,210,416) 11,451,584
Woodlynn Village 4,550,000 — (758,121) 3,791,879
Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds $ 80,408,994 $ 807,207 $ (11,816,438) $ 69,399,763
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Valuation- Asall of the Company'sinvestmentsintax-exempt mortgagerevenuebondsareclassified asavail abl e-for-sal esecurities,
they are carried on the balance sheets at their estimated fair values. Due to the limited market for the tax-exempt bonds, these
estimates of fair value do not necessarily represent what the Company would actually receive in asale of the bonds. Thereisno
active trading market for the bonds and price quotes for the bonds are not generally available. As of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, all of the Company's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds were valued using discounted cash flow and yield
to maturity analyses performed by management. Management's valuation encompasses judgment in its application. The key
assumption in management's yield to maturity analysisisthe range of effectiveyields on the individual bonds. At December 31,
2010, therange of effectiveyieldsontheindividual bondswas7.2%1t0 8.7%. Additionally, the Company cal culated the sensitivity
of the key assumption used in calculating the fair values of these bonds. Assuming an immediate ten percent adverse change in
the key assumption, the effective yields on the individual bonds would increase to a range of 7.9% to 9.6% and would result in
additional unrealized losses on the bond portfolio of approximately $8.4 million. This sensitivity analysisis hypothetical and is
asof aspecificpointintime. Theresultsof the sensitivity analysismay not beindicative of actual changesin fair value and should
be used with caution. If available, the general partner may also consider price quotes on similar bonds or other information from
external sources, such as pricing services. Pricing services, broker quotes and management's analyses provide indicative pricing
only.

Unrealized gains or losses on these tax-exempt bonds are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to reflect
changesin their estimated fair values resulting from market conditions and fluctuations in the present value of the expected cash
flows from the underlying properties. As of December 31, 2010, all of the current bond investments except the Ashley Square,
Brookstone, Cross Creek, Lost Creek, and Southpark investments have been in an unrealized loss position for greater than twelve
months. The Company has reviewed each of its mortgage revenue bonds for impairment. Based upon this evaluation, the current
unrealized losses on the bonds are not considered to be other-than-temporary.If the credit and capital markets deteriorate further,
the Company experiences deterioration in the values of its investment portfolio, or if the Company's intent and ability to hold
certain bonds changes, the Company may incur impairments to its investment portfolio which could negatively impact the
Company's financial condition, cash flows, and reported earnings.

Asof December 31, 2010, the Company has identified the Woodland Park tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond for which certain
actions may be necessary to protect the Company's position as a secured bondholder and lender. The Company has evaluated this
bond holding for an other-than-temporary decline in value as of December 31, 2010 (see Note 2 for discussion of our impairment
testing method). Based on this evaluation, the Company has concluded that no other-than-temporary impairment of Woodland
Park existed at December 31, 2010.

Our ability to recover the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond's entire amortized cost basis is dependent upon the issuer being able
to meet debt service requirements. The primary source of repayment is the cash flows produced by the property which serves as
the collateral for the bonds. The Company utilizes a discounted cash flow model for the underlying property and compares the
results of themodel to the amortized cost basisof thebond. If the discounted cash flowsfrom aproperty arelessthan the amortized
cost of the bond, we believe that there is a strong indication that the cash flows from the property will not support the payment of
therequired principle and interest on the bond and, accordingly, the bonds are considered other-than-temporarily impaired. These
models reflect the cash flows expected to be generated by the underlying properties over aten year period, including an assumed
property sale at the end of year ten, discounted using the effective interest rate on the bonds in accordance with the accounting
guidance on other than temporary impairment of debt securities.

The inputs to these model s require management to make assumptions the most significant of which include:

*  Revenueand expense projectionsfor the property operations, whichresult inthe estimated net operating income generated
over the ten year holding period assumed in the model. Base year (model year one) assumptions are based on historical
financial results and operating budget information. Base year assumptions are then adjusted for expected changes in
occupancy, rental rates and expenses., and

» Thecapitalization rate utilized to estimate the sal es proceeds from an assumed property salein year ten of themodel. The
capitalization rateused in the current year model swas 7.0% which the Partnership believesrepresents areasonable market
rate for multifamily properties.
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The revenue, expense and resulting net operating income projections which are the basis for the discounted cash flow model are
based on judgment. Operating results from a multifamily residential property depend on the rental and occupancy rates of the
property and the level of operating expenses. Occupancy rates and rents are directly affected by the supply of, and demand for,
apartmentsin the market areasin which aproperty islocated. This, inturn, isaffected by several factors such aslocal or national
economic conditions, the amount of new apartment construction and interest rates on single-family mortgage loans. 1n addition,
factors such as government regulation, inflation, real estate and other taxes, labor problems and natural disasters can affect the
economic operations of a property.

The various revenue and expense projections for the Woodland Park property operations are summarized as follows:

*  Revenue and expensesfor model year one (2011) are equal to the property budget. Budgeted revenues of approximately
$1.7 million are based on a budgeted average occupancy of 88%. Budgeted expenses are approximately
$800,000. Revenues are projected to grow over the ten years in the model to approximately $2.2 million in year ten
based on average annual rental increases of 2% and an average occupancy increasing over time to 93%. Expenses are
projected to grow to approximately $1.0 million in year ten based on average annual increases of 2.5%.

Thefollowing isadiscussion of the circumstancesrel ated to the Woodl and Park bond.Woodl and Park was compl eted in November
2008, but remainsinitsinitial lease-up phase and has not yet reached stabilization which is defined in the bond documents as the
generation of a 1.15:1 debt service coverage ratio for six straight months. Additionally, there were insufficient funds on deposit
with the bond trustee to make the debt service payment of approximately $452,000 on the bonds which was due on May 3, 2010
and the property owner did not provide additional capital to fund the shortfall. Asaresult, a payment default on the bonds has
occurred. Inorder to protect itsinvestment, the Partnership hasissued aformal notice of default through the bond trustee and has
started the foreclosure process. The foreclosure process is expected to take several months to complete. The Partnership would
expect to remove and replace the general and limited partners of the property owner through foreclosure. Thisaction would allow
anew property owner to re-syndicatethe L IHT Csassociated with thisproperty. If these LIHTCscan be successfully re-syndicated,
it will provide additional capital to the project which can be used to support debt service payments on the tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds until property operationsimprove to the point that sufficient cash is generated to pay any past due amounts on the
bondsaswell asongoing debt service. If there-syndication of LIHTCsis not successful, the Partnership may pursue other options
including making additional taxable loans to the property or completing the foreclosure process and taking direct ownership of
the property. The Partnership believesthat the most significant issuein the slow lease-up of the property and itsfailureto achieve
stabilization has been the 100% set aside of the rental unitsfor tenants that make |ess than 60% of the area median income. At the
reguest of the Partnership, in April 2010, the property owner reduced the number of units set aside for affordable tenants to 75%
and began leasing 59 units to market rate tenants. Additionally, the property owner has agreed that, if needed to stabilize the
property, it would further reduce the units set aside for affordabl e tenants to 60% thereby making an additional 35 units available
to market rate tenants. As of December 31, 2009, the property had 116 units leased out of total available units of 236, or 49%
physical occupancy. Asof December 31, 2010, occupancy hasincreased to 190 units, or 81% physical occupancy, and an additional
three leases are pending. Based onthelevel of leasing activity resulting from the change in the mix of affordable and market rate
tenants, the Partnership continues to believe that Woodland is capable of reaching stabilization.

Recent Bond Acquisitions
In November 2010, the Company acquired the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond for a 250 unit multi-family apartment complex
in Humble, Texas (Houston) known as Autumn Pines for approximately $12.3 million which represented 100% of the bond

issuance. The bond par value is $13.4 million with an annual interest rate of 5.8%. The bond purchase price resultsin ayield to
maturity of approximately 7.0% per annum. The bond matures in October 2046.
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In June 2010, the Company completed a sales transaction whereby four of the MF Properties, Crescent Village, Post Woods (I and
I1) and Willow Bend apartments in Ohio (the “Ohio Properties’), were sold to three new ownership entities controlled by an
unaffiliated not-for-profit entity. The Company acquired 100% of the $18.3 million tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds issued
by the Ohio Housing Finance Agency as part of a plan of financing for the acquisition and rehabilitation of the Ohio Properties.
Thetax-exempt mortgage bonds secured by the Ohio Properties were acquired by the Company at par and consisted of two series.
The Series A bond has apar value of $14.7 million and bearsinterest at an annual rate of 7.0%. The Series B bond has a par value
of $3.6 million and bears interest at an annual interest rate of 10.0%. Both series of bonds mature in June 2050. The Company
had previously acquired a 99% interest in the Ohio Properties as part of its strategy of acquiring existing multifamily apartment
propertiesthat it expectswill be partially financed with new tax-exempt mortgage bonds at the time the properties become eligible
for theissuance of additional low-income housing tax credits. In addition to the new tax-exempt bonds acquired by the Company,
the plan of financing for the acquisition included other subordinated debt issued by the Company. The new owners ultimately
plan to sell limited partnership interests in the properties and syndicate LIHTCs as part of the overal plan of finance. The new
owners have not contributed any capital to the transaction and the Company has effectively provided 100% of the capital structure
to the new owners as part of the sale transaction. Pursuant to the guidance on property, plant, and equipment for real estate sales,
the sale and restructure does not meet the criteria for derecognition of the properties or full accrual accounting for the gain.
treatment asasale. The guidance requires sufficient equity capital as part of a sales transaction to indicate a commitment from
the buyer (typically a minimum of 3 to 5% investment by the new owners). Asthe buyer has no equity capital in thistransaction
andtheproperty operationsarethe current support for the debt service, the Company, in substance, remainsthe owner for accounting
purposes. As such, the Company will continue to consolidate the Ohio Properties as if the sale was not completed. Under the
sales agreement, the Ohio properties were sold for atotal purchase price of $16.2 million. Cash received by the selling limited
partnerships as part of the sal e transaction represents a gain on the sale transaction of approximately $1.8 million. The properties
will continue to be presented as MF Properties and no gain will be recognized until such time as the transaction meets the criteria
for derecognition of the properties and gain recognition can be accounted for as a sale (Note 6).

In May 2010, the Company acquired the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond for a 261 unit multi-family apartment complex in
San Antonio, Texas known as The Villages at Lost Creek for approximately $15.9 million which represented 100% of the bond
issuance. The bond par valueis $18.5 million with an annual interest rate of 6.25%. The bond purchase price resultsin ayield to
maturity of approximately 7.55% per annum. The bond matures in June 2041.

In October 2009, the Company acquired the Series 2007 Brookstone A partments Project tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond for
approximately $7.3 million which represented 100% of the bond issuance. The bond par value is $9.6 million and earns interest
at an annual rate of 5.45% with amonthly interest payment and stated maturity date of May 1, 2040. Based on the purchase price
discount, the bond will yield approximately 7.5% to the Company. The bond was issued for the construction of the Brookstone
Apartments, a 168 unit multifamily apartment complex located in Waukegan, Illinois.

In August 2009, the Company acquired the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond for a 192 unit multi-family apartment complex in
Austin, Texasknown as South Park Ranch Apartmentsfor $11.9 million which represented 100% of the bond issuance. The bond
par valueis $14.2 million and the bond earnsinterest at an annual rate of 6.125%. Based on the purchase price discount, the bond
will yield approximately 6.8% tothe Company. Theinterest paymentsare payableon June 1 and December 1with astated maturity
date of December 1, 2049. The Bonds are subject to a mandatory sinking fund redemption schedule at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount over the term of the bond beginning December 1, 2010.

The Company has determined that the underlying entities that own the Autumn Pines Apartments, Lost Creek Apartments,
Brookstone Apartmentsand South Park Ranch Apartments, which are financed by bonds owned by the Partnership do not meet
the definition of a VIE and accordingly, their financial statements are not required to be consolidated into the Company's
consolidated financial statements under the guidance on consolidations.
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Descriptions of certain terms of the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds are as follows:

Principal Income
BaselInterest  Outstanding Dec. Earned In
Property Name Location Maturity Date Rate 31, 2010 2010
Ashley Square ® Des Moines, IA 12/1/2025 6.25% $ 5356000 $ 422,235
Autumn Pines Humble, TX 10/1/2046 5.80% 13,420,000 121,078
BellaVista® Gainesville, TX 4/1/2046 6.15% 6,695,000 413,596
Bridle Ridge Greer, SC 1/1/2043 6.00% 7,865,000 472,600
Brookstone @ Waukegan, IL 5/1/2040 5.45% 9,560,871 522,013
Clarkson College Omaha, NE 11/1/2035 6.00% 5,836,667 352,908
Cross Creek @ Granbury, TX 3/1/2049 6.15% 8,697,032 539,349
Runnymede Austin, TX 10/1/2042 6.00% 10,755,000 647,400
South Park Austin, TX 12/1/2049 6.13% 14,095,000 867,810
Villages at Lost Creek @ San Antonio, TX 6/1/2041 6.25% 18,500,000 732,292
Woodland Park Topeka, KS 11/1/2047 6.00% 15,013,000 900,780
Woodland Park Topeka, KS 11/1/2047 8.00% 649,000 51,920
Woodlynn Village Maplewood, MN 11/1/2042 6.00% 4,522,000 272,300
Total Tax-Exempt Mortgage Bonds $ 120964570 $ 6,316,281
@ Bonds held by ATAX TEBSI, LLC
Principal Income
Base Interest  Outstanding Dec. Earned In

Property Name Location Maturity Date Rate 31, 2009 2009
BellaVista Gainesville, TX 4/1/2046 6.15% $ 6,740,000 $ 415,201
Bridle Ridge Greer, SC 1/1/2043 6.00% 7,885,000 473,100
Brookstone Waukegan, IL 5/1/2040 5.45% 9,600,000 90,024
Clarkson College Omaha, NE 11/1/2035 6.00% 5,936,665 358,492
Gardens of DeCordova Granbury, TX 3/1/2049 6.15% 4,853,000 291,520
Gardens of Weatherford Weatherford, TX 5/1/2047 6.00% 4,686,000 281,480
Runnymede Austin, TX 10/1/2042 6.00% 10,825,000 649,500
South Park Austin, TX 12/1/2049 6.13% 14,175,000 301,465
Woodland Park Topeka, KS 11/1/2047 6.00% 15,013,000 903,367
Woodland Park Topeka, KS 11/1/2047 8.00% 649,000 52,000
Woodlynn Village Maplewood, MN 11/1/2042 6.00% 4,550,000 273,000
Total Tax-Exempt Mortgage Bonds $ 84,912,665 $ 4,089,149

6. Real Estate Assets

MF Properties

Tofacilitate itsinvestment strategy of acquiring additional tax-exempt mortgage bonds secured by MF Properties, the Company
has caused its various Holding Companies to acquire 99% limited partner positions in limited partnerships that own the MF
Properties. The genera partners of these partnerships are unaffiliated parties and their 1% ownership interest in these limited
partnershipsisreflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements as non-controlling interests. The Partnership expects
each of these MF Properties to eventually be sold either to a not-for-profit entity or in connection with asyndication of LIHTCs.
TheCompany expectsto providethetax-exempt mortgagerevenuebondsto thenew property ownersaspart of therestructuring. As
of December 31, 2010, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries held limited partnership interestsin eight entities that own MF
Properties containing atotal of 964 rental units, of which three arelocated in Ohio and subject to asales agreement, two are located
in Kentucky, oneislocated in Virginia, oneislocated in Georgia, and one in North Carolina.
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The Company had the following investments in MF Properties as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

MF Properties
Number Buildings and Carrying Value at
Property Name Location of Units Land Improvements December 31, 2010
Eagle Ridge Erlanger, KY 64 $ 290,763 $ 2,459,077 $ 2,749,840
Meadowview Highland Heights, KY 118 703,936 5,010,028 5,713,964
Churchland Chesapeake, VA 124 1,171,146 6,358,531 7,529,677
Glynn Place Brunswick, GA 128 743,996 4,636,281 5,380,277
Greens of Pine Glen Durham, NC 168 1,744,760 5,211,464 6,956,224
$ 28,329,982
L ess accumul ated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $1.3 million in 2010) (3,100,512)
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 25,229,470
MF Properties Subject to Sales Agreement
Number Buildings and Carrying Vaue at
Property Name Location of Units Land Improvements December 31, 2010
Crescent Village Cincinnati, OH 2 % 353,117 $ 4395937 $ 4,749,054
Willow Bend Hilliard, OH 92 580,130 3,070,386 3,650,516
Post Woods Reynoldsburg, OH 180 1,148,504 6,638,740 7,787,244
$ 16,186,814
L ess accumul ated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $600,000 in 2010) (2,129,085)
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 14,057,729
MF Properties
Number Buildings and Carrying Vaue at
Property Name Location of Units Land Improvements December 31, 2009
Eagle Ridge Erlanger, KY 64 $ 290,763 $ 2431975 $ 2,722,738
Meadowview Highland Heights, KY 118 703,936 4,961,618 5,665,554
Crescent Village Cincinnati, OH 90 353,117 4,344,981 4,698,098
Willow Bend Hilliard, OH 92 580,130 3,029,928 3,610,058
Post Woods Reynoldsburg, OH 180 1,148,504 6,587,724 7,736,228
Churchland Chesapeake, VA 124 1,171,146 6,298,605 7,469,751
Glynn Place Brunswick, GA 128 743,996 4,572,850 5,316,846
Greens of Pine Glen Durham, NC 168 1,744,760 5,147,383 6,892,143
44,111,416
Less accumulated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $1.8 million in 2009) (3,324,801)
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 40,786,615

The Greens of Pine Glen Limited Partnership (“Greens’), which islocated in North Carolina, was acquired in February 2009, for
a $7.0 million purchase price. The Company incurred transaction expenses of approximately $165,000 which were expensed
based on the Company's adoption of the guidance on business combinations effective at the time of acquisition. Asaresult, the
financial statements of this property have been consolidated with those of the Partnership since that time. The Company has
allocated $6.8 million of the purchase price to real estate assets. The purchase price was funded through an assumed mortgage
loan of $6.5 million and cash on hand. The unpaid balance of the note bears a 7% annual interest rate payable monthly. The
Company retired this debt in 2010.

In 2008, the Glynn Place Apartments (“ Glynn Place”) and The Commonsat Churchland (* Churchland”) were acquired by wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Glynn Place, which is located in Georgia, was acquired on October 30, 2008 for a $5.4
million purchase price plus transaction expenses of approximately $500,000. The purchase price was funded through a mortgage
loan of $4.5 million and cash of approximately $1.4 million. The cash portion of the purchase price was funded by cash on
hand. Churchland, whichislocatedin Virginia, wasacquired on August 29, 2008 for a$7.5 million purchase price plustransaction
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expenses of approximately $400,000. The purchase price was funded through a first mortgage loan of $5.5 million, a second
mortgage |oan of $1.0 million and cash of approximately $1.4 million. The cash portion of the purchase price was funded by cash
on hand. Individually these acquisitions are not material but in the aggregate they must be disclosed pursuant to the guidance on
business combinations. Asaresult, thefinancial statements of these properties have been consolidated with those of the Partnership
since that time.

Thetable below showsthe pro formacondensed consolidated results of operations of the Company asif the Churchland and Glynn
Place properties had been acquired at the beginning of the period presented:

For the
Y ear Ended
December 31, 2008
Revenues $ 19,629,527
Net income (1,163,755)
Net income allocated to unitholders 2,530,406
Unitholders' interest in net income per unit (basic and diluted) $ 0.19

The pro forma financial information represents the historical operating results of the combined Company with adjustments for
purchase accounting and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition
had taken place at the beginning of the period presented.

Consolidated VIE Properties

In addition to the MF Properties, the Company consolidates the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the Consolidated
VIEs in accordance with the guidance on consolidations. Although the assets of the VIEs are consolidated, the Company has no
ownership interest in the Consolidated VI Es other than to the extent they serve as collateral for the tax-exempt mortgage revenue
bonds owned by the Partnership. Theresults of operations of those properties are recorded by the Company in consolidation but
any net income or loss from these properties does not accrue to the unitholders or the general partner, but isinstead included in
"Unallocated deficit of variable interest entities.”

The Company consolidated the following properties owned by the VIEs in continuing operations as of December 31, 2010 and
2009:

Consolidated VIEs

Number Buildings and Carrying Vaue at
Property Name Location of Units Land Improvements December 31, 2010
Bent Tree Apartments Columbia, SC 232 $ 986,000 $ 11,598,081 $ 12,584,081
Fairmont Oaks Apartments Gainsville, FL 178 850,400 8,431,601 9,282,001
Residences at DeCordova Granbury, TX 76 527,436 4,761,552 5,288,988
Residences at Weatherford Weatherford, TX 76 533,000 602,996 1,135,996
lona Lakes Apartments Ft. Myers, FL 350 1,900,000 17,508,844 19,408,844
L ake Forest Apartments Daytona Beach, FL 240 1,396,800 11,136,019 12,532,819
60,232,729
Less accumulated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $2.2 million in 2010) (18,237,508)
$ 41,995,221
v
Consolidated VIEs
Number Buildings and Carrying Value at
Property Name Location of Units Land Improvements December 31, 2009
Ashley Square Des Moaines, 1A 144 $ 650,000 7,602,048 $ 8,252,048
Bent Tree Apartments Columbia, SC 232 986,000 11,484,397 12,470,397
Fairmont Oaks A partments Gainsville, FL 178 850,400 8,285,551 9,135,951
lona Lakes Apartments Ft. Myers, FL 350 1,900,000 17,269,181 19,169,181
Lake Forest Apartments Daytona Beach, FL 240 1,396,800 10,990,328 12,387,128
Cross Creek Apartments Beaufort, SC 144 844,103 7,289,210 8,133,313
69,548,018
Less accumulated depreciation (depreciation expense of approximately $2.6 million in 2009) (18,543,740)
$ 51,004,278
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7. Other Assets

The Company had the following Other Assets as of dates shown:

December 31,2010  December 31, 2009

Property loans receivable $ 16,465,960 $ 4,303,941
Less: Allowance for property loans (9,899,749) (735,719)
Judgment receivable 710,690 713,543
Less: Allowance for judgment receivable (700,000) (700,000)
Deferred financing costs - net 4,040,735 757,174
Fair value of derivative contracts 3,406,791 140,507
Other assets 2,533,773 1,549,685
Total Other Assets $ 16,558,200 $ 6,029,131

In addition to the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held by the Company, taxabl e mortgage |oans have been made to the owners
of the properties which secure the bonds and are reported as Other Assets, net of allowance. The Company periodicaly, or as
changesin circumstances or operations dictate, eval uates such taxable loans for impairment. Thevalue of the underlying property
assetsis ultimately the most relevant measure of the value to support the taxable loan values. The Company utilizes a discounted
cash flow model in estimating a property fair value. A number of different discounted cash flow models containing varying
assumptionsare considered. Thevarious models may assume multiple revenue and expense scenarios, various capitalization rates
and multiple discount rates. In estimating the property valuation, the most significant assumptions utilized in the discounted cash
flow model were the same as those discussed in Note 5 above except that the specific discount rate used to estimate the property
valuationinthe current year modelswas 6.5%. The Company believesthisrepresentsarate at which amultifamily property could
obtain current tax-exempt financing similar to the current existing outstanding bonds. Other information, such as independent
appraisals, may be considered in estimating a property fair value. If the estimated fair value of the property after deducting the
amortized cost basis of any senior tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond exceeds the principle balance of the property loan then no
potential lossisindicated and no allowance for loan loss is heeded.

Thefollowing isasummary of the taxable loans, accrued interest and allowance on amount due at December 31, 2010:

Outstanding Accrued Net Taxable
Balance Interest Allowance Loans
Foundation for Affordable Housing $ 4377275 $ 397,110 $ — $ 4,774,385
Ashley Square 4,786,342 1,018,634 (4,614,976) 1,190,000
Woodland Park 914,116 46,983 (961,099) —
Cross Creek 6,388,227 1,119,201 (4,323,674) 3,183,754

$ 16465960 $ 2581928 $ (9,899,749) $ 9,148,139

The Company at December 31, 2010 and 2009, has an asset held for sale valued at an appraised value of $375,000, along with a
receivable of approximately $711,000 representing amounts due from a project owner on the Prairebrook Village in 2008 based
upon a summary judgment obtained. The Partnership placed liens on assets identified and garnished wages from the judgment
parties. In February 2010, the Partnership was informed that bankruptcy protection may be sought by the judgment parties. As
a result, the Partnership recorded an allowance for bad debt against the judgment receivable. The allowance for bad debt at
December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $700,000 leaving a net receivable of approximately $11,000 which we are continuing to pursue.

In April 2009, the Company acquired the Series A and B Oak Grove Commons Apartments tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
for $2.6 million which represented 100% of the bond issuance. The Series A bond par valueis $5.6 million and the Series B bond
parvalueis$l.4million. Thebondswereissuedfortheconstructionof theOak Grove CommonsA partments,a168 unit multifamily
apartment complex located in Conway, Arkansas. At the time of acquisition the bonds were in technical default as the property
had not reached stabilization and was not current on debt service. The Company purchased the bonds with the intent to evaluate
the property and determine if the bonds could be restructured and maintained as an investment. The Company determined that it
would no longer maintain the bond as an investment and, therefore, foreclosed on the bonds. In June 2009, the Company took
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ownership of the property with the intent to sell the apartment complex to athird party and classified the property as an asset held
for sale. In September 2009, the Company sold Oak Grove to an unaffiliated party for $3.75 million. After the deduction of
selling expenses, commissions and cash advances made to the property, the Company realized a taxable gain of approximately
$863,000fromthesale. TheGeneral Partner approved aspecial distribution of the net cash proceedsrealized onthistransaction. In
accordance with the Company's Agreement of Limited Partnership, this special distribution was considered a distribution of Tier
2 Net Residual Proceeds and, as such, was distributed 75% to the BUCs and 25% to the General Partner. Thedistribution to the
BUCs of $0.035 per unit was made on October 30, 2009 to the BUCs of record as of September 30, 2009. The remainder of the
specia distribution, approximately $215,000, was paid to the General Partner.

8. Discontinued Operations

In February 2009, the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds secured by Ashley Pointe at Eagle Crest in Evansville, Indiana,
Woodbridge Apartment of Bloomington 111 in Bloomington, Indiana, and Woodbridge Apartments of Louisville Il in Louisville,
Kentucky were redeemed. The properties financed by these redeemed mortgage revenue bonds were required to be consolidated
into the Company's financial statements as VIEs under the guidance on consolidations as described below under “Effects of
I mplementation of Consolidation Guidance on Financial Reporting”. Duringthefourth quarter of 2008, theseVIEsmet thecriteria
for discontinued operationsunder thegui dance on property, plant, and equipment and they wereclassified assuch in the consolidated
financial statements for all periods presented. In order to properly reflect the transaction under the guidance on consolidations,
the Company recorded the redemption of the bonds as a sale of the properties as though they were owned by the Company. The
transaction was completed for atotal purchase price of $32.0 millionresulting inagain on salefor GAAPreporting to the Company
of approximately $26.5 million. The redemption of the bonds did not result in a taxable gain to the Partnership.

Asof December 31, 2008, $19.6 million of the total outstanding debt related to the Partnership's bond portfolio has been all ocated
to discontinued operations. Interest expense was allocated to discontinued operations based on the historical effectiverate of the
Company's debt financing applied to the debt financing allocated to discontinued operations. The Company allocated to
discontinued operations interest expense of $0, $82,000 and $991,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

On a stand-alone basis, the Partnership received approximately $30.9 million of net proceeds from the bond redemption. These
proceeds represent the repayment of the bond par values plus accrued base interest and approximately $2.3 million of contingent
interest. The contingent interest, recognized in the first quarter of 2009, represents additional earnings to the Partnership beyond
the recurring base interest earned on the bond portfolio. The contingent interest also represents additional Cash Available for
Distribution to the unitholders of approximately $1.7 million, or $0.13 per unit.

There are no components of the assets and liabilities of discontinued operations as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

The following presents the revenues, expenses and income from discontinued operations excluding the gain on sale of $26.5
million in 2009:

2009 2008
Rental Revenues $ 849366 $ 5195,761
Expenses 501,926 4,548,772
Income from discontinued operations $ 347440 $ 646,989

9. Debt Financing

Asof September 1, 2010, the Partnership and its Consolidated Subsidiary ATAX TEBSI, LLC, entered into anumber of agreements
relating to anew long-term debt financing facility provided through the securitization of 13 tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
owned by the ATAX TEBSI, LLC (the “Sponsor”) pursuant to the TEBS Financing. The TEBS Financing essentially provides
the Partnership with along-term variable-rate debt facility at interest rates reflecting prevailing short-term tax-exempt rates.
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Effective September 1, 2010, the Partnership transferred the following bonds to ATAX TEBS I, LLC, aspecial purpose entity
controlled by the Partnership pursuant to the TEBS Financing:

September 1, 2010

Description of Tax-Exempt Bond Par

Mortgage Revenue Bonds Amount Financial Statement Presentation

Ashley Square $ 5,368,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

BellaVista 6,695,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

Bent Tree 7,763,000 Consolidated VIE

Bridle Ridge 7,865,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

Brookstone 9,577,794 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

Cross Creek 8,712,029 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

Fairmont Oaks 7,610,000 Consolidated VIE

Lake Forest 9,318,000 Consolidated VIE

Runnymede 10,790,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

South Park 14,175,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

Woodlynn Village 4,536,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond

Ohio Series A Bond @ 14,708,000 Consolidated MF Property

Villages at Lost Creek 18,500,000 Tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond
Total $ 125,617,823

(2) Collateralized by Cresent Village, Post Woods and Willow Bend

In order to meet Freddie Mac's underwriting requirements with respect to the multifamily apartment properties financed by these
bonds, the Sponsor wasrequired tofirst place eight of the Bonds, with atotal outstanding principal of approximately $70.5 million,
into a separate custodial trust with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the “ Custodial Trust”) that issued senior
and subordinated custody receipts (“ Custody Receipts’) representing beneficial interestsin the Bonds held in the Custodial Trust
to the Sponsor. The subordinated Custody Receiptswith atotal principal amount of approximately $9.5 million were retained by
the Sponsor. The senior Custody Receipts, with atotal principal amount of approximately $61.0 million, along with the remaining
five Bonds that were not placed into the Custodial Trust, with atotal principal amount of approximately $55.1 million, were then
securitized by transferring these assets to the TEBS Trust sponsored by Freddie Mac in exchange for tax-exempt Class A and
Class B Freddie Mac Multifamily Variable Rate Certificates (collectively, the “TEBS Certificates") issued by Freddie Mac. The
TEBS Certificates represent beneficial interests in the securitized assets held by Freddie Mac. The gross proceeds from TEBS
Financing were approximately $95.8 million. After the payment of transaction expenses, the Company received net proceeds
from the TEBS Financing of approximately $90.4 million. The Company applied approximately $49.5 million of these net
proceeds to repay the entire outstanding principal of, and accrued interest on, its secured term loan from Bank of America

The Class A TEBS Certificates were issued in an initial principal amount of $95.8 million and were sold through a placement
agent to unaffiliated investors. The Class B TEBS Certificates were issued in an initia principal amount of $20.3 million and
were retained be the Sponsor. The holders of the Class A TEBS Certificates are entitled to receive regular payments of interest
from Freddie Mac at a variable rate which resets periodically based on the weekly Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (“SIFMA™) floating index rate plus certain credit, facility, remarketing and servicing fees (the “Facility Fees’). As
of closing, the SIFMA rate was equal to 0.25% and the total Facility Feeswere 1.9%, resulting in atotal initial cost of borrowing
of 2.15%. Asof December 31, 2010, the SIFMA rate was equal to 0.34% resulting in atotal cost of borrowing of 2.24%.

Payment of interest on the Class A TEBS Certificates will be made from the interest payments received by Freddie Mac from the
Bonds and Senior Custody Receipts held by Freddie Mac on designated interest payment dates prior to any payments of interest
on the Class B TEBS Certificates held by the Sponsor. Asthe holder of the Class B TEBS Certificates, the Sponsor is hot entitled
toreceiveinterest payments onthe ClassB TEBS Certificates at any particular rate, but will be entitled to all payments of principal
and interest on the Bonds and Senior Custody Receipts held by Freddie Mac after payment of principal and interest due on the
Class A TEBS Certificates and payment of all Facility Fees and associated expenses. Accordingly, the amount of interest paid to
the Sponsor on the Class B TEBS Certificatesis expected to vary over time, and could be eliminated altogether, dueto fluctuations
in the interest rate payable on the Class A TEBS Certificates, Facility Fees, expenses and other factors.

Freddie Mac has guaranteed payment of scheduled principal and interest payments on the Class A TEBS Certificates and aso
guarantees payment of the purchase price of any Class A TEBS Certificates that are tendered to Freddie Mac in accordance with
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their terms but which cannot be remarketed to new holderswithin five business days. The Sponsor has pledged the ClassB TEBS
Certificatesto Freddie Mac to secure certain reimbursement obligations of the Sponsor to Freddie Mac. The Company also entered
into various subordination and intercreditor agreements with Freddie Mac under which the Company has subordinated its rights
and remedies to the rights of Freddie Mac, as the holder of the Bonds, with respect to the taxable |oans made by the Company to
the owners of properties securing certain of the bonds.

Theterm of the TEBS Financing coincides with the terms of the assets securing the TEBS Certificates, except that the Partnership
may terminate the TEBS Financing at its option on either September 15, 2017 or September 15, 2020. Should the Partnership not
elect to terminate the TEBS Financing on these dates the full term of the TEBS Financing runsthrough the final principal payment
date associated with the securitized bonds, or July 15, 2050.

As of December 31, 2010, the outstanding balance on the TEBS Financing facility is $95.6 million. Prior to the closing of the
TEBS Financing, the Company had outstanding debt financing of $54.8 million consisting of two credit facilities. Thefirst credit
facility was with Bank of America and had an outstanding balance of $49.3 million (the “BOA Facility”). As noted above, the
BOA Facility was repaid with proceeds from the TEBS Financing. The second credit facility was with Omaha State Bank and
had an outstanding balance of $5.5 million (the“OSB Facility”). The OSB Facility was repaid prior to the execution of the TEBS
Financing.

For years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company's average effective annual interest rate on borrowings under the BOA
Facility, OSB Facility and TEBS Facility was approximately 3.0% and 4.0%, respectively.

The Company's aggregate borrowings as of December 31, 2010 contractually mature over the next five years and thereafter as
follows:

2011 $ 675,000
2012 945,000
2013 1,009,000
2014 1,083,000
Thereafter 91,896,000

Total $ 95,608,000

10. Mortgages Payable

The Company reports the mortgage loans secured by certain MF Properties on its consolidated financial statements as Mortgages
payable. Asof December 31, 2010, outstanding mortgage |oans totaled approximately $10.6 million. Asof December 31, 2009,
outstanding mortgage |l oanstotal ed approximately $30.1 million. In June 2010, prior to the sale of the Ohio Properties as discussed
in Note 5, the Company repurchased the $12.8 million outstanding mortgage secured by the Ohio Properties at a discount. The
early extinguishment of the mortgage debt resulted in again of approximately $435,000. In September 2010, the Company repaid
the $6.5 million outstanding mortgage secured by Greens of Pine Glen which had a 7% annual interest rate payable monthly and
amaturity date of September 2010.
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Thefollowing is a summary of the Mortgage L oans payable on MF Properties:

Outstanding Debt

Financing at
December 31, Original Debt Year Effective
MF Property Mortgage Loans 2010 Financing Acquired  Stated Maturity Rate @
Churchland 5,281,882 5,530,800 2008 September 2013 2.86%
Churchland 1,000,000 1,000,000 2008 November 2013 6.00%
Glynn Place 4,364,100 4,480,000 2008 November 2011 2.92%
Total Mortgage Payable $ 10,645,982 $ 11,010,800
Outstanding Debt
Financing at
December 31, Origina Debt Year Effective
MF Property Mortgage Loans 2009 Financing Acquired  Stated Maturity Rate @
Ohio properties $ 12,793570 $ 12,793,570 2007 July 2010 1.97%
Churchland 5,403,552 5,530,800 2008 September 2013 3.12%
Churchland 1,000,000 1,000,000 2008 November 2013 6.00%
Glynn Place 4,419,732 4,480,000 2008 November 2011 2.89%
Greens of Pine Glen 6,500,000 6,500,000 2009 September 2010 7.00%
Total Mortgage Payable $ 30,116,854 $ 30,304,370

(1) Represents the average effective interest rate, including fees, for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 and excludes the effect of interest rate caps
(see Note 13.)

The Company's mortgages payable as of December 31, 2010 contractually mature over the next five years and thereafter as
follows:

2011 $ 4,485,770
2012 121,670
2013 6,038,542
2014 —
Thereafter —
Total $ 10,645,982

The Partnership expects each of the MF Properties to eventually be sold either to a not-for-profit entity or in connection with a
syndication of LIHTCs. The proceeds from such sale will be utilized to retire any associated outstanding mortgage loan.
Should a mortgage loan reach maturity prior to a sale of the associated MF Property the Partnership would either seek to
refinance such mortgage loan or utilize cash reserves to retire the loan. The Partnership expects to provide tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds as part of an overall plan of financing the acquisition of a MF Property by a new property owner.

11. I'ssuances of Additional Beneficial Unit Certificates

Beginning in 2007, the Partnership has issued BUCs from time to time to raise additional equity capital to fund investment
opportunities. Through December 31, 2010, the Partnership had issued atotal of 20,285,000 additional BUCsraising net proceeds
of approximately $108.2 million after payment of an underwriter’ sdiscount and other offering costs of approximately $7.8 million.
In April 2010, a Registration Statement on Form S-3 was declared effective by the SEC under which the Partnership may offer
up to $200.0 million of additional BUCsfrom timeto time. The most recent i ssuance was completed in April 2010. The Partnership
issued an additional 8,280,000 BUCsthrough an underwritten public offering at a public offering price of $5.37 per BUC pursuant
tothisnew Registration Statement. Net proceeds realized by the Partnership from thisissuance of these BUCswere approximately
$41.6 million after payment of an underwriter's discount and other offering costs of approximately $2.8 million.

12. Transactionswith Related Parties

A substantial portion of the Partnership's general and administrative expenses and certain costs capitalized by the Partnership are
paid by AFCA 2 or an affiliate and are reimbursed by the Partnership. The capitalized costs are typically incurred in connection
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with the acquisition or reissuance of certain tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, debt financing transactions and other capital
transactions. The amounts in the following table represent cash payments to reimburse AFCA 2 or an affiliate for such expenses.

2010 2009 2008
Reimbursable salaries and benefits $ 848566 $ 936,119 $ 655,156
Costs capitalized by the Partnership — 30,748 348,454
Other expenses 10,080 9,262 71,612
Insurance 184,729 108,558 91,295
Professional fees and expenses 216,346 202,051 566,332
Investor services and custodia fees (recoveries) (5,057) 1,965 42,712
Consulting and travel expenses 27,242 12,915 63,211

$ 1281906 $ 1,301,618 $ 1,838,772

AFCA 2 isentitled to receive an administrative fee from the Partnership equal to 0.45% per annum of the outstanding principal
balance of any of its tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds or other tax-exempt investments for which the owner of the financed
property or other third party is not obligated to pay such administrative fee directly to AFCA 2. For the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009, and 2008, the Partnership paid administrative fees to AFCA 2 of approximately $636,000, $304,000, and $314,000,
respectively. Inaddition to the administrative fees paid directly by the Partnership, AFCA 2 receives administrative fees directly
from the owners of properties financed by certain of the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds held by the Partnership. These
administrative fees also equal 0.45% per annum of the outstanding principal balance of these tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
and total ed approximately $209,000, $254,000, and $319,000, in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. Additionally, in connection
with the sale of the Ohio Properties and purchase of the new tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds issued as part of the transaction
(see Note 6), the Ohio Properties paid accrued and deferred administrative fees to AFCA 2 totaling approximately $231,000.
Although these third party administrative fees are not Partnership expenses, they have been reflected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of the Company as a result of the consolidation of the VIEs. Such fees are payable by the
financed property prior to the payment of any contingent interest on the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds secured by these
properties. If the Partnership were to acquire any of these properties in foreclosure, it would assume the obligation to pay the
administrative fees relating to mortgage revenue bonds on these properties.

AFCA 2 earned mortgage placement fees in connection with the acquisition of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds by the
Company. These mortgage placement fees were paid by the owners of the respective property or the third party seller of the
respective bonds and, accordingly, have not been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements because these
properties are not considered Consolidated VIES. Mortgage placement fees earned by AFCA 2 totaled approximately $461,000,
$282,000 and $61,000, in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Anaffiliateof AFCA 2, AmericaFirst Property Management Company, L.L.C. (“ PropertiesManagement”) wasretained to provide
property management services for Ashley Pointe (sold in February 2009), lona Lakes, Bent Tree, Lake Forest, Fairmont Oaks,
DeCordova, Eagle Ridge, Crescent Village, Meadowview, Willow Bend, Post Woods |, Post Woods|1, Churchland, Glynn Place,
Greensat Pine Glen, Ashley Square, Clarkson College, Cross Creek, and Woodland Park. The management fees paid to Properties
Management amounted to approximately $982,000 in 2010, $955,000 in 2009, and $645,000 in 2008. For the Consolidated VIEs,
these management fees are not Partnership expenses but are recorded by each applicable VIE entity and, accordingly, have been
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Such feesare paid out of the revenues generated by the properties
owned by the Consolidated VI Es prior to the payment of any interest on the tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and taxable loans
held by the Partnership on these properties. For the MF Properties, these management fees are considered real estate operating
expenses.

The owners of four limited-purpose corporations which own apartment properties financed with tax-exempt bonds and taxable
loans held by the Company are employees of Burlington who are not involved in the operation or management of the Company
and who are not executive officers or managers of Burlington.

13. Interest Rate Derivatives

As of December 31, 2010, the Company has four derivative agreements in order to mitigate its exposure to increases in interest
rates on its variable-rate debt financing and mortgages payable. The terms of the derivative agreements are as follows:



Effective Maturity Purchase

Date Purchased Notional Amount Capped Rate Date Price Counterparty

September 2, 2010 $ 31,936,667 3.00% September 15, 2017 $ 921,000 Bank of New York Mellon
September 2, 2010 $ 31,936,667 3.00%  September 15,2017 $ 845,600 Barclays Bank PLC
September 2, 2010 $ 31,936,667 3.00%  September 15,2017 $ 928,000 Royal Bank of Canada
October 29, 2008 $ 4,480,000 6.00% November 1, 2011 $ 26,512 Bank of America

In order to mitigate its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the variable rate TEBS Financing, the Sponsor entered into interest
rate cap agreements with Barclays Bank PLC, Bank of New York Mellon and Royal Bank of Canada, each in an initial notional
amount of approximately $31.9 million which effectively limits the interest payable by the Company on the TEBS Financing to
afixed rate of 3.0% per annum on the combined notional amounts of the interest rate cap agreements through August 2017. The
interest rate cap plus the Facility Fees payable to Freddie Mac result in a maximum potential cost of borrowing on the TEBS
Financing of 4.9% per annum. In conjunction with the TEBS Financing and the payment of the Bank of America credit facility,
the $50.0 million interest rate derivative purchased on June 18, 2009, wasterminated. The $4.5 million interest rate cap agreement
with Bank of Americarel atestothe Glynn Placemortgageloan. During June 2010, a$12.8 millioninterest ratederivative purchased
on July 9, 2009 was allowed to expire as the related mortgage was retired as discussed in Note 10.

These interest rate derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and, accordingly, they are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value included in current period earnings within interest expense. Interest rate derivative expense, which is the result of
marking the interest rate derivative agreementsto fair value, resulted in adecrease of approximately $572,000 in interest expense
for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to an increase of approximately $830,000 in interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2009. These interest rate derivatives are presented on the balance sheet in Other Assets. The carrying value
of these derivatives was gpproximately $3.4 million and $141,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

14. Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

Existing fair value guidance defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. The guidance on fair value measurements:

» Definesfair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer aliability (an exit price)
inthe principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date; and

« Establishesathree-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of
an asset or liability as of the measurement date.

Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk. Toincrease consistency and comparability infair value measurements and related disclosures, thefair value hierarchy
prioritizes the inputs to val uation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. Thethree levels of the hierarchy
are defined asfollows:

* Level 1inputsare quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

« Level 3inputsare unobservable inputs for asset or liabilities.

The categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

I nvestmentsin Tax-exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds. The fair values of the Company's investments in tax-exempt
mortgage revenue bonds have each been based on adiscounted cash flow and yield to maturity analysis performed by the General
Partner. Thereisno activetrading market for the bonds and price quotes for the bonds are not available. If available, the Genera
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Partner may also consider price quotes on similar bonds or other information from external sources, such as pricing services. The
estimates of the fair values of these bonds, whether estimated by the Company or based on external sources, are based largely on
unobservableinputsthe General Partner believeswould be used by market participants. Additionally, the cal culation methodol ogy
used by the external sources and the Company encompasses the use of judgment in its application. Given thesefacts, thefair value
measurement of the Company's investment in tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds is categorized as aLevel 3 input.

Interest rate derivatives. The effect of the Company's interest rate capsisto set a cap, or upper limit, on the base rate
of interest paid on the Company's variable rate debt equal to the notional amount of the derivative agreement. The effect of the
Company's interest rate swap is to change a variable rate debt obligation to afixed rate for that portion of the debt equal to the
notional amount of the derivative agreement. The interest rate derivatives are recorded at fair value with changesin fair value
included in current period earnings within interest expense. The fair value of the interest rate derivatives is based on a model
whose inputs are not observable and therefore are categorized asaLevel 3 input.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on arecurring basis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010
Quoted Prices Significant

inActive Other o
Assets/ Markets for Observable Significant
Liabilitiesat  |dentical Assets Inputs Unobservable Inputs
Description Fair Value (Leve 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Tax-exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds $ 100,566,643 — — 3 100,566,643
Interest Rate Derivatives 3,406,791 — — 3,406,791
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 103,973,434 — — 3 103,973,434
For Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2010
Fair Value Measurements Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
T’ax O%ggg ' nterest Rate
Revenue Bonds Derivatives Totd
Beginning Balance January 1, 2010 $ 69,399,763 $ 140,507 $ 69,540,270
VIE deconsolidation 12,371,004 — 12,371,004
VIE consolidation (9,539,000) — (9,539,000)
Total gains (losses) (realized/unrealized)
Included in earnings — 571,684 571,684
Included in other comprehensive income 1,348,966 — 1,348,966
Purchases, issuances and settlements 26,985,910 2,694,600 29,680,510
Ending Balance December 31, 2010 $ 100,566,643 $ 3,406,791 $ 103,973,434
Total amount of income for the period included in earnings attributable to the
change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets or liabilities still held as
of December 31, 2010 — 3 571,684 $ 571,684
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2009

Quoted Prices Significant
inActive Other
Assets/ Markets for Observable Significant
Liabilitiesat  Identical Assets Inputs Unobservable Inputs
Fair Value (Leve 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets

Tax-exempt Mortgage Revenue Bonds $ 69,399,763 — — % 69,399,763

Interest Rate Derivatives 140,507 — — 140,507

Total Assets at Fair Value $ 69,540,270 — — 3 69,540,270

For Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2009
Fair Value Measurements Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Tax-exempt
Mortgage Interest Rate
Revenue Bonds  Derivatives Tota
Beginning Balance January 1, 2009 $ 44492526 $ 302,849 $ 44,795,375
Total gains (losses) (realized/unrealized)
Included in earnings — (830,142) (830,142)
Included in other comprehensive income 5,848,576 — 5,848,576
Purchases, issuances and settlements 19,058,661 667,800 19,726,461
Ending Balance December 31, 2009 $ 69,399,763 $ 140,507 $ 69,540,270
Total amount of losses for the period included in earnings attributable to the
changein unrealized gains or losses relating to assets or liabilities still held as
of December 31, 2009 — $ (830,142 $ (830,142)

Income and losses included in earnings for the periods shown above are included in interest expense.

In 2009 the approximate $4.7 million Weatherford bond was reported at an estimated $3.2 million fair market value and included
inthetax-exempt mortgage revenuebond value. During 2010 thisproperty becameaV | E (see Note4) and itsbond was determined
to beimpaired (Note 5). The company wrote thisbond down to its approximate estimated $2.6 million market value. Weatherford's
bond is fully eliminated upon consolidation.

Below represents the fair market value of the debt held on the balance sheet for December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

2010 2009
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial Liabilities:
Debt financiang 95,608,000 95,974,474 55,363,333 55,528,748
Mortgages payable 10,645,982 10,642,725 30,116,854 30,121,617

15. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to various legal proceedings and claimsthat arise in the ordinary course of business. These matters
are frequently covered by insurance. If it has been determined that aloss is probable to occur, the estimated amount of thelossis
accrued in the consolidated financial statements.

Certain of the MF properties own apartment properties that generated LIHTCs under section 42 of the Code for the previous
partners in these partnerships. In connection with the acquisition of partnership interestsin these partnerships by subsidiaries of
the Company, the Company has agreed to reimburse the prior partners for any liabilities they incur due to recapture of these tax
credits to the extent the recapture liability is due to the operation of the properties in a manner inconsistent with the laws and
regulationsrelating to such tax credits after the date of acquisition. No amount has been accrued for this continent liability because
management believes that the likelihood of any payments being required thereunder is remote.
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16. Subsequent Events

In February 2011, the Partnership acquired the Briarwood Manor A partments tax-exempt private activity mortgage revenue bond
for approximately $4.5 million which represented 100% of the bond issuance. The bond's approximate outstanding par value is
$5.5 million and earns interest at an annual rate of 5.3% with a monthly interest and principal payment and stated maturity date
of June 1, 2038. Based on the purchase price discount, the bond will yield approximately 7.0% per annum to the Partnership.
The bond wasissued for the construction of the Briarwood Manor Apartments, a 100 unit multifamily apartment complex located
in Montclair, California, in conjunction with the syndication of LIHTCs. The bond does not contain participation interests.

As discussed in Note 4, effective in February 2011, the Company foreclosed on the current ownership of DeCordova and
Weatherford. The Company hastaken ownership of theseproperties. Prior toforeclosure, the Company did not haveany ownership
interest in the properties, however, these properties were consolidated VIEs. Subsequent to the foreclosure, the properties will be
reported as MF properties and the Company will have an ownership interest in the properties and as aresult, Partners' Capital will
be impacted by the operating results of the properties. The Company has taken over these projects and intends to fund the
construction and stabilization of the Weatherford property. Upon the completion of construction, the Company expectsto operate
the property as a market rate apartment property. The Company aso intends to operate DeCordova as a market rate apartment
property. Once each property isleased up and stabilized the Company will evaluate its optionsin order to realize itsinvestments
in Weatherford and DeCordova.

17. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted ASC 810, Consolidations, which requires an entity to perform an analysis to determine
whether the entity's variable interest or interests give it a controlled financial interest in aVIE. The purpose of the analysisisto
identify the primary beneficiary of aVIE asthe entity that has (1) the power to direct the activities of aVIE that most significantly
impact the entity's economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb losses of the entity that could potentially be significant
totheVIE or theright to receive benefitsfrom the entity that could potentially besignificant tothe VIE. SeeNote 3 for disclosures.

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU”) 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements. The new accounting guidance amends previously issued guidance and adds new requirements for disclosures
about transfers into and out of Levels 1 and 2 and separate disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements rel ated
to Level 3 measurements. It also provides clarification about existing fair value disclosures, the level of disaggregation required,
and the inputs and val uation techniques used to measurefair value. The ASU is effective for the first reporting period (including
interim periods) beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the requirement to providethe Level 3 activity of purchases, sales,
issuances, and settlements on a gross basis which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim
periods within those fiscal years. The adoption did not have amaterial impact on the consolidated financial statements.

InJune 2009, theFinancial Accounting StandardsBoard (“FASB”)issued pre-codification gui dance Statement No. 166, Accounting
for Transfersof Financial Assets- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. This statement was codified into ASC 860. On and
after the effective date, the concept of aqualifying special purpose entity isno longer relevant for accounting purposes. Therefore,
formerly qualifying special-purpose entities, as defined under the previous accounting standards, should be evaluated for
consolidation under the applicable consolidation guidance. The guidance must be applied as of the beginning of each reporting
entity's first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting
period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. The adoption of this guidance on January 1, 2010 did not have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

InJuly 2010, the FASB issued A SU No. 2010-20, Disclosuresabout the Credit Quality of Financing Receivablesand the Allowance
for Credit Losses. ASU No. 2010-20 enhancesthe existing disclosure requirements providing more transparency of the allowance
for loanlossesand credit quality of financing receivables. The new disclosuresthat relateto information as of the end of areporting
period will beeffectivefor thefirstinterim and annual reporting periodsending on or after December 15, 2010. Thenew disclosures
that relate to activity occurring during the reporting period will be effective for thefirst interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2010, or first quarter of fiscal 2011 and thereafter in the Company's case. The adoption of ASU 2010-20 impacted
the disclosures but did not affect financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

18. Segments
The Company consists of three reportable segments, Tax-Exempt Bond Investments, MF Properties, and Consolidated VIEs. In

addition to the three reportable segments, the Company also separately reports its consolidating and eliminating entries because
it does not all ocate certain items to the segments.
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Tax-Exempt Bond I nvestments Segment

The Tax-Exempt Bond I nvestments segment consists of the Company's portfolio of federally tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds
which havebeenissued to provide construction and/or permanent financing of multifamily residential apartments. Such tax exempt
bonds are held as long-term investments. As of December 31, 2010, the Company held fifteen tax-exempt bonds not associated
with Consolidated VIEs and six tax-exempt bonds associated with Consolidated VIEs which are bonds are eliminated in
consolidation on the Company's financial statements. Additionally, two bonds secured by the three Ohio Properties subject to a
sales agreement (Note 6) are eliminated in consolidation on the Company's financial statements. The multifamily apartment
properties financed by the 21 tax-exempt bonds contain atotal of 3,658 rental units.

MF Properties Segment

TheMF Propertiessegment consistsof indirect equity interestsin multifamily apartment propertieswhich arenot currently financed
by tax-exempt bonds held by the Partnership but which the Partnership eventually intends to finance by such bonds through a
restructuring. In connection with any such restructuring, the Partnership will be required to dispose of any equity interest held in
such MF Properties. The Partnership's interests in its current MF Properties are not currently classified as Assets Held for Sale
because the Partnership is not actively marketing them for sale, there is no definitive purchase agreement in existence that, under
current guidance, can be recognized asasale of real estate assets and, therefore, no saleis expected in the next twelve months. As
discussed above, the Ohio Properties are subject to a sales agreement (see Notes 5 and 6). During the time the Partnership holds
an interest in a MF Property, any net rental income generated by the MF Propertiesin excess of debt service will be available for
distribution to the Partnership in accordance with its interest in the MF Property. Any such cash distribution will contribute to
the Partnership's CAD. As of December 31, 2010, the Company held an interest in five MF Properties containing a total of 602
rental units and three MF Properties subject to a sales agreement containing atotal of 362 rental units.

Consolidated VIE segment

The Consolidated VIE segment consists of multifamily apartment properties which are financed with tax-exempt bonds held by
the Partnership, the assets, liabilitiesand operating results of which are consolidated with those of the Partnership. Thetax-exempt
bonds on these Consolidated VIE properties are eliminated from the Company's financial statements as a result of such
consolidation, however, such bonds are held aslong-term investments by the Partnership which continuesto be entitled to receive
principal and interest payments on such bonds. The Company does not actually own an equity position in the Consolidated VIES
or their underlying properties. As of December 31, 2010, the Company consolidated six VIE multifamily apartment properties
containing atotal of 1,152 rental units.

Management closely monitors and evaluates the financial reporting associated with and the operations of the Consolidated VIEs
and the MF Properties and performs such evaluation separately from the other operations of the Partnership through interaction
with the affiliated property management company which manages the multifamily apartment properties held by the Consolidated
VIEs and the MF Properties.

Management's goals with respect to the properties constituting the Company's Consolidated VIE and MF Properties reportable
segmentsisto generateincreasing amounts of net rental income from these propertiesthat will allow themto (i) makeall payments
of base interest, and possibly pay contingent interest, on the properties included in the Tax-Exempt Bond Investments segment
and the Consolidated VIE segment, and (ii) distribute net rental income to the Partnership from the MF Properties segment until
such properties can be refinanced with additional tax-exempt mortgage bonds meeting the Partnership's investment criteria. In
order to achieve these goal s, management of these multifamily apartment propertiesisfocused on: (i) maintaining high economic
occupancy and increasing rental rates through effective leasing, reduced turnover rates and providing quality maintenance and
services to maximize resident satisfaction; (ii) managing operating expenses and achieving cost reductions through operating
efficienciesand economiesof scalegenerally inherent inthe management of aportfolio of multipleproperties; and (iii) emphasizing
regular programs of repairs, maintenance and property improvements to enhance the competitive advantage and value of its
propertiesin their respective market areas.
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The following table details certain key financial information for the Company's reportable segments for the three years ended
December 31:

2010 2009 2008

Total revenue

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ 11,147,091 $ 11,929,375 $ 10,185,370

MF Properties 7,205,099 7,045,578 4,793,535

Consolidated VIEs 7,487,438 8,621,475 8,938,510

Consolidation/eliminations (3,374,760) (6,707,264) (5,830,841)

Total revenue $ 22464868 $ 20,889,164 $ 18,086,574
Interest expense

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ 1,755,427 $ 2,892,521 $ 4,047,282

MF Properties 759,052 1,391,159 1,050,172

Consolidated VIEs 5,546,229 6,847,884 5,941,543

Consolidation/eliminations (5,546,229) (6,929,438) (6,932,925)

Total interest expense $ 2514479 $ 4,202,126 $ 4,106,072
Depreciation expense

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ — $ — 8 —

MF Properties 1,904,789 1,804,956 1,060,649

Consolidated VIEs 2,226,339 2,563,915 2,273,577

Consolidation/eliminations — — —

Total depreciation expense $ 4,131,128 $ 4,368,871 $ 3,334,226
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ 2384926 $ 4485438 $ 3,652,631

MF Properties (522,857) (1,153,982) (936,341)

Consolidated VIEs (8,230,629) (6,811,628) (5,565,226)

Consolidation/eliminations 5,764,369 572,831 1,161,343

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (604,191) $ (2,907,341) $ (1,687,593)
Net income (loss)

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ 2,384,926 $ 4485438 $ 3,652,641

MF Properties (319,026) (1,142,442) (926,987)

Consolidated VIEs (8,230,629) 27,974,817 (7,080,591)

Consolidation/eliminations 5,764,369 (7,478,860) 3,323,697

Net income (loss) - America First Tax Exempt Investors, L. P. $ (400,360) $ 23,838,953 $ (1,031,240)
Tota assets

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ 316,922,744 $ 186,493,868

MF Properties 43,979,530 54,064,969

Consolidated VIEs 47,504,227 57,761,651

Consolidation/eliminations (166,799,252) (107,549,768)

Total assets $ 241,607,249 $ 190,770,720
Total partners capital

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing $ 192,682,394 $ 125,995,908

MF Properties (3,882,221) 6,250,542

Consolidated VIEs (41,635,836) (41,693,546)

Consolidation/eliminations (19,001,446) 7,985,331

Total partners capital $ 128,162,891 $ 98,538,235
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19. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations

2010 March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Revenues $ 509899% $ 5821832 $ 5821640 $ 5,722,400
Income (loss) from continuing operations 345,850 45,048 (2,429,601) 1,434,512
ﬁeFt) (loss) income - America First Tax Exempt Investors, $ 347392 $ 566,714 $ (2,207,723) $ 893,257
Income (loss) from continuing operations, per BUC $ 005 $ 005 $ (0.04) $ 0.01
Income from discontinued operations — — — —
Net income (loss), basic and diluted, per BUC $ 005 $ 005 $ (0.04) $ 0.01

2009 March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Revenues $ 4733602 $ 4975702 $ 5777501 $ 5,402,359
(Loss) income from continuing operations (975,544) (573,330) 204,628 (1,563,095)
Income from discontinued operations 26,734,754 — — —
Ee; (loss) income - America First Tax Exempt Investors, $ 25,759,210 $ (573,330) $ 204,628 $ (1,563,095
Income (loss) from continuing operations, per BUC $ 012 $ 002 $ 007 $ (0.06)
Income from discontinued operations — — — —
Net income (loss), basic and diluted, per BUC $ 012 $ 0.02 $ 0.07 $ (0.06)

The quarterly data presented above has been adjusted for the presentation of discontinued operationsin all periods shown.
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Item 9. Changesin and Disagreementswith Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable
Item 9A. Controlsand Procedures.

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer (consisting of the
officers of the Burlington Capital Group LLC inits capacity asthe general partner of the general partner of the Partnership) have
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's current disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

M anagement Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company's management (consisting of the officers of the Burlington Capital Group LL Cinits capacity asthe general partner
of the general partner of the Partnership) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Company carried out an evaluation under the
supervision and with the parti cipation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer (consisting of the officers of the Burlington Capital Group LLC in its capacity as the genera partner of the
general partner of the Partnership), of the effectiveness of the Company'sinternal control over financia reporting. The Company's
management used theframework in Internal Control - Integrated Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
(COSO) to performthisevaluation. Based on that eval uation, the Partnershi p'smanagement concluded that the Company'sinternal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

Theeffectivenessof the Partnership'sinternal control over financial reporting asof December 31, 2010 hasbeen audited by Deloitte
& Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, a copy of which is included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changesin internal controls over financial reporting. There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financia

reporting during the Company's most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materialy
affect, the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P.
Omaha, Nebraska

We have audited the internal control over financia reporting of America First Tax Exempt Investors, L.P. and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committeeof Sponsoring Organizationsof the Treadway Commission. The Company’'smanagement isresponsiblefor maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility
isto express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether effectiveinternal control
over financia reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financia reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'sinternal control over financial reporting isaprocess designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal
executiveand principal financial officers, or personsperforming similar functions, and effected by the company'sboard of directors,
management, and other personnel to providereasonabl eassuranceregarding thereliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonabledetail, accurately and fairly reflect thetransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statementsin accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabl e assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have amaterial effect on the financial
statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements dueto error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on atimely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of theinternal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

I'n our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effectiveinternal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2010, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, of the Company and our report dated March
11, 2011, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and includes an explanatory paragraph regarding
management's estimates for investments without readily determinablefair values and the Company's adoption of guidancerel ated
to the consolidation of Variable Interest Entities effective January 1, 2010.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 11, 2011
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Item 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART |11
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officersand Cor por ate Gover nance.
The Partnership has no directors or officers of its own. Management of the Partnership consists of the general partner of the
Partnership, AmericaFirst Capital AssociatesLimited Partnership Two ("AFCA 2") and itsgeneral partner, The Burlington Capital
Group LLC (“Burlington”).

The following individuals are the officers and managers of Burlington, and each servesfor aterm of oneyear. Unitholders have
no right to nominate or elect managers of Burlington.

Name Position Held Position Held Since
Michael B. Yanney Chariman Emeritus of the Board and Manager 2008/1984
LisaY. Roskens Chairman of the Board and Manager 2008/1999
Mark A. Hiatt Chief Executive Officer 2010
Michael J. Draper Chief Financial Officer 2004
Mariann Byerwalter Manager (2) 1997

Dr. William S. Carter Manager (2 2003
Patrick J. Jung Manager ) (2) 2003
George H. Krauss Manager 2001

Dr. Martin A. Massengae Manager (1) (2) 1994

Dr. Gail Walling Y anney Manager 1996
Clayton K. Y eutter Manager (1) (2) 2001

(1) Member of the Burlington Audit Committee. The Board of Managers has designated Mr. Jung as the “audit committee financial expert” as such term is defined in Item 401
(h) of SEC Regulation S-K.

(2 Determined to be independent under both Section 10A of the securities Act of 1934 and under the NASDAQ Marketplace rules

Michael B. Yanney, 77, Chairman Emeritus, served as the Chairman of the Board of Burlington and its predecessors from
1984 through 2008. From 1977 until the organization of Burlingtonin 1984, Mr. Yanney was principally engaged intheownership
and management of commercia banks. From 1961 to 1977, Mr. Yanney was employed by Omaha National Bank and Omaha
National Corporation (now part of U.S. Bank), where he held various positions, including the position of Executive Vice President
and Treasurer of the holding company. Mr. Yanney also serves asamember of the boards of directorsof Level 3 Communications,
Inc., and Magnum Resources, Inc. Mr. Yanney al so served as adirector of AmericaFirst Apartment Investors, Inc. until its merger
with Sentinel Real Estate Corporation in 2007. Mr. Yanney is the husband of Gail Walling Yanney and the father of Lisa .
Roskens.

LisaY. Roskens, 44, is the Chairman of the Board of Burlington, Chief Executive Officer and President of Burlington.
From 1999 to 2000, M's. Roskens was managing Director of Twin Compass, LLC. From 1997 to 1999, Ms. Roskenswas employed
by Inacom Corporation where she held the position of Director of Business Development and Director of Field Services
Development. From 1995to0 1997, Ms. Roskens served as Finance Director for the U.S. Senate campaign of Senator Charles Hagel
of Nebraska. From1992t0 1995, Ms. Roskenswasan attorney withthe Kutak Rock LLPlaw firmin Omaha, Nebraska, specializing
in commercial litigation. Ms. Roskens also served as a director of America First Apartment Investors, Inc. until its merger with
Sentinel Real Estate Corporation in 2007. Ms. Roskens is the daughter of Michael B. Yanney and Gail Walling Yanney.
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Mr. Hiatt, age 51, is Chief Executive Officer of the Partnership. Mr. Hiatt has been employed by Burlington since 1987 in
various capacities, and currently serves as the President of AmericaFirst Real Estate Group, the real estate operating division of
Burlington. Mr. Hiatt will continue to be employed by Burlington and will continue to serve as the President of America First
Real Estate Group in addition to performing his duties as the Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant. He has previously served
as Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Burlington, and aso as the Chief Operating Officer for AmericaFirst
Properties Management Company, L.L.C. Prior to joining Burlington Capital Group, Mr. Hiatt was Director of Finance, from
1984 t0 1987, for J.L. Brandeis& Sonsand, from 1982 to 1984, he was a senior accountant with Arthur Andersen & Co. Mr. Hiatt
has a Bachelor of Artsin Accounting and Finance from Hastings College and is a Certified Public Accountant..

Michael J. Draper, 45, is Chief Financial Officer of Burlington. From April 2004 to September 2004, he was the Director
of Finance and Accounting for Burlington. From April 2000 through March 2004, he was employed at Transgenomic, Inc. where
he served as Chief Financial Officer and prior to that as Controller. Prior to Transgenomic, Mr. Draper was Vice President of
Accounting and Financefor MSI Systems Integratorsfor over 2 years and was with Deloitte & ToucheLLPfor over 8 years. Mr.
Draper is a Certified Public Accountant.

Mariann Byerwalter, 50, is Chairman of JDN Corporate Advisory, LLC. She was the Chief Financial Officer and Vice
President for BusinessAffairsof Stanford University from 1996 to 2000, and Special Advisor tothePresident of Stanford University
through 2001. Ms. Byerwalter wasapartner and co-founder of AmericaFirst Financial Corporation, which purchased EurekaBank,
from 1987 to 1995. Ms. Byerwalter was the Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and a Director of America First
Eureka Holdings from 1988 to 1995. She served as the Chief Financial Officer of EurekaBank from 1993 to 1995 and was a
member of its Board of Directors from 1988 to 1998. Prior to that, she was a Vice President for Strategic Planning and Corporate
Development at BankAmerica Corporation. Ms. Byerwalter currently serves on the Board of Directors of Pacific Life Insurance
Company, SRI International, SchwabFunds, Redwood Trust, Inc., and WageWorks. She is a member of the Stanford University
Board of Trustees, and serves as Chair of the Board of Directors of Stanford Hospital and Clinics. She is a member of the Board
of Directorsof the Lucile Salter Packard Children'sHospital. Ms. Byerwalter received her B.A in Economicsand Political Science/
Public Policy in 1982 from Stanford University and her M.B.A. from Harvard University in 1984.

Dr. William S. Carter, 84, isretired from medical practice. Heisagraduate of Butler University and the Nebraska University
College of Medicine. He served his residency at the University of Missouri and was appointed a diplomat of the American Board
of Otorhinolaryngology. He was in private practice in Omaha, Nebraska, until 1993. He is currently on the board of directors of
Murphy Drug Co. and isadirector of the Happy Hollow Club in Omahaand the Thunderbird Club in Rancho Mirage, California.

Patrick J. Jung, 63, was elected as Company director in 2003. He currently serves asthe Chief Operating Officer of Surdell
& Partners, LLC, an advertising company in Omaha, Nebraska. Prior to his position with Surdell & Partners LLC, Mr. Jung was
a practicing certified public accountant with KPMG LLC for thirty years. During that period he served as a Partner for twenty
years and as the Managing Partner of Nebraska Businessfor the last six years. Mr. Jung is also amember of the board of directors
of Werner Enterprises, Inc., and serves as chair of its audit and compensation committees. Mr. Jung is also amember of the board
of directors of Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and serves as its audit committee chair and as a member of its compensation committee.
He also works with several civic boards and organizations. Mr. Jung has significant knowledge and experience in financia
management, accounting processes and corporate governance that is derived from his professional and other experiences. Mr.
Jung qualifiesasan audit committeefinancial expert and servesas chair of our audit committee and asamember of the governance
committee.

George H. Krauss, 69, has been a consultant to Burlington since 1996. From 1972 to 1996, Mr. Krauss practiced law with
Kutak Rock LLP, serving as that firm's managing partner from 1983 to 1993. From 1996 to 2006 Mr. Krauss was of counsel to
Kutak Rock LLP. Mr. Krauss also serves on the board of directors of MFA Mortgage Investments, Inc. and serves on the
compensation and the corporate governance and nominating committees.

Dr. Martin A. Massengale, 77, is President Emeritus of the University of Nebraska, Director of the Center for Grassland
Studies and a Foundation Distinguished Professor. Prior to becoming President Emeritusin 1994, he served as Interim President
from 1989 to 1991 and as President until 1994, as Chancellor of the University of Nebraska Lincoln from 1981 until 1991 and as
Vice Chancellor for Agriculture and Natural Resources from 1976 to 1981. Prior to that time, he was a professor and associate
dean of the College of Agriculture at the University of Arizona. Dr. Massengale currently serves on the Board of Trustees of the
BryanLGH Medical Center, and serves as a member of its audit and corporate compliance committees.

Dr. Gail Walling Yanney, 74, isaretired physician. Dr. Yanney practiced anesthesiology and was the Executive Director of

the Clarkson Foundation until October of 1995. In addition, she was a director of FirsTier Bank, N.A., Omaha, Nebraska, prior
to its merger with First Bank, N.A. Dr. Yanney is the wife of Michael B. Yanney and the mother of LisaY. Roskens.
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Clayton K. Yeutter, 80, is of counsel to Hogan & Hartson, a Washington D.C. law firm. From 1978 to 1985 he served as
the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Chicago Mercantile Exchange. Mr. Yeutter served asthe U.S. Trade Representative
from 1985 to 1989, asthe U.S. Secretary of Agriculturefrom 1989 to 1991, and has served in cabinet and sub-cabinet posts under
four U.S. Presidents. Mr. Yeutter currently serves on the board of directors of Neogen Corp. He previously served as Chairman
of the Board of Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. and on the boards of directors of CoventaHolding Corp., American Commercial Lines,
Inc. and the Chicago Climate Exchange.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the managers and executive officers of Burlington and personswho
own more than 10% of the Partnership's BUCstto file reports of their ownership of BUCswith the SEC. Such officers, managers
and unitholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Partnership with copies of all Section 16(a) reportsthey file. Based
solely upon review of the copies of such reports received by the Partnership and written representations from each such person
who did not file an annual report with the SEC (Form 5) that no other reports were required, the Partnership believes that there
was compliance for the year ended December 31, 2010 with all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to such executive
officers, managers and beneficial owners of BUCs.

Code of Ethical Conduct and Code of Conduct

Burlington has adopted the Code of Ethical Conduct for its senior executive and financia officers as required by Section 406 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Assuch, this Code of Ethical Conduct covers all executive officers of Burlington, who perform
such dutiesfor the Partnership. Burlington hasalso adopted the Code of Conduct applicableto all directors, officersand employees
which is designed to comply with the listing requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market. Both the Code of Ethical Conduct and
the Code of Conduct are available on the Partnership's website at www.ataxfund.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Neither the Partnership nor AFCA 2 has any officers. Certain services are provided to the Partnership by officers of
Burlington. However, under the terms of our Agreement of Limited Partnership, neither AFCA 2 nor Burlington is allowed to be
reimbursed by us for any compensation paid by Burlington to its officers. Asaresult, we do not pay compensation of any nature
to the personswho effectively act asour executive officers, including Mark Hiatt, our Chief Executive Officer and Michael Draper,
our Chief Financial Officer. Accordingly, no tabular disclosures regarding executive compensation, compensation discussion and
analysis, compensation committee report or information regarding compensation committee interlocks is being provided in this
Form 10-K.

The Board of Managers of Burlington effectively acts as our board of directors. Although Burlington is not a public company
and its securities are not listed on any stock market or otherwise publicly traded, its Board of Managersis constituted in amanner
that complieswith rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the NASDAQ Stock Market related to public companies
with securitieslisted on the NASDAQ Global Market in order for the Company and its BUCs to comply with these rules. Among
other things, a majority of the Board of Managers of Burlington consists of managers who meet the definitions of independence
under therulesof the SEC and the NASDAQ Stock Market. Theseindependent managersare Patrick J. Jung, Mariann Byerwalter,
Martin A. Massengale, Clayton Yeutter, and William S. Carter. During 2010, we paid Burlington atotal of $199,500 in order to
reimburse it for a portion of the feesit pays to these five independent managers. We did not pay any other compensation of any
natureto any of the managers of Burlington or reimburse Burlington for any other amounts representing compensation to its Board
of Managers.
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The following table sets forth the total compensation paid to the Managers of Burlington in fiscal 2010 for their services to the
Partnership.

Manager Compensation

Name Total FeesEarned or Paid in Cash ($)

Michael B. Yanney —
LisaY. Roskens —
Mariann Byerwalter 38,500
Dr. William S. Carter 35,875
Patrick J. Jung 44,625
George H. Krauss —
Dr. Martin A. Massengae 42,000
Dr. Gail Walling Y anney —
Clayton K. Y eutter 38,500

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersand M anagement.
(8) No person is known by the Partnership to own beneficially more than 5% of the Partnership's BUCs.

(b) The Partnership does not have any directors or officers of its own. Management of the Partnership consists of the general
partner of the Partnership, and its general partner, Burlington. The following table and notes set forth information with respect
to the beneficial ownership of the Partnership's BUCs by each of the Managers and executive officers of Burlington and by such
persons as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the information is as of December 31, 2010, and is based upon information
furnished to us by such persons. Unless otherwise noted, all personslisted in the following table have sole voting and investment
power over the BUCsthey beneficially own and own such BUCs directly. For purposes of thistable, the term “beneficial owner”
means any person who, directly or indirectly, has or units the power to vote, or to direct the voting of, a BUC or the power to
dispose, or to direct the disposition of, aBUC or has the right to acquire BUCs within 60 days.

Number of BUCs
Beneficially Per cent

Name Owned of Class
Michael B. Yanney, Chairman Emeritus and Manager of Burlington 347,5100 1%
LisaY. Roskens, Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager of Burlington 319,710@ 2%
Mark A. Hiatt, Chief Executive Officer of the Partnership 35,635 *
Michael J. Draper, Chief Financial Officer of Burlington 2,000 *

Mariann Byerwalter, Manager of Burlington — —
Dr. William S. Carter, Manager of Burlington — —

Patrick J. Jung, Manager of Burlington 5,000 *
George H. Krauss, Manager of Burlington — —
Dr. Martin A. Massengale, Manager of Burlington 1,500 *
Dr. Gail Walling Y anney, Manager of Burlington 347,510 1%
Clayton K. Yeutter, Manager of Burlington 2,000 *
All current executive officers and Managers of Burlington as a group (11 persons) 393,645 1%
* denotes ownership of less than 1%.

(1) Consists of 27,800 BUCs held by Mr. Yanney's spouse, Dr. Gail Walling Yanney, aManager of Burlington, and 319,710 BUCs held by the Burlington Capital
Group LLC . Mr. Yanney has a beneficial ownership interest in, and is a Manager and Chairman Emeritus of the Burlington Capital Group, LLC and is deemed
to have a pecuniary interest in the Beneficial Unit Certificates due to his ownership interest in The Burlington Capital Group, LLC.

(2) Consists of 319,710 BUCs held by the Burlington Capital Group LLC. Ms. Roskens has a beneficial ownership interest in, and is a Manager, Chairman,
President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Burlington Capital Group, LLC and is deemed to have a pecuniary interest in the Beneficial Unit Certificates due
to her ownership interest in The Burlington Capital Group, LLC.

(3) Consists of 27,800 BUCs held in a Self Employment Retirement Trust and 319,710 BUCs held by the Burlington Capital Group LLC. Dr. Yanney has a
beneficial ownershipinterestin, and isaManager of the Burlington Capital Group, LL C andisdeemed to haveapecuniary interestinthe Beneficial Unit Certificates
due to her ownership interest in The Burlington Capital Group, LLC.
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Effective January 1, 2010, Burlington adopted a prearranged trading plan established in accordance with the guidelines specified
by Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the purpose of acquiring up to $500,000 of BUCs on open market
purchases. Asof February 25, 2010, Burlington had completed the acquisition of 80,000 BUCs under thistrading plan for atotal
acquisition cost of approximately $440,000.

(c) Thereare no arrangements known to the Partnership, the operation of which may at any subsequent date result in achangein
control of the Partnership.

(d) The Partnership does not maintain any equity compensation plans as defined in Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationshipsand Related Transactions, and Director | ndependence.
The general partner of the Partnership is AFCA 2 and the sole general partner of AFCA 2 is Burlington.

Except as described in Note 10 to the Company's Financial Statements filed in response to Item 8 of this report, the Partnership
is not a party to any transaction or proposed transaction with AFCA 2, Burlington or with any person who is: (i) a manager or
executive officer of Burlington or any general partner of AFCA 2; (ii) anominee for election as amanager of Burlington; (iii) an
owner of more than 5% of the BUCs; or, (iv) a member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Feesand Services.

The Audit Committee of Burlington has engaged Deloitte & Touche LL P asthe independent registered public accounting firm for
the Company. The Audit Committee regularly reviews and determines whether any non-audit services provided by Deloitte &
Touche LLP potentially affects their independence with respect to the Company. The Audit Committee's policy isto pre-approve
all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP. Pre-approval is generally provided by the Audit
Committeefor up to one year, isdetailed asto the particular service or category of servicesto be rendered, and isgenerally subject
to a specific budget. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve additional services or specific engagements on a case-by-case
basis. Management provides annual updates to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of any services provided in accordance
with thispre-approval, aswell asthe cumulativefeesfor all non-audit servicesincurred to date. During 2010 and 2009, all services
performed by Deloitte & Touche LLP, with respect to the Partnership, were pre-approved by the Audit Committee in accordance
with this policy.

Thefollowing table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLPwith respect to audit and non-audit services for
the Company during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Audit Fees (1) $ 302,400 $ 251,405
Audit-Related Fees (2) 96,500 63,000
Tax Fees (3) 25,160 70,667

All Other Fees — —

(1) Audit - Includes fees and expenses for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements and internal control over
financial reporting, reviews of the financia statementsincluded in the Company's quarterly reports on Form 10-Q during 2009 and 2008.

(2) Audit-Related Fees - Includes services associated with registration statements, periodic reports and other documents filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission or other documents issued in connection with securities offerings, such as consents.

(3) Tax - Includes fees and expenses for the professional services rendered for the preparation and review of tax returns.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibitsand Financial Statement Schedules.
() Thefollowing documents are filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements. The following financial statements of the Company are included in response to Item 8 of this report:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms.
Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008.

Consolidated Statements of Partners' Capital of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

2. Financial Statement Schedules. The information required to be set forth in the financial statement schedules is included in
the notes to consolidated financial statements of the Company filed in response to Item 8 of this report.

3. Exhibits. Thefollowing exhibits arefiled as required by Item 15(a)(3) of thisreport. Exhibit numbersrefer to the paragraph
numbers under Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

3. Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of AmericaFirst Fiduciary Corporation Number Five (incorporated herein by reference
to Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 2-99997) filed by America First Tax Exempt Mortgage Fund Limited Partnership
on August 30, 1985).

4(a) Form of Certificate of Beneficial Unit Certificate (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement
on Form S-4 (No. 333-50513) filed by the Partnership on April 17, 1998).

4(b) Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Partnership (incorporated herein by reference to the Amended Annual Report on
Form 10-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Partnership on June 28, 1999).

4(c) Amended Agreement of Merger, dated June 12, 1998, between the Partnership and America First Tax Exempt Mortgage
Fund Limited Partnership (incorporated herein by referenceto Exhibit 4.3 to Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form
S-4 (No. 333-50513) filed by the Partnership on September 14, 1998).

10.1 Sde and Assignment Agreement by and between the Registrant and ATAX TEBSI, LLC, dated September 1, 2010
(incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8, 2010)

10.2 Custody Agreement by and between ATAX TEBS|, LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust, N.A., dated September
1, 2010 (incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8,
2010).

10.3 Bond Exchange, Reimbursement, Pledge and Security Agreement by and between ATAX TEBS, LLC and Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, dated September 1, 2010 (incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K (No.
000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8, 2010).

10.4 Series Certificate Agreement by and between Federa Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, in its corporate capacity, and
Federal Home L oan Mortgage Corporation, inits capacity as Administrator, dated September 1, 2010 with respect to Freddie Mac
Multifamily VariableRate Certificates Series M024 (incorporated by referencehereinto Exhibit 10.4to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843),
filed by the Company on September 8, 2010).

10.5 TheLimited Support Agreement between the Registrant and Federal Home L oan M ortgage Corporation, dated asof September
1, 2010 (incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8,
2010).
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10.6 Rate Cap Agreement between ATAX TEBSI, LLC and Barclays Bank, PLC, dated as of September 1, 2010 (incorporated
by reference herein to Exhibit 10.6 to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8, 2010).

10.7 Rate Cap Agreement between ATAX TEBS |, LLC and Bank of The New York Mellon dated as of September 1, 2010
(incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.7 to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8, 2010).

10.8 Rate Cap Agreement between ATAX TEBSI, LLC and Royal Bank of Canada, dated as of September 1, 2010 (incorporated
by reference herein to Exhibit 10.8 to Form 8-K (No. 000-24843), filed by the Company on September 8, 2010).

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & ToucheLLP.

24.1 Powers of Attorney.

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AMERICA FIRST TAX EXEMPT INVESTORS, L.P.
By  AmericaFirst Capital Associates

Limited Partnership Two,

Genera Partner of the Partnership

By  TheBurlington Capital Group LLC,
Genera Partner of
AmericaFirst Capital Associates
Limited Partnership Two

Date: March 11, 2011
By /9 Mark A. Hiatt
Mark A. Hiatt
Chief Executive Officer
AmericaFirst Tax Exempt Investors, L.P.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: March 11, 2011 By /¢ Michael B. Yanney*
Michael B. Yanney,
Chairman Emeritus of the Board and
Manager of Burlington Capital Group LLC

Date: March 11, 2011 By /¢ LisaY.Roskens*
LisaY. Roskens
Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Offer and
Manager of Burlington Capital Group LLC

Date: March 11, 2011 By /9 Mark A. Hiatt
Mark A. Hiatt,
Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 11, 2011 By /< Michael J. Draper
Michagel J. Draper,
Chief Financia Officer of The Burlington Capital Group LLC
(Principa Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 11, 2011 By /¢ Mariann Byerwalter*
Mariann Byerwalter,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC
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Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

March 11, 2011

March 11, 2011

March 11, 2011

March 11, 2011

March 11, 2011

March 11, 2011

*By Michagl J. Draper,
Attorney-in-Fact

By /s/ Michael J. Draper

Michael J. Draper

By

By

By

By

By

By

/s William S. Carter*

William S. Carter,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC

/s/ Patrick J. Jung*

Patrick J. Jung,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC

/s George H. Krauss*

George H. Krauss,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC

/s Martin A. Massengal e

Martin A. Massengale,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC

/sl Gail Walling Y anney*

Gail Walling Y anney,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC

/s/ Clayton K. Y eutter*

Clayton K. Y eutter,
Manager of The Burlington Capital Group LLC
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